CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION

City Oftials - Livauited & . s 5 v ovnmas 5555 s miiesmseiss 06 o3 REBESRE 55§54 § § 50

FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ., ..:ivumvvoceossnsssmovsnsinyoanss
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ... ... ... ... ......
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-wide Financial Statements
StetenEntor et POSIMION . .o vsa5summim o 5 8 S irmmnoded & et ¥ Seso B8, B4 & KX 5 % 5
statementol ABHVIBEE o cossiimmmes sns 555 ahammvme s ie 8 50 ARG HE§ES
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds . ........... .. ... .. .. ... ...

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net POSITION . . . oo oottt e e e e e et ees

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Governmental Funds . ...ccovviivsoniavmmmssvssnsaanesnss

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities . .......

Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds . ........ ... .. ... ... .. .....

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds .. . ........ .. .. ... ...

Statement of Cash Flows - ProprietaryFunds .. ........... .. ... ... ... ..
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds .. ...................

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds ............

Page

2-4

5-13

14-15

16

17-18

19

20



TABLE OF CONTENTS - CONTINUED

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Avtual and Budget-- General Funid . » s cvomvssssassssamasin i snes s i s homs
Notes to Financial Statements . .o oo vvn v mos v s s e s m s mmams s s 5556 as

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

City of Covington Pension Plan - Schedule of Changes in Net

Pension Liability and Related Ratios ........... ... ...,
City of Covington Pension Plan - Schedule of Contributions . ..............

City of Covington Pension Plan - Schedule of Investment Returns .. ........

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and
Related Ratios Based on Participation in the Public Employee

Pension Plan of TCRS .. ..ot e e e e e e

Schedule of Contributions Based on Participation in the Public

Employee Pension Plan of TCRS . ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... .........

Covington Electric System’s Defined Benefit Plan - Schedule

of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios ..................

Covington Electric System’s Defined Benefit Plan - Schedule

o Contribubions: ; s s somamame v e o555 smmmEe £ 5 5 § 655 G BRI S 5T 536G B R

Covington Electric System’s Defined Benefit Plan - Schedule of

Investment RetUrns . .. oo oot e e e e e e e e e
COMBINING FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds .. .............

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Nonmajor Governmental Funds ........................

SCHEDULES

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Actual and Budget - State Street Aid Fund . ...........................

Page

31-37

38-80

81-82

83

84

85

86

87-88

&9

90

91-93

94-96

97



TABLE OF CONTENTS - CONTINUED

Page
SCHEDULES - CONTINUED

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual and Budget - Airport Fund . ....... .. . .. 98
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual and Budget - Community Development Fund ........................ 99
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual and Budget - Solid Waste/SanitationFund .......................... 100
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual and Budget - Tipton County Museum Fund .. ......... ... ... ........ 101
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual and Budget - Drug Fund .. ... ... . .. e 102
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actoal and Budget- TIIP PUN® . ..ccssmmansosssssprmsomnss srassbnnsanss 103
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual and Budget - Airport Improvements Construction Bond Fund ........... 104
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual and Budget - PBACCTBond Fund .. ..... ... ... .. ... ... ... ..... 105
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual and Budget - General Obligation RefundingBond Fund .. .............. 106
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Actual and Budget - Munford- Cetiietery Fund oo s v s a5 smmmms s nss s 955 amus 107
Bchedule of Expenditures of Pedera]l AWards ....cuvvssss s smmmmmacs s v o s 5 5wams 108
Schedule of Expenditures of State AWATES . . & coovvws s o v om0 o siwmwene s s « 56 5 o 5one 109
Long-Term Debt Principal and Interest Requirements by Year ................. 110-116
Water Fund - Operating Expenses . .............oiuiiiiiiininennnnnnannns 117
Sewer Fund - Operating EXPENSEs «icsvisssaammves sess 38895 3saess ssrasis 118

Gus Utility Fund ~Operating EXPBISES . v - o o5 o vmoem@nas s s a8 58 ono@anss §55 83 119



TABLE OF CONTENTS - CONTINUED

Page
SCHEDULES - CONTINUED
Bio Mass Gasification Fund - Operating Expenses . ......................... 120
Covington Electric System Electric Fund - Operating Expenses . ............... 121
PRODEY TARES & o u o wnweici o ¢ 3 00w 6 0 srmesmionss 2 5 6 % % 5 0 0 % PWasn 5 5 ¥ 8 6§ G VRUE B R G S 80 122
Water Fund - Water Rates and Number of Customers . ....................... 123
Sewer Fund - Sewer Rates and Number of Customers .. ...................... 124
Gas Utility Fund - Gas Rates and Number of Customers . ..................... 125
Covington Electric System Electric Fund - ElectricRates ..................... 126
NONACCOUNTING INFORMATION
AWWA Reporting Worksheet < Unaudited .cvvcovviivansmsvsiciamwmenney 127
AWWA System Attributes and Performance Indicators - Unaudited .. ........... 128
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS . ............cciiiiiiiiiiininn. 129-130
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE .............. 131-133
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ................... 134-141
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS ................... 142

MANAGEMENT’S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN - Unaudited .............. 143-147



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



CITY OF COVINGTON
CITY OFFICIALS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Mayor

Justin Hanson

Aldermen

Minnie Bommer
John E. Edwards
Justin D. Glass
Jere Hadley
Wayne McGowan
Cyburn H. Sullivan IV

Board Members. Covington Electric System

James Baddour
Christy Hayden
Mary Jones
Keith McCalla
Justin D. Glass

Department Heads

Recorder - Treasurer Tina Dunn (CMFO Designee)
General Manager, Covington Electric System Tim Sallee
Comptroller, Covington Electric System Kathy McClinton



FINANCIAL SECTION



Whitehorn

TGnkerSIEY& 110 East Pleasant Avenue ® P.O. Box 369
* Covington, TN 38019

NID Davis, PLLC (901) 476-8275 » (901) 476-0867 FAX

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.wrdcpo_com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Justin Hanson, Mayor
Members of the Board of Aldermen
City of Covington, Tennessee
Covington, Tennessee

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Covington, Tennessee as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Covington, Tennessee’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. We did not audit the financial statements of the
Covington Electric System Electric Fund, which is both a major fund and 39 percent, 39 percent, and
74 percent, respectively, of the assets and deferred outflows of resources, net position, and revenues
of the business-type activities, nor did we audit the financial statements of the Covington Electric
System Defined Benefit Plan and the financial statements of the Covington Electric System 457 plan
which collectively represent 18 percent, 19 percent, and 7 percent, respectively, of the assets, net
position, and revenues/additions to net position of the aggregate remaining fund information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did
not audit the financial statements of the Covington Electric System Electric Fund, which is both a
major fund and 39 percent, 39 percent, and 74 percent, respectively, of the assets and deferred
outflows of resources, net position, and revenues of the business-type activities, nor did we audit the
financial statements of the Covington Electric System Defined Benefit Plan and the financial
statements of the Covington Electric System 457 plan which collectively represent 18 percent, 19
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percent, and 7 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues/additions to net position
of the aggregate remaining fund information. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
Covington Electric System Electric Fund, Covington Electric System Defined Benefit Plan, and
Covington Electric System 457 Plan, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Covington, Tennessee as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison of the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and pension plan schedules as listed in the table of contents
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for



consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Covington, Tennessee’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining fund financial statements, schedules, nonaccounting information,
and management’s corrective action plan are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not arequired part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining fund financial statements, schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In
our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of the
other auditors, the combining fund financial statements, schedules, and the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements

as a whole.

The introductory section, nonaccounting information, and management’s corrective action plan have
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
28,2019, on our consideration of the City of Covington, Tennessee's internal control over financial
reporting and on our and the other auditors tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our and the other auditors testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City of Covington, Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering City of Covington, Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

V4
/t///‘%/rm« M 7 Davii , PLic
Covington, Tennessee
January 28, 2019



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

As management of the City of Covington, we offer readers of the City of Covington’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Covington
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in
dollars.

Financial Highlights

. The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Covington exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$63,277,230 (net position). Of this amount, $19,943,839 (unrestricted net position) may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

. The government’s total net position increased by $2,975,870 during the current fiscal
year.
. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Covington’s governmental funds

reported combined ending fund balances of $3,600,826, an increase of $336,210 from the
prior year. Of the total fund balances, $1,161,610 are unassigned and are available for
spending at the government’s discretion.

. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$1,161,610 or 11% of the total General Fund expenditures.

. The City of Covington’s total long-term debt decreased by $2,235,729 (12%) during the
current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Covington’s
basic financial statements. The City of Covington’s basic financial statements comprise three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Covington’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Covington’s assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the net amount
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Covington is improving or deteriorating.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Covington
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of
Covington include general government, public works, public safety, and health, welfare,
recreation, and education. The business-type activities of the City of Covington include electric,
gas, sewer, bio mass gasification, and water utility operations.

The government-wide financial statements include only the City of Covington itself (known as
the primary government). The City operates electric, gas, sewer, bio mass gasification, and water
utility systems. They are each reported as proprietary funds in the City’s financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14-16 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of
Covington, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of
Covington can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The City of Covington maintains twelve individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheets and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund which is considered
to be a major fund. Data from the other eleven governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Covington adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with

this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-21 and 29-37 of this
report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Covington maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City of Covington uses an enterprise fund to account
for each of its electric, gas, sewer, bio mass gasification, and water operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the electric, gas, sewer, bio mass gasification, and water operations, all of which
are considered to be major funds of the City of Covington.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-28 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.
The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees’ pension plans.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-30 of this report.

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 38-80 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information. Such information consists of
information concerning the City of Covington’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits to its employees.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Required supplementary information can be found on pages 81-90 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds
are presented immediately following the required supplementary information. Combining
nonmajor fund statements can be found on pages 91-96 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Covington, assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $63,277,230 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year.

City of Covington’s Net Position

Governmental Aclivities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Current and other
ASSEIE 0 ivi e vne v ey S 0818495 $ 10,590,414 $ 30,408,906 $ 28.409.099 $ 40,227,401 $ 38,999513
Capital assets ........ 22.168.057 21,584 898 20.671.124 30,240,915 51,839,181 51825813
Total assets ........ 31,986,552 32,175,312 60,080,030 58,650,014 92,066,582 90.825.326
Deferred Outflows . .. 342 562 513.690 342.141 474910 684.703 988.600
Long-term liabilities
outstanding ......... 6,671,170 8.318.908 9.146.170 9.917.097 15.817.340 18,236,005
Other liabilities . ... ... 3.022.923 3.646.708 4.898.133 4.174.936 7.921.056 7.821.644
Total liabilities . .. .. 9.694.093 11.965.616 14.044.303 14.092.033 23.738.396 26.057.649
Deferred inflows . .. ... 5.126.163 4828325 609,496 478.009 5,735,659 5,306,334
Net Position
Net investment in
capital assets ...... 19.685.638 18,996,076 21,853,137 21,995,565 41,538.775 40.99].641
Restricted .. .coix i 1.478.392 1,200,749 316.224 311,781 1.794.616 1,512,530
Unrestricted ....... (3,655,172) (4,301,764) 23,599.011 22.247.536 19,943 839 17,945,772
Total Net Position . . . $ 17.508.858 $ 15.895.061 $ 45.768.372 S 44 554,882 S 63.277.230 $ 60.449943

By far the largest portion of the City of Covington’s net position (66%) reflects its investments in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Covington uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City of Covington’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the City of Covington’s net position (3%), $1,794.616 represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The unrestricted net position of
$19,943,839 may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Covington is able to report positive balances in
all three categories of net position, for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
business-type activities.

The government’s net position increased by $2,975,870 during the current fiscal year.

City of Covington’s Changes in Net Position

Govemnmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenues

Program revenues
Charges for services . $ 2469396 S 2420242 $ 27,742,189 $ 27,490,554 $ 30.211.585 $ 29,910,796
Operating grants and

contributions . ... .. 525,550 463.484 - - 525,550 463484

Capital grants and

contributions . .. . .. 1,126,616 597.947 - - 1.126.616 597,947
General revenues

TAXES curencs o5 wna s 8.983,968 8,795,539 - - 8,983,968 8,795,539

Investment eamings . 42,499 0,552 215.409 67,988 257,908 77,540

Gain (loss) disposal of
capital assets and

insurance proceeds . 81.661 66,050 765 - 82,426 66,050
Miscellaneous . . . . .. 71,324 214,071 413,821 430,619 485.145 644.690
Total revenues . . . 13.301.014 12.566.885 28,372,184 27.989.161 41.673.198 40.556.046
Expenses
General government . 1.599.945 3.152.166 - - 1,599,945 3,152,166
Public works . .... .. 2.539.288 2,616,649 - - 2,539,288 2.616.649
Public safety ....... 5.634.225 5.805,597 - - 5,634,225 5,805,597

Health, welfare,
recreation, &

education . . ....... 2.150.850 1,765,400 - - 2.150.850 1,765,400
Interest on long-term
debt ............. 74,229 65,334 - - 74,229 65.334
WHE .« i cos s0m smavem - - 1,418,797 1,.354.936 1.418.797 1,354,936
BEWRE  wonaz o s - - 2,064,535 1,921,002 2.064,535 1,921,002
ST it o o e s - - 2.671.152 2,555,336 2,671,152 2,555 336
Biomass .......... - - 165,874 151,950 165,874 151,950
Electric — - - 20.378.433 20.898.015 20,378.433 20.898.015
Total expens - 11,998,537 13.405.146 26.698.791 26.881.239 38.697.328 40.286.385
Change in net position
before transfers ... ... 1,302,477 (838.261) 1,673,393 1,107.922 2.975.870 269,661
Transters . ;o v mvans = 459903 561,217 (459,903) (561.217) - -
Change in net position . 1,762,380 (277,044) 1,213,490 546,705 2,975,870 269,661
Net position -
beginning, as restated . 15.746.478 16,172.105 44,554 882 44.008.177 60,301,360 60.180.282

Net position - ending $ 17.508.858 $ 15.895.061 $ 45.768.372 $ 44.554.882 $ 63.277.230 S 60.,449.943

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased City of Covington’s net position by
§1,762,380, thereby accounting for 59% of the increase in the net position of the City of
Covington.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Covington’s net position
by $1.213.,490, accounting for 41% of the increase in the total government’s net position.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Covington uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Covington’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City of Covington’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Covington’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $3,600,826 an increase of $336,210 from the prior year. Of
the total fund balances, $1,161,610 are unassigned.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Covington. At the end of the current
fiscal year, the fund balance of the General Fund was $2,093,486 of which $1,161,610 is
unassigned. Unassigned fund balance represents 12% of total General Fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the City of Covington’s General Fund increased by $190,027 during the
current fiscal year. Revenues were below projected revenues in the amount of $595,358.

Proprietary Funds: The City of Covington’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Water Fund:

The unrestricted net position of the Water Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to
$3,395,964. The system’s net position increased by $495,488. Significant contributing factors
were (1) revenues increased from last year by $27,678 due to a water rate increase and new
customers, and (2) there was a significant decrease in expenses from last year.

Sewer Fund:

The unrestricted net position of the Sewer Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to
$3,184,572. The system’s net position increased by $290,303. Significant contributing factors
were (1) revenues were $107,373 above the prior year due to a rate increase, and (2) expenses
decreased from last year by $246,912.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Gas Utility Fund:

The unrestricted net position of the Gas Utility Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to
$10,033,299. The system’s net position increased by $153,695. Significant contributing factors
were (1) revenues increased due to correction of billing error, and (2) expenses decreased due to
better management of gas purchases.

Electric System’s Electric Fund:

The unrestricted net position of the Electric Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to
$6,978.463. The system’s net position increased by $242,982.

Bio Mass Gasification Fund:

The unrestricted net position of the Bio Mass Gasification Fund at the end of the fiscal year
amounted to $6,713. The system’s net position increased by $31,022. There were no significant
changes from last year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the fiscal year, there was an amendment to our General Fund budget to decrease
expenditures by $2,488,000. The actual total revenues versus the final budgeted total revenues
was negative by $595,358 and the actual total expenditures versus the total final budgeted
expenditures was positive by $1,440,173. The actual change in fund balance versus the final
budgeted change in fund balance was positive by $1,055,677.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Covington’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business type activities as of June 30, 2018, amounts to $51,839,181 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements,
equipment, infrastructure, distribution and collection systems, and construction in progress. The
City of Covington’s investment in capital assets for Governmental Activities is $22,168,057,
(43%) and for Business-Type Activities is $29,671,124, (57%).

11



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

City of Covington’s Capital Assets

(net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
VAT oo sy sy s < S 3.246.197 $ 3.246,197 $ 400.096 $  400.096 § 3.646,293 $ 3.646.293
Buildings ........... 3,674,829 2,460,526 5.649.149 5,962,788 9323978 8423314
Improvements . ... .... 7.649.156 7.291.886 - - 7.649.156 7.291.886
Equibment’ ... oo conss 4 2,939,029 2.817,743 874296 501,221 3,813,325 3.318.964
Infrastructure .. .... .. 4.658.846 4,786,351 - - 4.658.846 4,786,351
Unamortized acquisition
adjustment .. ... ..... - 100,684 124,848 100,684 124,848
Biomass plant .. ...... - 1 888,016 1,977,744 1,888,016 1,977,744
Distribution and
collection systems . ... - - 20,639,002 21,267,160 20,639,002 21,267,160
Construction in
progress .. .. .. e - 982.195 119.881 7.058 119,881 989.253

Total ............. $ 22.168.057 $ 21,584.898 $ 29.671,124 $ 30,240915 $ 51,839,181 $ 51.825.813

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

In the Governmental Activities, Covington Civic Center improvements and airport
improvements were completed.

Additional information on the City of Covington’s capital assets can be found in note 5 of this

report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Covington has total long-term
debt of $16,991,880. Of this amount, $7,168,419 comprises debt backed by the full faith and
credit of the government, $3,077,214 represents bonds and notes secured by specified revenue
sources (i.e., revenue bonds), and $6,746,247 represents estimated liabilities for employee

pension plan and compensated absences.

City of Covington’s Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
General Obligation Bonds,
Notes and Leases . .. .. $ 2482419 $ 2,588,822 $ 4,686,000 S 4,856,000 § 7.168.419 S 7.444 822
Pension/Compensated
ADSRHERS i v sy 4,734,459 5.998.341 1,758,365 2.149.826 6.492.824 8,148,167
Notes Payable .. ...... - - - 3.813 - 3.813
Revenue Bonds . . .. ... - - 3.077.214 3.377.384 3.077.214 3.377.384

T8l s s swsaiams 5 $ 7216878 $ 8587.163 $ 9521.579 $ 10,387,023 $ 16,738.457 $ 18,974,186

The City of Covington’s total long—term debt decreased by $1,982,306, (12%) during the current

fiscal year.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The City has no legal debt limit. Additional information on the City of Covington’s long-term
debt can be found in note 6 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the general fund decreased to
$1,161,610. The City of Covington has projected a $320,991 deficit in the 2018-19 fiscal year
budget.

Local option sales tax collections are projected to remain constant.

Water and sewer rates will increase by 2.1% in FY 2018-19 beginning with July
consumption.

Natural gas rates will increase or decrease on a monthly basis according to the wholesale cost
of gas to the City.

There will be a 1% COLA raise to full time employees and salary increases to various
employees to bring salaries to mid-point levels according to their skill level.

The Transportation Alternative Project for the Frazier Park Neighborhood Connector Project
will be completed.

The TDOT Grant for the James Street Project will continue.

The 2018 Transportation Alternatives Program Grant will begin with Phase 1 for the
construction of sidewalks along the west side of Hwy 51 from Tatlock Avenue to Lanny
Bridges Road and along east side of Hwy 51 from Lanny Bridges to TN College of Applied
Technology.

The Site Development Grant will be used to extend the water line for the Rialto Industrial
Park.

The 2018 CDBG will be used for a sewer system rehabilitation.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Covington’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed
to the Recorder-Treasurer, 200 West Washington Avenue, P.O. Box 768, Covington, TN 38019.
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Inventories
Prepayments and other assets . .............
Restricted assets

CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Accountsreceivable . ..................
Property taxes
Due from Tipton County, Tennessee . . .. ..
Due from State of Tennessee .. ..........
Grantsreceivable . ....................
Other

Clash fordebbservies ;s v s snwevsaes vy ss
Cash for construction . . . ...............
Customer deposits ....................
NEt pERBION G986E o v < 2 2 o x » s 5 5 « 0 2«

Capital assets,net . ......................

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

PENSIONS ¢ « s ¢ v ssvsm o b 6 % 4 5 5 & % sns o o 4 5

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

See notes to financial statements

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

TOTAL

$ 4,632,464

$ 26,861,178

$ 31,493,642

188,471 2,715,497 2,903,968
2,700,492 . 2,700,492
428,945 . 428,945
440,983 ’ 440,983
141,182 - 141,182
1,228,683 653 1,229,336
50,765 277,194 327,959

- 208,678 208,678

: 323,785 323,785

, 32 32

5 20,655 20,655

6,510 1,234 7,744
22,168,057 _29.671.124 _51.839.181
31.986.552 _ 60.080.030 _ 92.066.582
342,562 342,141 684,703

$32329.114

$ 60,422,171

$92.751.285




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED

LIABILITIES

ACCOUNtS PAVADIE « & - o snpmn v o g svmaa s e
ACCTICELEXPENSES - wnvumswn « 5 % x & « commsmm «
Utility customer deposits . .................
Internal balances: . . cocoin s s o0 cummmnn o

Unearned revenue

Grants . ... ...

Compensated absences

Due withinoneyear ...................
Due in more thanoneyear .............

Net pension liability - due in

MOre thafione VOar cume s s s 5 v oomne 56 ¢ 4

Bonds, notes, and capital lease obligations

D Withifi ONEVEar .. us.vamummer i
Due in more thanone year .............
TOTAL LIABILITIES .............

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues

Property TaXES s w n # v 5 orvsomes 5% 5 s %
Payments in lien of taxes ............
BONSIONS - » o comsoomns = w5« w womsenmsem « % % x o

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES ...............

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets . ...........

Restricted for

SLECCLERPEHSES: s v 5 5 # = w1 compimmmes 5 % & » 505
Solid Waste/Sanitation expenses .........
Drug enforcement . ........... ... .....
Giranits atid donations  « « vowenn 3 55 ¢ 5 8 e
IIEBE SEIVACE civcuiess o 5 5 5 & smmosincn 3 = 5 & 5 8 sinie
Capital 85618 vy o o 5 5 v ¢ sommis 5 5 5 % 2 8 s
PEBSIBIE . v cosmemon + 0 5 % 5 o s % = o o 0 & ue
Perpetual care (nonexpendable) .........
Unrestricted . ..o v v v s v smsmmimm o o s v 2 0 vosinn
TOTAL NET POSITION ...cvvvivassnnn

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,

ANDNET POSITION .................

See notes to financial statements

JUNE 30, 2018

GOVERNMENTAL

BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$ 243999 § 3,809,551 $ 4,053,550
281,549 225,906 507,455
710,719 1,270,758 1,981,477
794,074 (794,074) -
391,749 - 391,749
35,125 - 55,125
- 10,583 10,583
93,797 34,576 128,373
531,514 229,350 760,864
4,109,148 1.494,439 5,603,587
451,911 340,833 792,744
2,030,508 7.422.381 9.452.889
9,694,093 14.044.303 23,738,396
2,406,129 - 2,406,129
985,048 - 985,048
1,734,986 609,496 2,344 482
5.126.163 609.496 5,735,659
19,685,638 21,853,137 41,538,775
131,411 - 131,411
864,340 - 864,340
40,386 - 40,386
112,506 - 112,506
1,033 314,998 316,031
- 32 32
5,678 1,194 6,872
323,038 % 323,038
(3.655.172) 23.599.011 19.943.839
17,508,858 45,768,372 63.277,230
$§ 32329114 § 60422171 § 92,751,285




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PROGRAM REVENUES NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Governmental activities
General govenment .................. § 1.599945 S - 5 - $ - $ (1,599.945) § - ) (1.599.945)
Publictsafety =« vw-vna e wavsss e o v 5.634.225 352.485 119.802 368.599 (4.793.339) - (4.793.339)
PUblic Works «u o i i swavras wasing o s 2.539.288 1,603,724 321.295 172,618 (441,651) - (441.651)
Health, welfare.
recreation, and education . ... ... .. ... .. 2,150,850 513,187 84,453 585.399 (967.811) - (967.811)
Interest on long-termdebt ... ... ...... 74,229 - - - (74.229) - (74.229)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES ........cc0vnenrens 11,998,537 2.469.396 525,550 1,126.616 (7.876.975) - (7.876,975)
Business-type activities
WREEE oo sie i 7 wrese s s iratars. HR TR S 6% & 1.418.797 1830416 - - - 411.619 411619
SEWEE: 5o o5 b 510, dehom e 8 SRR ST S 2,064,535 2,389.714 - - - 325,179 325,179
TS, 0 TR e S P e N A 5P T 2:671,152 2,745,343 - - - 74,191 74.191
Bio Mass Gasification . ... ............. 165.874 121,093 - * - (44,781) (44.781)
BRGIIG: «on sz wepgprans smsmase saami s 20,378,433 20.655.623 - - - 277,190 277.190
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ................... 26,698,791 27,742,189 - - - 1,043,398 1,043,398
TOTAL GOVERNMENT ......... $ 38697328 S 30211585 § 525,550 % 1.126.616 (1.876.975) 1,043,398 (6.833.577)
GENERAL REVENUES
Taxes
BROPBEY i s vrassium wssins SAsra et Bremiiun ZERaesl 90 Seieoae e o 3.593.962 - 3.593.962
BRIEE oo avs wiiraion ISGRE S RIS BTG D8N T B RS 4,486,268 - 4,486,268
BEVAIERE, o i s Sty 08 e s e, S0 et e R R 832,200 - 832,200
INCOME ..ot et e e e s 71,538 - 71,538
INVESHRERECATDINES « coroms v s sioewm o smmmm D w6 D 42.499 215,409 257.908
Gain on capital assets and insurance proceeds .. ... L. 81,661 765 82,426
Miscellaneous . ... ....otin e e 71,324 413821 485.145
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES . ... .. . ... ......... 9,179,452 629,995 9.809.447
TERANSFERS v i aims v dissii s S Haisis essme ss anle e 459,903 (459.903) -
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS . . .. 9.639.355 170,092 9,809,447
CHANGE INNETPOSITION .................0oo00. 1.762.380 1,213,490 2,975.870
NET POSITION
Balance at July 1. 2017, asrestated ........................ 15,746,478 44,554 882 60,301,360
Balane:at June 300 20EB: 5 oo oo sim s wrove smmsm son snace waress $ 17508858 S 45768372 S 63.277.230

See notes to financial statements



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018
OTHER TOTAL
GOVERN- GOVERN-
MENTAL MENTAL
GENERAL FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and:cashrequivalents ...uu ..o svmves s, $ 2,849,855 $ 1,782,609 $ 4,632,464
Receivables
Accounts receivable . ... ... ... ... .. .. - 188,471 188,471
Property taxes .......................... 2,700,492 - 2,700,492
Due from Tipton County, Tennessee ........ 428,945 - 428,945
Due from State of Tennessee . ............. 387,750 53,233 440,983
Grants reeetable « - i s 5% ¢ ¢ en s 5 0 0 s 82,562 58,620 141,182
Other ... .. 1,194,992 33,691 1,228,683
BV OTICS i 51 5 5 & % somsmnis % © © & ¢ CEEETRIES % % 5 5 2 30,239 20,526 50,765
Due fromotherfunds ...................... 31,571 17.330 48.901
TOTAL ASSETS . ........ ... .. ... .... $ 7,706,406  § 2,154480 $ 9.860.886
LIABILITIES
Aveountepayable . ey v 5 vowsess 2 v i 5w $ 84,597 § 159400 § 243,997
Accrued exXpenses . ... 237.554 12,628 250,182
Utility customier deposits: .« s o« pvmvwn e 5008 5 710,719 - 710,719
Duetootherfunds ............ ... ......... 322,710 8,761 331,471
Unearned revenue
Grants .. ...t - 391,749 391,749
e e e T - 55,125 55,125
Advances from other funds .. ........ ... .... 502,031 9.473 511,504
TOTAL LIABILITIES ................. 1,857,611 637.136 2.494.747
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue
Property taxes s = ¢ v 2 wotsins 5 % 5 3 3 P 2,660,850 - 2,660,850
Payments in liecu of taxes ................. 985,048 - 985,048
State INCOMme 1A ou s v 00 pmesn s o v 8 3 2 swpansy 22.322 - 22,322
Grants ... ... - 10,004 10,004
Penalties and interest on property taxes ... ... 87,089 - 87.089
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES . 5 5 ¢ ¢z osoesous 5 5 2 5 ¢ 8 asseniss & 3,755,309 10.004 3:765313

See notes to financial statements




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2018
OTHER TOTAL
GOVERN- GOVERN-
MENTAL MENTAL
GENERAL FUNDS FUNDS
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable ..............ccovviininn.. $ 30,239 § 343,564 $ 373,803
BESITICIE] ; & v uoengs 83 7 b smmand 5 71 5 H40vma s 05,057 1,044,615 1,139,672
CommItted . o . oz o 5 v 0w seveans 5 5 ¢ o owe o - 102,063 102,063
ASSENET ;v dcimnns v 575 banbesi i s Lassns s 806,580 17,098 823,678
Uhrassignetll « coummmmm s 5 = x & s s 3 acwmwmm « 3 1.161.610 - 1.161.610
TOTAL FUND BALANCE ............ 2,093,486 1,507,340 3.600.826
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND
FUND BALANCE ................... S 7,706,406  § 2,154480  $ 9.860,886

See notes to financial statements




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

TOTAL FUND BALANCE -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ..coicvov w00 v v s s x4 505 swmmn $ 3,600,826
AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ARE DIFFERENT BECAUSE:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental
Honide balaneesshest, .z oommmme s 855055 SR B £ 8 285 5 5 E B L5 55 5 e 22,168,057
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions in which the
consumption of net position will occur in a future period; therefore,
it 1s not reported in governmental funds balancesheet . ... .. ... .......... 342,562
Net pension asset is not a financial resource and therefore is not
reported in the governmental funds balance sheet . ..................... 6,510
Interest payable on long term debt does not require current
financial resources. Therefore interest payable is not reported as
a liability in the governmental funds balancesheet. ..................... (31,3606)
Deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable revenues are not
available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore are
deferred in the governmental funds balancesheet ...................... 374,133
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions in which the
acquisition of net position will occur in a future period; therefore,
it is not reported in governmental funds balancesheet . .................. (1,734,986)
Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the governmental funds balance shieet. oo icisssmmisssossasnius (2,482,419)
Compensated absences and net pension liability are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the governmental funds balancesheet. ........... ... ... ... ... ... (4.734.459)
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES .............. $ 17.508.858

See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES

Local taxes
Lycenses and Petmiits : sassammessi s sa0as
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Fines, forfeits; and penalties ...... 0054
Other revenues

TOTAL REVENUES . ..ouviseocsssun

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Publicsafety ........................
Publicworks ........................
Health, welfare, recreation and education . .
DEBESERICE [ oot s 5155 b piiar 8 ERa 143
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES ..............

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TranSTersift « « .« womcwme o v v v 4 % wowmswoce = v % v 2
Proceeds from capital leases ..............
Proceeds from capital asset sales
and INSUFANCE . . .....ovvtvninanne.nn
Transfersout ............... ... ........
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) ... ovvvvnmnmnnsis

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .. ... ..

FUND BALANCE

Balance at July 1, 2017, as restated . . . ... . ..

Balance at June 30,2018 . ................

See notes to financial statements

OTHER TOTAL
GOVERN- GOVERN-
MENTAL MENTAL
GENERAL FUNDS FUNDS

$ 8,009,131 - $ 8,009,131
102,134 - 102,134
1,357,772 1317498 2,675,270
256,924 1,881,627 2,138,551
151,160 12,789 163,949
75.021 57.952 132,973
9.952.142 _ 3.269.866 _13.222.008
1,733,516 - 1,733,516
6,395,717 86,060 6,481,777
864219 1,689,703 2,553,922
995,408 1,532,760  2,528.168
108.576 239.423 347.999
10.097.436 _ 3.547.946 _13.645.382
(145.294) _ (278.080) __ (423.374)
541,320 330,657 871,977
127,999 61,017 189,016
56,913 53,752 110,665
(390.911) (21,163) __ (412,074)
335321 424,263 759.584
190,027 146,183 336,210
1,903,459 _ 1.361.157 _ 3.264.616

$ 2093486 $ 1.507.340 § 3.600.826
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS . . . .ttt aiir s sieir o memr n aimie o meis s s seie s oes s seie o ns

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
ARE DIFFERENT BECAUSE:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,

in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over

their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
Capital:antlaysreapitalized: .x < cam v son 5 oem 5 s v e o smm v wem o mes sew s sate 1w o e
DISprociatiGNBRPOISE i v suv 3 pas v sam v e o pE & a0 8 S0F § B0 Famip B95F S0 § BED © TG

In the statement of activities, only the gain/loss on the disposition of

capital assets is reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the

proceeds from the disposition increase financial resources. Thus

the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance

by the net cost of the capital @ssets . ... ... . it

The issuance of long term debt provides current financial resources

to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long

term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.
PIOBEEHY » wouric smsm o swom v o o s 5on0ns @ 0% s TaARE @ o SIS RIS PR T PEN § M § 9 0
PHAGIHAL GANIEIE 5 s ¢ ivow 2 s v gams gams 0300 vaes S90E S We 4 Be & 000 & A

The amount of expense for compensated absences reported in the
statement of activities is more than the amount reported as expenditures
ingovernmental fUNds. . ... ...

The amount of expense for pension cost reported in the statement of
activities is less than the amount reported as expenditures in
overmmetal TAS: . wen oo o mum 6 o 5 oo - w0 aom 8 B % S 8 SR SRS SR T T K T

Some property tax and other revenues do not provide current financial

resources and are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the

governmental funds. This is the net difference between the amounts

deferredin the Current ANd PIIOT WEAG: « ¢ v s svs 3 5w & smme s w50 & 9 § 1es & 5an 8 S50 § 50 03

Accrued interest expense related to long term debt is reported in the

statement of activities, but does not require the use of current financial

resources; therefore, this item is not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds. This is net difference between the amounts

accrued in the current and prior YEar. . .. ... ...t e

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ..............

See notes to financial statements

1,846,605
(1.234,442)

(29,004)

(189.,016)
295,419

(48,847)

809,760

(2,658)

(21.647)

3 1.762,380



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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COVINGTON
ELECTRIC
GAS BIO MASS SYSTEM
WATER SEWER UTILITY  GASIFICATION ELECTRIC
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents . ..... $ 3.884.448 §$ 3.486.241 $ 9,851,983 § 6,713 § 9,631,793 § 26,861,178
Receivables
Trade ............cooiin. 232,222 263,721 138,472 - 2,081,082 2,715,497
CHNEE .ovcr 5 svriies s s s 00 - 269 - - 384 653
Due from other funds . .. ....... - 45,099 373,685 - - 418,784
InVentories « oo oo sas 08 Brses 5 5 26,457 6,836 19,223 - 224,678 277,194
Prepayments and other
current assets . .............. - - - - 188.668 188.668
TOTAL CURRENT
ASSETS ... .............. 4,143,127 3,802,166 10,383,363 6.713 12,126,605 30,461,974
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
on deposit
Debtservice .............. - - - - 323,785 323,785
Construction . ............. - 32 - - - 32
Customer deposits . ... ...... - - - - 20,655 20,655
NEtHERSTON G886t vumuos wp sy 5 399 434 401 - - 1,234
Total Restricted
SRR, - o o v s 399 466 401 - 344.440 345,706
Capital Assets
Not being depreciated
Land, land rights
and improvements ......... 12,015 51,191 116,178 - 220,712 400,096
Construction in process . ... .. 10.125 46.609 - - 63.147 119.881
22,140 97,800 116,178 - 283,859 519,977
Being depreciated
Buildings . ... s cames v st s 3,209.454 10,392,165 927,592 - - 14,529,211
Distribution and collection
QUBHEING cocom o wismens s i 9,432,487 13,298,070 2,110,577 - 12,792,200 37,633,334
General plant s o o, s os 90 - - - - 6,636,755 6,636,755
Transmission plant ... ...... - - - - 2,161.810 2,161,810
BioMassplant ............ - - - 2,243,189 - 2,243,189
EQUIPient e o wn v s wews 214,787 845,269 534,077 78,374 - 1,672,507
Unamortized acquisition
adjustment .. ............. - - - - 241,642 241,642
Less accumulated
depreciation/amortization .. . (8.700.774) (13.356.834) _(2,620.372) (390.440) (10,898.881) (35.967.301)
Total Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation/ _
Amortization .......... 4,178,094 11,276,470 1,068,052 1,931,123 11,217,385 29,671,124
Other Assets
Unamortized debt expense . . .. .. - - - - 11.694 11,694
Advances to other funds ....... - - 512,224 - - 512,224
Other oo “ - - - 6,165 6,165
Advances to customers - home
WSHIAHON v v s o5 wesin a5 i - - - - 2,151 2.151
Total Other Assets . .. ...... - - 512,224 - 20.010 532.234
TOTAL NONCURRENT
ASSETS' .iuvn e vvs oa i 4.178.493 11.276.936 1,580,697 1,931,123 11.581.835 30.549.064

See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2018
BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COVINGTON
ELECTRIC
GAS BIO MASS SYSTEM
WATER SEWER UTILITY GASIFICATION ELECTRIC
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
PEHSIBIE o us v 5 sn oy wians $ 28675 § 32,906 $ 30,257 $ - $ 250303 § 342,141
TOTAL ASSETS AND
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES ...... § 8350295 § 15112008 § 11,994.297 § 1937836 § 23,958,743 §$ 61.353.179
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable . . ........... $ 41,028 § 67,631 § 281,304 % - § 3419588 § 3,809,551
Acorued eXPenses v o v ws v 77.896 8,182 38,756 - 77,923 202,757
Payroll and other taxes ........ 9,076 10,290 (5,004) - - 14,362
Current maturities of long-term
8Bt o wvas o snm o someE W s 18,046 124,787 - 173,000 - 315,833
Dueto otherfunds ............ 126.263 10,500 137 - = 136,934
Customer deposits ............ - - - - 1,250,103 1,250,103
Current portion of compensated
ABEBACEY o wae s warrane i wass 2 5 6,608 7325 10.556 - 10,027 34.576
TOTAL CURRENT
LIABILITIES 5o v v 5 o 278,977 228.715 325,783 173,000 4,757,641 5,764,116
CURRENT LIABILITIES
PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED
ASSETS
Customer deposits ............ - - - - 20,655 20,655
Accrued interest . .. .. ..., ... . - - - - 8,787 8,787
Current maturities of long-term
QBB won v U P Sl T T - - - - 125.000 125.000
TOTAL CURRENT
LIABILITIES PAYABLE
FROM RESTRICTED
ASSETS .wwn v s oo aaigs - - - - 154.442 154.442
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds payable, less
CUTTENt MatuFities « o un v sa o 919,828 3,949,553 - 1,748,000 705,000 7,322,381
Unamortized bond premium
(OISEOMAL) s o cne w50 s ze s - 15,052 - - (6,888) 8,164
Advances-home insulation
Program ................... - - - - 2419 2,419
Net pension liability .......... 351,043 406,588 373,621 - 362,587 1,494,439
Compensated absences, less
CUment portion wuowas vn s s o 37.784 41,506 59.818 - 90,242 229.350
TOTAL NONCURRENT
LIABILITIES . ........... 1,309,255 4.412.699 433439 1.748.000 1,153,360 9.056,753
TOTAL LIABILITIES . . ... 1,588,232 4.641.414 759,222 1,921,000 6,065,443 14.975.311
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
PEOSIONS : veawnss as s o wwigsn e 125,493 145.101 133.336 - 205,566 609.496

See notes to financial statements



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2018

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COVINGTON
ELECTRIC
GAS BIO MASS SYSTEM
WATER SEWER UTILITY  GASIFICATION ELECTRIC
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets .. $ 3,240,220 § 7,140,469 § 1,068,052 § 10,123 $ 10,394,273 § 21,853,137

Restricted for debt service ... .. - - - - 314,998 314,998

Restricted for construction . . . . .. - 32 - - - 32

Restricted for pension ......... 386 420 388 - - 1,194

Unrestricted .. ............... 3,395,964 3,184,572 10.033.299 6213 6.978.463 23.599.011
TOTAL NET POSITION . . . 6,636.570 10,325,493 11,101,739 16.836 17,687,734 45,768,372

TOTAL LIABILITIES,

DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES, AND

NET POSITION ............ $ 8,350,295 $15.112.008 $11.994297 § 1937836 § 23958743 S 61.353.179

See notes to financial statements



OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous: o ms v s e s

TOTAL OPERATING
REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purification
Transmission and distribution . .
Operations expense
Collection
Treatment and disposal
Purchased gas and power
General and administrative
Maintenance expense
THREE . rssre am. o 1o wame woas
Depreciation and amortization . .

TOTAL OPERATING
EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME ... ...
NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)
Interest earned and other
revenue
Othier expenses . .. . sen aw v

Gain on disposal of capital assets ...

Interest expense
TOTAL NONOPERATING

REVENUES (EXPENSES) . ...

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
TRANSFERS . ...............
TRANSFERS
Transfers in
Transfers out
NET TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION ..

NET POSITION
Balance at July 1. 2017

Balance at June 30, 2018

See notes to financial statements

CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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COVINGTON
ELECTRIC
GAS BIO MASS SYSTEM
WATER SEWER UTILITY GASIFICATION ELECTRIC
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS
... $1,830416 $ 2,389,714 $2,745343 § 121,093 § 20,655,623 § 27,742,189
. 82,733 15,509 18.212 - 297,367 413.821
o G 1.913.149 2.405.223 2,763,555 121,093 20,952,990 28.156.010
srm s 402,199 - - - - 402,199
. 524,468 - 480,013 - = 1,004,481
S - - - 23,127 1,860,611 1,883,738
- 241,219 - - - 241.219
e - 702,384 - - - 702,384
s - - 1,643,177 - 17,112,807 18,755,984
e 229,066 357,113 454,380 = - 1,040,559
S - - - - 532,120 532,120
o s - - - - 97,061 97,061
) e 223.141 625.685 93,582 97,565 729.682 1,769.655
et 1.378.874 1,926,401 2,671,152 120,692 20,332,281 26.429.400
3 e 534,275 478,822 92,403 401 620.709 1,726,610
I s 37,236 33,145 110,527 15 34,486 215.409
R - - - - (9,833) (9,833)
- - 765 - - 765

T (39.923) (138.134) - (45.182) (36.319) (259.558)

(2.687) (104.989) 111,292 (45.167) (11,666) (53.217)
S 531,588 373,833 203,695 (44.760) 609.043 1,673.393
s in - - = 75,788 - 75.788
— (36.100) (83.530) (50.000) - (3606,061) (535.691)
B (36.100) (83.530) (50.000) 75.788 (366.061) (459.903)
SR 495,488 290,303 153,695 31,022 242982 1,213,490
v 6.141.082 _10.035.190 _10.948.044 (14.186) _ 17.444.752 44.554.882

$ 6.636.570

$10,325.493 $11.101.739 §

16836 § 17.687.734

$ 45.768.372




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COVINGTON
ELECTRIC
GAS BIO MASS SYSTEM
WATER SEWER UTILITY GASIFICATION ELECTRIC
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers . ... $ 2,054450 § 2,384,007 § 2644314 § 121,093 $20.938,782 § 28,142,640
Cash payments to suppliers
for goods and services ......... (738.113)  (826,557) (2.053,282) (23.,127) (19,106,083) (22,747.162)
Cash payments to employees Included
TOPSETVICRS wos s o s oo v wai - (290,316) (346,742) (454.,424) (63,287) above (1,134,769)
Cash payments to General Fund
for share of jointcosts ......... (92,897) (78.897) (101,297 - - (273,091)
Cash payments to General Fund
for payments in leu of taxes
(transfers) ................... (36,100) (96,100) (50,000) - (366,061) (548.261)
Cash payments for other taxes .. .. (16,287) (30,034) (38,930) (894) (97,061) (183.206)
Customer deposits received . ... .. - - - - 365,890 365,890
Customer deposits refunded ... .. - - - - (308.225) (308.225)
NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES s v con i vs i 880,737 1,005,677 (53.619) 33.785 1,427,242 3,293.822
CASH FLOWS FROM
NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
TEANSTRFIR & o om0 5 50 o & - - - 75,788 - 75,788
(Decrease) in advances
TEOIM TVA wwe s 5w v 5 S w0 - - - - (3,003) (3,003)
NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES . - - - 75.788 (3.003) 72,785
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of
CAPILALASEELS »ox o vas v v wiw s (171.814) (444.271) (70,773) - (507,880)  (1.194,738)
Disposal of capital assets . ....... - - 765 - 58,422 59,187
Plant removal costs . ... vwusn - - - - (34,721) (34,721)
Materials salvaged from
PEHTCHICIIS i ais wmovnse von sosssss - - - - 20,202 20,202
Principal paid on capital debt . . .. (156,295) (127,688) - (70,000) (120,000) (473.,983)
Interest and fees paid on
capiabdebt . oon o v san an s (41.946) (139,548) - (45.182) (37.489) (264,165)
NET CASH (USED)
BY CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES : o vonsns sa aan (370.055) (711,507) (70.008) (115,182) (621.466) _ (1.888.218)

See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COVINGTON
ELECTRIC
GAS BIO MASS SYSTEM
WATER SEWER UTILITY GASIFICATION ELECTRIC
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Investment income .. ........... $ 37236 $ 33,145 § 110527 § 5 % 34486 § 215409
Decrease in advances
tootherfunds ................ - - 321,082 - - 321,082
(Expenses) for other nonoperating
ERIVETIRES o5 o s i S 5. - - - - (9.833) (9,833)
(Increase) in other assets .. ...... - - - - (1,350) (1,350)
Decrease in conservation
[OBHS pn vn sy aw ames v eaezs 2 - - - - 3.003 3.003
NET CASH PROVIDED
BY INVESTING
ACTINITIES: ... .. .: comsie 37,236 33,145 431.609 15 26,306 528311
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS . o sv on o smina 547,918 327,315 307,982 (5,594) 829,079 2,006,700
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Beginningofyear ............. 3.336.530 3.158.958 9.544.001 12,307 9,126,499 25.178.295
Endiofyear .. owvs s smsws sm s $ 3884448 § 3486273 §$ 9.851983 § 6713 § 9955578 § 27.184.995
RECONCILIATION OF ENDING
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO LINE ITEMS IN STATEMENT
OF NET POSITION
Unrestricted cash and
cash equivalents ........c...... $ 3.884.448 §$ 3486241 § 9,851,983 § 6,713 % 9,631,793 $ 26,861,178
Restricted cash and cash
EOUIVAIEHES! oy o o smceiamains v - 32 - - 323.785 323817
Cash and cash equivalents ... .. .. § 3.884448 § 3486273 § 9.851983 § 6,713 § 9955578 § 27.184.995

See notes to financial statements



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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COVINGTON
ELECTRIC
GAS BIO MASS SYSTEM
WATER SEWER UTILITY GASIFICATION ELECTRIC
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Operating income  ............. $ 534275 § 478822 § 92403 $ 401§ 620,709 $ 1,726,610
Adjustments to reconcile net
operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization . 223,141 625,685 93,582 97,565 731,107 1,771,080
Transfer (O} . ... o cncisans (36,100) (83,530) (50,000) - (366,061) (535.691)
Bad debts (recoveries) .. ...... (3.580) (5,847 887 - - (8.540)
Net change in pension deferred
inflows/outflows . .......... 24,706 31,483 27.446 - 51,334 134,969
Changes in assets and liabilities
Receivables . ............ 33,014 29,289 (63.968) - (14,208) (15,273)
INVBILOLY o wu soes v waion & 10,833 928 6,975 - 21,554 40,290
Prepayments and other
CURTENTASEEIS Y o wre s s & - - - - (19,240) (19,240)
Accounts payable, accrued
expenses, and payroll and
OthEFEAREE & i v v s wois 38,153 (14,857) (39,075) (894) 344373 327,700
Compensated absences
and pension benefits ... ... (91.454) (90,598) (81.845) - - (263.897)
Interfund accounts . ....... 147,155 34,302 (40.024) (63,287) - 78.146
Customer deposits ........ - - - - 57.674 57.674

NET CASH PROVIDED
(USED) BY OPERATING
AETIVITIES' . .= sos snass a6 55

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPIT

.. § 880,737 $ 1005677 $ (53.619) § 33785 § 1.427.242

AL

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Liabilities incurred for acquisitio
of capital assets . ............

See notes to financial statements

n

e B - 8 46609 § = 3 - $ -
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018
TRUST FUNDS
COVINGTON
ELECTRIC
CITY OF SYSTEM COVINGTON
COVINGTON DEFINED ELECTRIC
PENSION BENEFIT SYSTEM
FUND PLAN 457 PLAN TOTALS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents .. ... $ 1,926,037 § 95714 § - $ 2,021,751
Ievestmenle oo oo 58 s mmwns g s e 13.471.544 3325493 473,190 17.270,227
TOTAL ASSETS ........... $ 15.397.581 $3.421.207 $ 473,190 $19.291.978
LIABILITIES
Due to brokers .............. $§ 539,188 § - $ - §  539.188
NET POSITION
Restricted for pension benefits . . 14.858.393 _ 3.421.207 473.190 _ 18,752,790
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION ............... $15397.581 §$ 3421207 §% 473,190 $19.291.978

See notes to financial statements



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

TRUST FUNDS

COVINGTON
ELECTRIC
CITY OF SYSTEM COVINGTON
COVINGTON DEFINED ELECTRIC
PENSION BENEFIT SYSTEM
FUND PLAN 457 PLAN TOTALS
ADDITIONS
Contributions - employer ... ... $ 1.416.000 $ 146.866 $ 40928 § 1.603.794
Investment earnings
Net increase (decrease) in
fair value of investments . ... 1,320,287 186,617 18,364 1,525,268
Dividends and interest ...... 214.697 60.074 - 274,771
Total investment earnings . . 1,534,984 246.691 18.364 1.800.039
TOTAL ADDITIONS . . ... 2,950,984 393.557 59.292 3.403.833
DEDUCTIONS
Benehts piid .. oo v oo tiecmiin o 860,520 119,767 11,300 991,587
Administrative expenses ... ... 99.421 27.584 - 127.005
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS .. ... 959,941 147.351 11.300 1,118,592
CHANGE IN NET POSITION . ... 1.991.043 246.206 47.992 2.285.241
NET POSITION
Balance at July 1,2017 ........ 12.867.350 _ 3.175.001 425,198 _ 16,467.549
Balance at June 30, 2018 ...... $ 14.858.393 § 3.421.207 $§ 473.190 $ 18.752.790

See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018
VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Local taxes
Property taxes . oo s o o v 5o S - $ - $ 2377454 § =
Interest and penalty ........... - - 39,869 -
Payments in lieu of taxes ....... - - 1,089,522 -
Local salestax ............... - - 3,706,714 s
Wholesale beertax ............ - - 401,136 -
Wholesale liquortax .......... - - 86,498 -
BRSTHESS FaXES evnm 5 5 ¥ bisatinag - - 247,131 -
Franchisefees ... ............. - = 60.807 =
8.215.000 8,215,000 8,009,131 (205.869)
Licenses and permits ........... 33.100 33.100 102.134 69.034
Intergovernmental revenues
TVA payment in lieu of taxes ... - - 102,486 -
State law enforcement and fire
protection expense
reimbursements . ............. - - 32,400 -
5500 et ) R, - - 37,675 -
Stategrants . ................. - - 141,840 -
Tipton County grants and
reimbursements . ............. - - 80,503 -
State Balestay 5 svvwvinnsy s - - 770,260 -
State telecommunications
salestax .................... - - 9,294 -
State incometax .............. - - 39,223 -
State beertay «u v v vvsamms soes 3 - - 4,216 -
State mixed drink tax .......... - - 32,411 -
State special petroleum tax .. ... - - 18,214 -
State highway maintenance ... .. - - 52,738 -
Stateexcisetax v . cvome sy o5 i - - 29,605 -
OB conms 550 5 vemenimg o8 555 - - 6.907 -
1.811.600 1.811.600 1357772 (453,828)
Charges for services ............ 309,300 309,300 256,924 (52,376)
Fines, forfeits and penalties ...... 125,000 125,000 151,160 26,160
OIhEr TeVENUES 5 v e 4 5 & v 6 1 61,500 53,500 75.021 21521
TOTAL REVENUES ....... 10,555,500 10.547,500 9,952,142 (595.358)

Note: The budgetary basis of accounting is the same as the accounting basis used for fund reporting
purposes.

See notes to financial statements



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Board of Aldermen
Personal services .. .......... - - $ 190,819 § -
Contractual services ......... - - 31,779 -
Fixed CHArBes . oowunsssss o - - 164,622 -
Grants and donations . ....... - - 91,796 -
483,763 483,763 479.016 4,747
City court
Personal services . . .......... 12.000 18.064 17.924 140
Recorder-treasurer
Personal services . ........... - - 417,996 -
Contractual services ......... - - 61,038 -
SUPPLES « 5 5 & 7 s s 5 v pows - - 12,660 -
Bad debt €xpense sanys 200 - - (4,148) -
Capital outlay .............. - - 1,791 -
Reimbursements -
enterprivse Fds <o s o s s - - (141.411) -
381.213 381.213 347,926 33,287
City attorney
Personal services . ........... - - 6,000 -
Contractual services ......... - - 74,332 -
96.000 96.000 80,332 15.668
Purchasing
Personal services . ........... - - 227,459 -
Contractual services ......... - - 15,871 -
SUPPHES « « o womvonmin 5 3 ¢ wonsmmns - - 2,913 -
Capital oBtlay oo s 50 0 s - - 2357 -
Reimbursements - enterprise
funds..................... - - (71.827) 2
196.680 196,680 176,773 19,907
Data processing
Contractual services ......... - - 74,745 -
Capitaloutlay .............. - . 998 -
Reimbursements - enterprise
FUR = o 2 o o spmomms @ 2 o o - - (23,373) -
49,689 55,689 52.370 3.319

Note: The budgetary basis of accounting is the same as the accounting basis used for fund reporting

purposes.

See notes to financial statements



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED
General government - continued
Developmental services

Personal services
Contractual services .......
Supplies
Capital outlay ............
Reimbursements -
enterprise funds oo s ov s

Grounds maintenance
Personal services
Contractual services .......
Supplies
Capital outlay ............

City Hall buildings
Contractual services .......
Supplies
Reimbursements -
enterprise funds . .........

Total general
government
Public Safety
Police
Personal services
Contractual services .......
Supplies
Capital OULIEY w6 5 v 5« 23mn

Fire protection and control
Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies
Capital outlay

Note: The budgetary basis of accounting is the same

purposes.

See notes to financial statements

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

$

134,509
35,144
6,411
37,908

(42.039)

151.449

156.449

171,933

(15.484)

333,785
16,281
20,216

2.666

329,472

320,472

372.948

(43.476)

43,926
1,800

(11.432)

35.491

35.491

34,294

1.197

1,735.757

1,752,821

1.733.516

19,305

2,990,260
235,238
165,895
168,348

6.344.798

3.884.798

3,559,741

325,057

2,502,375
124,390
59,580
34,235

2,615,637

2715637

2,720,580

(4.943)

as the accounting basis used for fund reporting
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED
Public Safety - Continued
Outside fire expenditures
Personal services ......... $ - $ - $ 45400 $ -
Contractual services . ...... - - 3,867 -
SUPOEs :ouivammussss e - - 12,630 -
Capitaloutlay ............ - - 11.898 -
281,462 9].462 73,795 17.667
Civil defense
Contractual services . ...... - - 738 -
SUPPHES & v cosewnszes s ¥ a0 - - 40,863 -
34,750 44.750 41.601 3.149
Total public safety ...... 9,276,647 6.736.647 6,395,717 340.930
Public works
Highways, streets and roadways
Personal services ......... - - 260,034 -
Contractual services ....... - - 61,632 -
Supplies: cwmucis oo vv o vomes - - 30,719 -
Capitaloutlay . ........... - - 222.590 -
1,355.427 1,355.427 574,975 780.452
Street lighting
Contractual services ....... - - 10,144 -
Capital outlay « . ... vovvwsn - - 125 -
15.000 15,000 10,269 4,731
City garage
Personal services ......... = - 190,151 -
Contractual services ....... - - 2527 -
Supplies s w0 v o v ammmmm 5 o - - 13,859 -
Capital outlay < :« v covvns s - - 54,999 -
Reimbursements -
enterprise funds . ......... - - (62.061) -
224.994 224.994 219475 5,519
GIS Department
Fixedicharges ... coomssess 9,350 9.350 5,500 3.850
Cemetery maintenance
Contractual services ....... 2.000 2,000 - 2.000

Note: The budgetary basis of accounting is the same as the accounting basis used for fund reporting
purposes.

See notes to financial statements



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED
Public works - Continued
Industrial development
Contractual services ......
Total public works .. ..
Health, welfare, recreation and
education
Rabies and animal control
Personal services ........
Contractual services .. ....
Supplies ...............

Recreation administration
Personal services ........
Contractual services . ... ..
Fixed charfes .5 . ¢ c so

Recreation centers
Contractual services ......
Playgrounds
Contractual services ... ...
Supplies . ..............
Capitaloutlay . ..........

Swimming pools
Personal services ........
Contractual services ... ...
Supplies ...............
Capital eutlay . . . v cevimsns s

Sportsplex
Personal services ........
Contractual services ......
Supplies ...............
Capital outlay ... .cvovnn.

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

54000 § 54000 § 54000 § 2
1.660.771 1,660,771 864.219 796,552
- - 68,585 -

- . 2,909 -

- - 12.421 -
79.815 99,815 83,915 15.900

- - 97,995 -

- - 7,019 -

- - 1.451 -
107,408 109,408 106.465 2,943
2.000 2.000 833 1.167

- - 56,149 -

8 . 23 -

- - 19,618 -

96270 97.270 75.790 21.480

- - 127,854 -

- - 48,007 -

- - 15,925 -

- - 19.671 -
216.778 216,778 211.457 5,321

- - 308,146 -

- - 71,850 -

- - 18,815 -

- - 31,134 -
401,528 432,528 429,945 2,583

Note: The budgetary basis of accounting is the same as the accounting basis used for fund reporting purposes.

See notes to financial statements



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED

EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED

Health, welfare, recreation and
education - continued
Park security

Personal services ........
SUDBLES s s 5 5 5 2 wamwn o

Municipal Center

Personal services ........
Contractual services ......
BUPPHES v v o v o s
Fixed-chafges :::: covvnss
Capital outlay . ..........

Library

Contractual services ... ...

Total health, welfare,
recreation and

education ...........

Debt service

Principal . .......... ... .. ..
IGitETEst wovnm v 5 v & 3 secsomes 5 5 8 o
Total debt service .. ......

TOTAL

EXPENDITURES . ... ..

EXCESS OF REVENUES

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES .. ...

36

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ = g - % 3394 $ .
- ! 430 -
35.012 3,948 3.824 124
« . 777 .
- A 49,814 -
: s 19,092 -
- A 890 -
: : 2,058 y
108.700 108.700 72.631 36.069
23,512 23,512 10,548 12.964
1.074,023 1.093.959 995.408 98.551
- ’ 81,629 .
- ! 26,947 -
278,411 293.411 108,576 184,835
14,025.609 _11.537.609 _10.097.436 1,440,173
(3.470.109) (990.109) (145.294) 844,815

Note: The budgetary basis of accounting is the same as the accounting basis used for fund reporting

purposes.

See notes to financial statements



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)
Transfersin . ................. $ 592,200 $ 592200 $ 541,320 $ (50,880)
Transfersout ................. (467,741) (467,741) (390,911) 76,830
Proceeds from capital asset
sales and insurance ........... - = 56,913 56,913
Proceeds from note and
capHalleasts . o v v s v ommems w s « o 3,000,000 2 127,999 127,999
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) ........ 3,124.459 124.459 335321 210,862
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE . ................... (345,650) (865,650) 190,027 1,055,677
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1, 2017,
asrestated .................. 1,903,459 1.903.459 1.903.459 -
Balance at June 30, 2018 ....... $ 1,557,809 $ 1.037.809 $ 2.093.486 § 1,055.677

Note: The budgetary basis of accounting is the same as the accounting basis used for fund reporting
purposes.

See notes to financial statements
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL STATEMENT - The City of Covington, Tennessee (the “City”) complies with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements. The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements (including all
NCGA Statements and Interpretations currently in effect). The accounting and reporting framework
and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this note.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY - The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected
Mayor and elected six-member board. Included as a part of the City is the Covington Electric System
(Electric System). The Electric System is governed by an appointed five-member board. Since the
Electric System is not legally separate from the City, it is considered part of the primary government.
There are no component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financial accountable,
to be included in the City’s financial statements. The Electric System is under the regulatory
authority of Tennessee Valley Authority.

The City's officials are also responsible for appointing the members of the boards of other
organizations, but the City's accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making
the appointments. The City mayor and/or the City board appoint the board members of the Industrial
Development Board of the Town of Covington, Tennessee and the Covington Housing Authority.

The City is a participant with other governments and utilities in Tipton, Lauderdale, and Haywood
Counties in HTL Advantage (HTL), a joint venture formed to establish and operate an office that
markets the entire defined region for economic development and to bring the region to the attention
of prospective industrial and commercial interests, which would be beneficial for the common good
of all entities involved. HTL is governed by a board of directors comprised of one representative
from each participant. The City has agreed to provide approximately 18 percent of the total annual
contributions required to fund HTL. The City does not have an equity interest in HTL. Summary
financial information for HTL is presented in Note 13.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - The
government-wide financial statements include a statement of net position and a statement of
activities. They include all funds of the financial reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. These
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods
or services.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
Governmental fund financial statements of the City are organized into funds, each of which is
considered to be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a set of
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - GOVERNMENTAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
CONTINUED

self-balancing accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund
equity, revenues, and expenditures. Governmental fund financial statements include a balance sheet
and a statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for all major governmental
funds and non-major funds aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and
explain the differences in fund balances and changes in fund balances as presented in these
statements to the net position and changes in net position presented in the government-wide financial
statements.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
General Fund - The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and is always
classified as a major fund. Transactions relating to resources obtained and used for delivery
of those services traditionally provided by a city government, which are not accounted for in
other funds, are accounted for in the General Fund. These services include, among other
things, general government, public safety, public works, and health, welfare, recreation and
education.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are
restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes. The Special Revenue Funds
consist of the following:

State Street Aid Fund - Accounts for the receipts and expenditures of the City’s share of
state gasoline tax.

Airport Fund - Accounts for the receipts and expenditures of the City’s municipal airport
operations.

Community Development Fund - Accounts for the receipts and expenditures of grant
funds.

Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund - Accounts for the receipts and expenditures of the City’s
solid waste removal services.

Tipton County Museum Fund - Accounts for the receipts and expenditures of the City’s
museum operations.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
CONTINUED
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CONTINUED
Special Revenue Funds - Continued

Drug Fund - Accounts for the receipts and expenditures related to court drug fines and
drug seizures.

TIIP Fund - Accounts for the receipts and expenditures of grant funds.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs
on general long-term debt paid primarily from taxes levied by the City. The fund balances
of the Debt Service Funds are restricted or assigned for debt service expenditures. The Debt
Service Funds consist of the following:

Airport Improvements Construction Bond Fund - Used to accumulate resources to pay the
debt service requirements of the City’s Public Works Airport Bonds.

PBACCT Bond Fund - Used to accumulate resources to pay the debt service requirements
of the City’s Pooled Financing Revenue Bonds - Series 1994 and General Obligation
Capital Outlay Notes.

General Obligation Refunding Bond Fund - Holds resources that were set aside to pay the
debt service requirements of the City’s General Obligation Refunding Bonds - Series
2004, which have been paid off.

Capital Project Funds - Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources to
be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those
financed by proprietary funds and Trust Funds). There were no Capital Project Funds utilized
during this year.

Permanent Funds - Permanent Funds are used to account for resources that are legally
restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that
support the City’s programs. The Permanent Funds consist of the Munford Cemetery Fund,
which is used to account for maintenance of the City’s cemeteries.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
Proprietary fund financial statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund net position, and a statement of cash flows for each major proprietary
fund.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
CONTINUED
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for business-like activities that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent
of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges. The Enterprise Funds consist of the following:

Water Fund - Accounts for the operations of the water system. Operating revenues are
derived from service charges. Revenues derived from physical connection to the system
do not substantially exceed the cost incurred to provide such services.

Sewer Fund - Accounts for the operation of the sewer system. Operating revenues are
derived from service charges. Revenues derived from physical connection to the system
do not substantially exceed the cost incurred to provide such services.

Gas Utility Fund - Accounts for the operation of the natural gas system. Operating
revenues are derived from service charges. Revenues derived from physical connection
to the system do not substantially exceed the cost incurred to provide such services.

Bio Mass Gasification Fund - Accounts for the rental of the bio mass gasification plant.

Covington Electric System Electric Fund - Accounts for the operation of the electric
system. Operating revenues are derived from service charges. Revenues derived from
physical connection to the system do not substantially exceed the cost incurred to provide
such services.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Fiduciary
fund financial statements include a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes
in fiduciary net position.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds - Pension (and Other Employee
Benefit) Trust Funds are used to account for the resources that are required to be held in
trust for the members and beneficiaries of defined benefit pension plans, defined
contribution plans, other postemployment benefit plans, or other employee benefit plans.
The Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds consist of the following:
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
CONTINUED
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - CONTINUED
City of Covington Pension Fund - Used to account for the resources of the defined benefit
pension plan covering all employees hired before October 1, 2015, except Covington
Electric System employees.

Covington Electric System Defined Benefit Plan - Used to account for resources of the
defined benefit pension plan covering Covington Electric System Employees. The plan
reports on a March 31 year end.

Covington Electric System 457 Plan - This deferred compensation trust fund is used to
account for assets held for employees of Covington Electric System in accordance with
the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

MAJOR FUNDS - The City’s major funds are as follows:

Governmental Funds
General Fund
Proprietary Funds
Water Fund
Sewer Fund
Gas Utility Fund
Bio Mass Gasification Fund
Covington Electric System Electric Fund

See the foregoing fund descriptions for the activities conducted in the major funds.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS - Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which™ transactions
are recorded within the various financial statements.

Certain eliminations have been made in regards to interfund activities, payables and receivables. All
internal balances in the statement of net position have been eliminated except those representing
balances between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented
as internal balances and eliminated in the total government column. In the statement of activities,
transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated.

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities both governmental
and business-type activities are presented using the “economic resources” measurement focus.
Accordingly, all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

MEASUREMENT FOCUS - CONTINUED-
of resources, including capital assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying
statement of net position. The statement of activities presents changes in net position.

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources”
measurement focus. Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the statement of net position.
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position presents increases (revenues)
and decreases (expenses) in total net position.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are those revenues that are generated
from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues.
Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All
other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or “economic
resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate. All governmental funds utilize a “current
financial resources” measurement focus. Only current financial assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are generally included on their balance sheets.
Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during
a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial
resources at the end of the period.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded
regardless of the measurement focus applied.

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities both governmental and
business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are
recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred or economic asset used. The types of
transactions reported as program revenues for the City are reported in three categories: 1) charges
for services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Revenues,
expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions
are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of
the current period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues
subject to accrual (generally 60 days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue
sources, which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property tax, sales tax,
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - CONTINUED

intergovernmental revenues and certain other taxes. Certain other taxes, charges for services, fines
and forfeits, and other revenues (except for investment earnings) are recorded as revenues when
received because they are generally not measurable until they are received. Investment earnings are
recorded when earned since they are measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond
principal and interest which are reported when due.

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in
which the liability is incurred. Customers are billed at various times throughout the months. The
estimated value of services provided but unbilled at year end has been included in the accompanying
financial statements.

UNEARNED REVENUE - Unearned revenue arises when resources are received by the City before
it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenditures, or when rental payments are received in advance of the rental period.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - In addition to assets, the statements
of net position report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to future
period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then.

In addition to liabilities, the statements of net position and the balance sheet of governmental funds
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element
represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur
between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables
are classified as “due from other funds™ or “due to other funds™ on the fund financial statements.
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds™ (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).
Interfund receivables and payables between funds are eliminated in the statement of net position.

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the City are classified as interfund transfers.
For the purpose of the statement of activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmen-
tal funds have been eliminated.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - CONTINUED -

With the exception of the Electric System, substantially all governmental and proprietary operations
are administered primarily from one municipal building. Certain administrative employees perform
duties that serve both governmental operations and proprietary operations. Certain expendi-
tures/expenses for contractual services and supplies are incurred for both governmental operations
and proprietary operations. These joint purpose direct costs are initially paid by the General Fund.
The General Fund charges the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and Gas Utility Fund (proprietary funds)
for their allocable share of these joint costs. The allocation method used is based on the ratio of total
combined revenues of the proprietary funds (after deducting the cost of gas) to the total combined
revenues of the governmental funds, with one exception; occupancy expenditures/expenses are
allocated based on the ratio of total building space used by the proprietary funds to the total building
space used by the governmental funds. The General Fund reflects such reimbursements as reduction
of expenditures in the affected departments. The proprietary funds reflect such expenses under the
caption, “General and Administrative”.

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING - The budget of the City, which is prepared at the
departmental expenditure level, is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.
Appropriations, which consist of expenditures and transfers out, lapse at the end of the year.

Budgets were prepared for all of the governmental funds. Budgeted amounts are as amended.

The following funds incurred expenditures and transfers out in excess of appropriations in the
following approximate amounts:

Fund Amount
Tipton County Museum Fund $ 2,400
Drug Fund 59,000
Munford Cemetery Fund 2,100

The above excess expenditures and transfers out were covered by additional revenues and other
financing sources and/or available fund balance.

ENCUMBRANCES - Encumbrance accounting is not used since it is not legally required.

DEPOSITS - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits
may not be returned to it. Although the City has not formally adopted a policy regarding
collateralization of deposits, the City follows collateralization requirements of State statutes. State
statutes require that all deposits with financial institutions be collateralized by securities whose
market value is equal to 105% of the value of uninsured deposits. The deposits must be collateralized
by federal depository insurance, the Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool, or by collateral held by the
City’s agent in the City’s name, or by the Federal Reserve Banks acting as third party agents.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

INVESTMENTS - State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury,
agencies, instrumentalities and obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United
States or any of its agencies, repurchase agreements, the Tennessee local government investment
pool, certificates of deposit at state and federally chartered banks and savings and loan associations
and the City’s own bonds or notes. The City has not adopted a formal investment policy that limits
its interest rate or credit risk. Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted
market prices for investments for which market quotations are readily available. For investments that
lack readily available market quotations, reasonable estimates of fair value are used based on the
market value of similar investments.

The City of Covington’s Pension Fund policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is
established and may be amended by the Finance and Administration Committee. It is the policy of
the Committee to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk through the prudent diversification
of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset classes. The pension plan’s policy
discourages the use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from
drastically shifting asset class allocations over short time spans.

The Covington Electric System Defined Benefit Plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested
assets is established and may be amended by the Electric System’s Board of Directors by a majority
vote of its members. It is the policy of the Electric System’s Board of Directors to pursue an
investment strategy that reduces risk though the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a
broad selection of distinct asset classes. Investments are stated at fair market value. The Plan’s
investments consist of stocks in U.S. and foreign publically traded companies and mutual funds.
Dividend income is accrued on the ex-dividend date. Purchases and sales of securities are recorded
on the trade-date basis. Realized gains and losses from security transactions are reported on the
average cost method.

RECEIVABLES - Receivables result primarily from unpaid billings for service to customers, unpaid
billings related to work performed for or materials sold to certain entities, local taxes from
businesses and individuals, and intergovernmental revenues due from other government entities.
Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues are reported
net of uncollectibles. Allowances are reported when accounts are proven, or estimated, to be
uncollectible. Allowances for uncollectible accounts netted with accounts receivable and
uncollectibles netted with revenues are as follows:
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED

Allowances Uncollectibles Recoveries
Netted with Netted with Added with
Receivables Revenue Revenue
Governmental Activities/Fund
General Fund
Property taXes o s 5 s & vimes s 55 5 £ 56 $ 107,787 $ 7,547 § -
Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund
Garbage collectionfees .............. - - 4.863
$ 107,787 $ 7.547 3 4,863
Business-Type Activities/Fund
Water Fund
Wility BAIERES o« o 2o o v a9 s o 5 v $ - 8 - $ 3,586
Sewer Fund
Utility Billings: .« « s . v v covmm s o v 0 0 0 wwns - - 5,847
Gas Utility Fund
Utility biHNgs: oo oswmmina s o6 o o onams - 887 -
$ - b 887 $ 9.433

No other allowances for uncollectible accounts are considered necessary based on past history of
uncollectible accounts and management’s analysis of current accounts.

INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS - Material and supplies inventories and fuel inventories
are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market with the exception of material and
supplies inventories of the Electric System which are stated at the lower of average cost or market,

using the first-in, first-out method.

Obsolete and possible excess quantities of inventory are reduced to net realizable value.

No other inventories are provided, as disbursements for other inventory items are considered

expenditures at the time of purchase.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded

as prepaid items in the financial statements.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

CAPITAL ASSETS - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
assets (roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The City does not
have a formal capitalization policy, but generally only assets with an individual cost of at least $500
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year (five years for the Electric System) are capitalized.
The City’s assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Gifts or contributions
of capital assets are recorded at fair value when received. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities, net of interest
income from the proceeds of related tax-exempt debt, is included as part of the capitalized cost of
the assets constructed.

Land, land rights and land improvements are not depreciated. Buildings, improvements, equipment,
and infrastructure of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

BldIige - ; v nomiees s 450023 BE a8 5 0 0 5 80 5-50 years
IPIOVEINEIS s s vsvasresss s s s nuE@ecass 5358 20-40 years
BOUpment ;s sssnmesosesissssgnmmegssaasnas 5-25 years
IITasttuetire « s s svsiveviaovasussammvessssaan 15-35 years

PROPERTY TAXES - The City’s property taxes are levied each October 1 on the assessed value
listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and business personal property located in the City. Property
taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are due by February 28
following the October 1 levy date and are considered delinquent after February 28 of each year. Once
taxes become delinquent for one year, they may be turned over to Chancery Court for collection.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES - Employees of the City are allowed to accumulate unused sick
leave without limitation and unused annual leave of varying amounts based on length of service.
Upon termination, one-third of the accumulated sick leave days, and all of the accumulated annual
leave will be paid to the employee. Sick leave in excess of the one-third amount is not paid upon
termination but will be paid only upon illness while in the employment of the City.

It is the Electric System’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
benefits. All vacation pay has been accrued and is reflected as liabilities on the financial statements.

Vested or accumulated annual leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that
will pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated annual leave that are not expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources are maintained separately and represent a reconciling
item between the fund and government-wide presentation. Vested or accumulated annual leave of
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

COMPENSATED ABSENCES - CONTINUED
proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to

employees.

The City’s contingent liability for the unused, nonvesting, accumulated portions of sick leave as of
June 30, 2018 is approximately $796,000.

RESTRICTED ASSETS - Certain proceeds of bond issues, certain resources set aside for their
repayment, as well as certain other cash and investments are classified as restricted assets because
their use is limited by applicable bond covenants and/or external parties. The City elects to use
restricted assets before unrestricted assets when the situation arises where either can be used. In
governmental funds, the City’s policy is to first apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance
and then to other less-restrictive classifications - committed and then assigned fund balances before
using unassigned fund balances.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund
types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term debt obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported
net of the applicable bond premium or discount. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund
types report the face amount of debt issuances or capital lease obligations as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures, except as explained in the
following paragraph.

The Electric System reports bond costs as an asset and amortizes those costs over the life of the
bonds instead of expensing those costs in the current year in accordance with certain provisions
included in GASB Statement No. 62 - Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This regulatory
option as part of GASB Statement No. 65 is available due to the above mentioned cost being used
for rate setting by the Electric System.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE NET POSITION - Equity is classified as net position and displayed in the
following three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by the outstanding balances of any debt that is attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Debt related to unspent proceeds or other
restricted cash and investments is excluded from the determination.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
GOVERNMENT-WIDE NET POSITION - CONTINUED

Restricted - Consists of net position for which constraints are placed thereon by outside sources
or external parties, such as lenders, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations and enabling
legislation, including self-imposed legal mandates, less any related liabilities.

Unrestricted - All other net position that do not meet the description of the above categories.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE - Equity is classified as fund balance and displayed in the
following five components, if applicable:

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form
or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - Consists of fund balance for which constraints are placed thereon by outside
sources or external parties, such as lenders, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, and
enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal mandates, less any related liabilities.

Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal
action ofthe City’s Board of Mayor and Aldermen’s highest level of decision-making authority
(passage of an ordinance). Commitments may be modified or rescinded only by a like action.

Assigned - Amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are not considered
restricted or committed. The authority to assign, modify, and/or rescind prior assignments of
fund balance has been granted to the Finance and Administration Committee.

Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

CASH FLOWS - For purposes of reporting cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2018, cash
consists of cash on hand and on deposit with banks. Highly liquid investments (including restricted
assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

PENSIONS - For purposes of measuring the net pension liabilities, deferred outtflows of resources,
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the City’s participation in the City of Covington Pension Fund and the
Covington Electric System Defined Benefit Plan, and additions to/deductions from the City’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the City of
Covington Pension Plan and the Covington Electric System Defined Benefit Plan. For this purpose,
benefits (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms of the City of Covington Pension Plan and the Covington Electric
System Defined Benefit Plan. Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national
or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

PENSIONS - CONTINUED

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the City’s participation in the Public Employee Retirement Plan of the Tennessee
Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS), and additions to/deductions from the City’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TCRS for the Public
Retirement Plan. For this purpose, benefits (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms of the Public Employee
Retirement Plan of TCRS. Investments are reported at fair value.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

DEPOSITS - The bank balances of deposits as of June 30, 2018 were entirely insured by federal
depository insurance or by the Bank Collateral Pool of the State of Tennessee.

INVESTMENTS - The City’s investments at June 30, 2018 (March 31, 2018 for the Covington
Electric System Defined Benefit Plan) consisted of the following:

INVESTMENT FAIR VALUE

Investments in Pension Plans
Trustee’s investment pool

Equities $ 11,275,460
Balanced Funds 902,455
Fixed Income 2,847,449
International 2.244.863

$17.270.227

The following investments represent more than 5% of the fiduciary net position and are not issued
or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S government at June 30, 2018 (March 31,2018 for the Covington
Electric System Defined Benefit Plan):
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED
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COVINGTON
ELECTRIC COVINGTON
SYSTEM ELECTRIC CITY OF
DEFINED SYSTEM COVINGTON
BENEFIT PLAN 457 PLAN PENSION PLAN
Ishares Core S&P 500 ETF ................ S 317,383 § - $ 2,384,546
Advisors Invt TR Johem IntI SIT............ 174,915 - 851,345
Baron Emerging Markets Fund ............. 185,424 - 1,594,989
VOYA Growth and Income Portfolio ........ - 39,661 -
Amer Cent One Choice 2045 Portfolio ....... - 71,240 -
VOYA Intermediate Bond Portfolio1 ........ - 43.436 -
VOYA Fixed Avcount ¢. .. vomsamnainiisas - 225,187 -

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The City has the following fair value measurements as of
June 30, 2018 (March 31, 2018 for the Covington Electric System Defined Benefit Plan):

QUOTED PRICES SIGNIFICANT

IN ACTIVE OTHER SIGNIFICANT
MARKETS FOR OBSERVABLE UNOBSERVABLE
IDENTICAL ASSETS INPUTS INPUTS
TOTAL (LEVEL 1) (LEVEL 2) (LEVEL 3)
INVESTMENTS BY FAIR
VALUE LEVEL
Equity securities

Mutual Funds . ...oeee s $ 4,783,959 § 4,783,959 § - 3 -
Common stocks ........ 12.486.268 12.486.268 - -

$ 17270227 8 17270227 § - $ -

Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices

quoted in active markets for those securities.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 3 - UTILITY AND GARBAGE COLLECTION FEES RECEIVABLE AND
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Included in the accounts receivable balance of $2,903,968 are unbilled receivables o£$353,295. The
unbilled receivables represent estimated charges for usage from the last billing date through June 30,

2018.

The General Fund holds meter deposits of water, sewer, gas, and solid waste customers, and the
deposits appear as a liability on the General Fund balance sheet.

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2018 is as follows:

INTERFUND INTERFUND
RECEIVABLE PAYABLE
MAJOR FUNDS
General Fund
AT oo, s o ot s s s v s 0 o i e $ 899 $ “
Solid Waste/Sanitatton Fund . .. :.voismpiniseessinas - 5,920
WaterFund . . ... ... .. 14,991 -
SOWEL BUNE a5 soswe s o 58 6 st o5 sy St 10,052 -
LRI . . . o d o bntotd S s uteis # 33 Brls S S - 818,821 (1)
Munford Cemetary Fund .......................... 5.629 -
31,571 824,741
Water Fund
Ceneral Bumd. ..oz o v summens 50 wes aenrmsmmas ns oo spmman - 14,991
Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund ....:..cvisssesessnmnii - 10,962
SewerFund . ... ... ... . ... . . . . ... - 44,928
Gas Utility Bund 5 - ¢ o vonwns s 50 5 swmmmns 5 50 8 paewsm s s - 55,382
- 126,263
Sewer Fund
General Fina 5z us:000mms5 06 samenat 555 5% 7 Sehens 5 6 - 10,052
State Street AidFund .......... ... .. .. ... ... . ... .. - 448
WAtSr FUB oo 5 5 5 o v vsmmmnie 5 5 505 sin d 25 9 8 % b 5 s 44,928 =
S LIRS B! . x s 0embn s 2 8 Stabide 4 2 A b smiaas s 4 2 171 -
45,099 10,500
Gas Utility Fund
General Fund . ... ... .. 818,821 (1) -
Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund .. ...can v v icimmnmnn s 11,706 (2) -
WAEF B, o 2 5 o oratiesds & 4 o irmmemn 3 § 4 b e ReE s 5 5 3 55,382 -
SewerFund . ....... ... i s 171

885,909 171




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - CONTINUED

INTERFUND INTERFUND
RECEIVABLE PAYABLE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
State Street Aid Fund
S LT R T Iy $ 448 $ -
Airport Fund
General Bl s:ccoiinssi v nnpem 258 8 omsnns 3o s - 899
Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund
Greneral Fofd cccviommnszesrrasnn s i s s 8 s assin s 64 5 5,920 -
WaterFund . . ... ... . e 10,962 -
Gag Utihty Puild : convmn s i oy womnims s 8 9 8 sammimg s d 5 ¢ - 11,706 (2)
Munford Cemetery Fund
General BN v oo s s s 255 5 Qonssnis s 25 35 - 5.629
17,330 18,234
AITATES o ol il s avsirans o o) 5 comsbmns o 515 % $ 979,909 $  979.909

(1) This includes the following capital outlay notes payable to the Gas Utility Fund by the General
Fund:
(a) Note with a balance of $76,311, payable in annual installments of $37,778, plus interest at
2%, through 2020.
(b) Note with a balance of $529,075, payable in annual installments of $176,358, plus interest
at 1%, through 2021.
(¢) Note with a balance of $139,511, payable in annual installments of $30,243 plus interest at
2% though 2023.
(d) Note with a balance of $66,702, payable in annual installments of $76,702, plus interest at
1%, through 2019.

(2) This represents a capital outlay note payable to the Gas Utility Fund by the Solid Waste/
Sanitation Fund. The note is payable in annual installments of $2,465, including interest at 2%,
through 2023.

Interfund balances other than (1) and (2) above are related to goods and service transactions arising
in the normal course of operations.

Interfund balances other than the long term portion of (1) and (2) above ($512,224) are expected to
be repaid within one year.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - CONTINUED

The foregoing interfund balances are classified as follows in the financial statements:

Governmental Funds
Due from/to other funds

Proprietary Funds
Due from/to other funds

INTERFUND INTERFUND
BALANCES - BALANCES -
ASSETS LIABILITIES
............................. $ 48,901 $ 331,471
Advances to/fromotherfunds . .. .......... ... ... ... ... - 511,504
............................. 419,504 136,934
Advances to/fromotherfunds . ........... ... ... .. ...... 511,504 =
$§ 979.909 $ 979,909

The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
FROM OTHER TO OTHER
FUNDS FUNDS
MAJOR FUNDS
General Fund
Y §1 307005 21111 SO S $ - $ 50,000
Tipton County Museum Fund ........covvvevsrnnens - 68,000
PBACCTBondFund .......... ... ... . ... - 197,123
Water B e oo s s 5 s S A T 5 A 36,100 (1) -
SewerFund . ... e 83,530 (1) -
Gas Uttty Bunid : <« ¢ smamanos s s iesivnsis § susnimess 50,000 (1) -
Bio Mass GasificationFund .. ...................... - 75,788
Covington Electric System Electric Fund ............. 366,061 (1) -
Munford Cemetery Fund .......................... 5629 -
541,320 390,911
Water Fund
Gienerdal Bond o svasmanas s i vovmesns oF samemss s 56 - 36,100
Sewer Fund
General Byl - - s socenns 55 05 s anugsas 29 i GESTaEE 9 - 83,530
Gas Utility Fund

General Fund
Bio Mass Gasification Fund
General Fund

Covington Electric System Electric Fund

General Fund

- 50,000
75,788 -
- 366.061

(1)
(1)
(1

(M
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - CONTINUED

TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
FROM OTHER TO OTHER
FUNDS FUNDS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Airport Fund
il POl & s ocnomens 25 05 5 0 amats 1 8 £ 5 USG5 4 ¥ $ 50,000 $ -
Airport Improvements Construction Bond Fund . ........ - 7.375
Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund
PBACCT Bond Bund .couus « « « ¢ v wovsimmsn s 5 0 % 6 s 5 » - 8,159
Tipton County Museum Fund
General Fund . ... .. 68,000 <
Airport Improvements Construction Bond Fund
AlrportFund . . ... ... e 7.375 -
PBACCT Bond Fund
General Fund ... ... . 197,123 =
Solid Waste/Sanitation Fund . .......oviviiiiinnnnsns 8,159 -
Munford Cemetery Fund
Creriyal FUnd ccummima s v v e v ooiissis e 6 5 5 CRWE0H 5 55 ¢ 54 - 5,629
330,657 21.163
TOTALS .« .o 5 v 5 = 5 smmssmin o 5 % 5 & v o 5 % % 5 5 S 947,765 $ 947765

(1) These represent payments in lieu of taxes that are not payments for, and are not reasonably
equivalent in value to, services provided.

Interfund transfers other than (1) above were used to finance various programs accounted for in other
funds and/or to move funds to the debt service fund as debt service payments became due.

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1.2017 ADDITIONS DELETIONS TRANSFERS JUNE 30,2018
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land, land rights and improvements .. $ 3,246,197 § - $ - $ - § 3,246,197
Construction in progress . . .......... 982,195 - - (982,195) -
Total capital assets not
being depreciated o.z00 o0 53 92 5 s 4.228.392 - - (982.1935) 3,246,197
Other capital assets
IMProvements . .. ................. 11,698,033 618,352 (577,578) . 11,738,807
BUllAiNES, « vozes 50 50 e o8 ssas o 4 5,420,073 373,309 - 982,195 6,775,577
EQUIIINEHE o an v o stsounss w0 i 4,587,518 529,910 (463.471) - 4,653,957
Infrastructure . ................... 9,537,608 325,034 (153,634) - 9.709.008

Total other capital assets at
historical COSt. vu o e s s o o 31,243,232 1.846.605 (1.194.683) 982.195 32.877.349
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Less accumulated depreciation
Improvements . ...................
Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated
depreciation

Other capital assets, net

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS,NET .. ...........

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE WAS
CHARGED TO GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES FUNCTIONS
AS FOLLOWS
General government
Public 88fefy . vaw o v wemme o s on s
Publicworks .. .......... ... .. .....
Health, welfare, recreation
and education
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES DEPRECIATION
EXPENSE

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land, land rights and improvements . .
Construction in progress .. ..........
Total capital assets not
being depreciated . . .............
Other capital assets
Buildings
Distribution and collection systems . . .
General plant
Transmission plant
Distribution plant
Bio Mass plant
Equipment
Unamortized acquisition . . ..........
Total other capital assets at
historical BOSE .. vumme s oo v o5 v

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization
Buildings
Distribution and collection systems . . .
General plant
Transmission plant
Distribution plant
Bio Mass plant
Equipment
Unamortized acquisition adjustment . .

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2017 ADDITIONS DELETIONS TRANSFERS JUNE 30, 2018
$ (4406,147) $ (261,082) $ 577578 § - § (4,089.651)
(2.959.547) (141,201) . - (3.100,748)
(1,769,775) (379,620) 434,467 - (1,714,928)
(4.751.257) (452.539) 153.634 - _ (5.050.162)
(13.886.726) __ (1.234.442) 1,165.679 - _(13.955.489)
17,356,506 612,163 (29.004) __ 982,195 _ 18.921.860
$ 21584808 $ 612163 $  (29004) $ - § 22,168,057
$ 22475
314,402
516,858
380,707
3 1234442
BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2017 ADDITIONS DELETIONS TRANSFERS JUNE 30,2018

$ 400,09 S T - B - $ 400,096
7.058 112,823 - - 119,881
407.154 112,823 5 - 519.977
14,529211 3 . - 14529211
24,659,192 181,942 . - 24,841,134
6,504,609 172,671 (40,525) . 6,636,755
2,161,810 = - 2 2,161,810
12,616,681 233,939 (58,420) - 12,792,200
2,243,189 - - . 2,243,189
1,240,644 494,791 (62,928) 2 1,672,507
241,642 - - = 241,642
64,196,978 1,083,343 (161,873) - 65,118,448
(8,566,423) (313,639) . - (8,880,062)
(14,520,084) (514,890) . - (15,034,974)
(2,506,835) (211,629) 40,025 - (2,678,439)
(1,204,307) (84.,685) . - (1,288,992)
(6,443,906) (433,368) 86,782 . (6,790,492)
(265,445) (89,728) - - (355,173)
(739,423) (121,716) 62,928 3 (798,211)
(116,794) (24.164) . « (140,958)
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1,2017 ADDITIONS DELETIONS  TRANSFERS JUNE 30,2018
Total accumulated depreciation/
AMBTIZRAON v e o v o8 o0 aas & $ (34.363217) $ (1.793.819) § 189735 § $(35.967,301)
Other capital assets,net .............. 29.833.761 (710.476) 27.862 - 20.151.147
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS,NET ............. $ 30240915 § (597.653) $ 27862 § $ 29.671.124
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION EXPENSE WAS
CHARGED TO BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES FUNCTIONS
AS FOLLOWS
WELEE' os ve mmon o o0 v an o G a5 o= &0 $ 223,141
SEWERF viovs s wvmesn o5 w01 wrmens a0 625,685
T e e e i o M 93,582
Bit Magst: o vwven o3 powsy o 55 0y 53 w4 97.565
BRCHIC vv cn ancun o svsown wva am svce avs i 753,846

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES DEPRECIATION
AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

CHARGED TO OPERATIONS . . .. 1,793,819
Charged to transportation clearing ... ... (24.164)
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION EXPENSE $ 1,769,655

In May 2012, the Covington Electric System made an agreement to pay Southwest Tennessee
Electric Membership Corporation a one time payment in the amount of $241,642 for lost revenue
in arecent Vandergrift annexation. This payment took place in the fiscal year 2013 when the project
was closed. The annexation cost is reflected as an unamortized acquisition adjustment on the
Statement of Net Position and is amortized monthly over 10 years. The amortization expense related
to this annexation for the year ended June 30, 2018 was $24.164.

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Debt outstanding as of June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

INTEREST
RATE DATE ISSUED

MATURITY DEBTS
OUTSTANDING

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General Obligation Bonds
Public Works Airport Bonds . ... ... 5.00% 2019 $ 136,000 § 8,000

Pooled Financing Revenue Bonds . . . 1.54% * 2023 2,500,000 768,000
General Obligation
Refunding Bonds ............... 2.00-3.50% 2029 215,000 164.890

940,890

3 940.890



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES -
CONTINUED
General Obligation Notes
General Obligation Capital
OutlayNotes .. .................
Note Payable - Lawsuit Settlement . .

Capital Lease Obligations
Capital Lease Obligation - Truck . ..
Capital Lease Obligation - Sweeper .
Capital Lease Obligation - Police Car
Capital Lease Obligation - Police Cars
Capital Lease Obligation - Truck ...
Capital Lease Obligation - Truck ...
Capital Lease Obligation - Police Cars

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
General Obligation Bonds
Bio Mass Gasification Bonds . .....
General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Revenue Bonds
Electric System
ReveriteBonds oo s o o vomen s o
Water Revenue and Tax Bond . . .. ..
Sewer Revenue and Tax Bond . . . . ..

INTEREST

MATURITY

DEBTS

RATE DATE ISSUED OUTSTANDING
4.20% 2019 500,000 $ 52,000
2.00% 2027 1,200,000 1,200,000

$ 1,252,000

5.39% 2020 20,334 $ 10,333
2.85% 2022 217,030 144,591
6.00% 2020 30,781 19,917
6.00% 2019 70,139 23,353
6.00% 2022 23,254 23,254
6.00% 2022 28,579 28,579
6.00% 2020 61,017 39,502

§ 289,529
2.22% * 2037 $ 2,250,000 $ 1,921,000
2.00-3.75% 2035 3,180,000 2,765,000
2.50%-4.375% 2024 2,280,000 830,000
4.125% 2047 1,082,000 937,874
30550 2048 1,489,000 1,309,340
$ 7763214

General obligation bonds and notes are the general obligation of the City with all tax revenues, to
the extent required, pledged for repayment of the bonds and notes. Certain general obligation bonds
are to be repaid by revenues of enterprise funds.

Certain bonds and notes bear interest at a rate adjusted weekly as determined by the remarketing
agent. For such bonds, the interest rate as of June 30, 2018 shown in the foregoing schedule is

denoted by an asterisk (*).

At the option of the City, the general obligation bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity,
in whole or in part, at prices set forth in the debt resolutions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

Revenue bonds are secured by the net revenues to be derived from operation of the respective utility
system. Revenue bonds with an aggregate outstanding balance of $2,247,214 at June 30, 2018 are
additionally secured by the general credit of the City to the extent that revenues of the respective
utility system is insufficient to retire the outstanding indebtedness.

At the option of the City, certain revenue bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, in whole
or in part, at prices set forth in the debt resolutions.

A summary of long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

BALANCE AT BALANCE AT DUE WITHIN
JULY 1, 2017 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2018 ONE YEAR

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General Obligation Bonds

Public Works Airport Bonds .......... .. S 15.000 $ - b} (7.000) $ 8,000 $ 8.000
Pooled Financing Revenue Bonds ... ... .. 898,500 - (130.500) 768.000 137,600
General Obligation Refunding Bonds . . . .. 179,945 - (15,055) 164,890 15,000

General Obligation Notes
General Obligation Capital

Outlay NOLES . vve s svimis vivssen vsmims s e 102,000 - (50,000) 52,000 52,000
Note Payable - Lawsuit Settlement ....... - 1,200,000 - 1,200,000 133,333
Capital Lease Obligations
Capital Lease Obligation - Truck . ... ... .. 15,107 - (4,774) 10,333 5,031
Capital Lease Obligation - Sweeper . ... ... 178,270 - (33.679) 144,591 34,639
Capital Lease Obligation - Police Car . .. .. - 30,781 (10.864) 19.917 9,669
Capital Lease Obligation - Police Cars . . ., - 45,385 (22,032) 23,353 23,353
Capital Lease Obligation - Truck ... ... .. - 23,254 & 23,254 6,326
Capital Lease Obligation - Truck .. .... ... - 28.579 - 28,579 7,775
Capital Lease Obligation - Police Cars . . .. - 61.017 (21,515) 39,502 19,185
2.588.822 189.016 (295.419) 2,482,419 451,911
Compensated absences . .............oo0.. 576,464 48.847 = 625311 93,797
Wetbension Hability s comun somen s vave 5421877 - (1.312,729) 4.109.148 -
8,587,163 237.863 (1.608.148) 7.216.878 545.708
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
General Obligation Bonds
Bio Mass Gasification Bonds .......... 1,991,000 - (70,000) 1,921,000 73,000
General Obligation Refunding
Bonds: conon i soam peta ve s we e 4 2,865,000 - (100,000) 2,765,000 100,000
Revenue Bonds
Water Revenue Improvement
BOHAS! coivnes ssewsm ton wnmans: s, wwms 138,978 . (138.978) -
Electric System
RevenueBonds ................... 950,000 - (120,000) 830.000 125,000
Water Revenue and Tax Bond . ......... 955,191 - (17.317) 937,874 18,046
Sewer Revenue and Tax Bond . ......... 1,333,215 - (23,875) 1,309,340 24,787
Notes Payable
Sewer Notes .. ... 3,813 - (3.813) - -
8237,197 - (473,983) 7,763,214 340.833
Compensated absences .. ............. 55 4 251,271 12,655 - 263,926 34,576
Net pension liability . . .................. 1,898,555 - (404.116) 1.494.439 -
10,387.023 12,655 (878.099) 9.521.579 375.409

$ 18,974,186 $ 250,518 $ (2,486.247) $ 16,738,457 S 921,117
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

Governmental funds that have typically been used to liquidate compensated absences and pension
liabilities are as follows:

General Fund

Airport Fund

Solid Waste Sanitation Fund
Tipton County Museum Fund

The City has entered into capital lease agreements under which the related governmental activities
capital assets will become the property of the City when all terms of the lease agreements are met.
The cost and accumulated amortization of the governmental activities capital assets under the capital
leases are $426,408 and $55,115, respectively. Amortization of the leased governmental activities
capital assets is included with depreciation expense.

Presented below is a summary of debt service requirements by years:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS,
NOTES, AND LEASE OBLIGATIONS
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30
2009 5o evnae i SR P $ 451911 3 58,798 $ 510,709
B 376,884 42,830 419,714
211771 AT 350,737 33,808 384,545
2002 oo osmwan s s o 360.929 26,652 387.581
L e N 318,733 19.257 337.990
202422028 . .o i pasm s 608,280 36,680 644,960
2029 oo sesnnn mam s 14.945 524 15.469

$ 2482419 $  218.549 § 2.700.968

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30
2D e s peies B b 173,000 $ 129,584 5 302,584
2020 i euin — 220,000 125,964 345,964
FOZY cn s smsszs wuranans v e 223.000 121,398 344,398
2022 i v s avae s 231,000 116.404 347.404
2023 0y s s ssmems e 239,000 110.856 349.856
20242028 i wivcowm swnenn s 1.245,000 457,664 1,702,664
ZO20:2033 - wesiwon svsmn s 1,436,000 266,524 1,702,524
SUBADT | . s s e e 919,000 51,894 970.894

S 4,686,000 $ 1.380.288 $ 6.0606,288
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT - CONTINUED

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
REVENUE BONDS
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30
2OLY o v asims o o $ 167.833 $ 119919 $ 287,752
2020 oo v o sx 174,537 113.050 287,587
FODT o 1A M A R 181,311 105,827 287.138
e e 188,155 98,137 286.292
2023 o s s s e 195,073 96,219 291,292
202472008 soen e mn s 436,922 381,943 818.865
2029-2033 ... 342,751 307,769 650,520
UL P o ) 416,739 233,871 650,610
20392043 vioca o s s 506,738 143.782 650,520
ZOREP0AR v o et i 467,155 38.391 303,546

§ 3077214 5 1.638.908 § 4.7916.122

The total interest incurred in the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2018 was
$259,558, all of which was charged to expense.

NOTE 7 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

Governmental fund balances as of June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

OTHER
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS TOTAL
NONSPENDABLE
Not in spendable form-inventories ............ $ 30,239 $ 20,526 h 50,765
Legally or contractually required to
be maintained intact - cemetery
perpetiual care nds . ¢ cuw s i s v < ive s e - 323,038 323,038
30,239 343.564 373.803
RESTRICTED
Street expenditures . ....................... - 131,411 131,411
Solid waste/sanitation expenditures . ... ........ - 864,340 864,340
Drug enforcement ......................... - 40,386 40,386
Grants and donations .. ..................... 95,057 7.445 102,502
DIEDt SEIVICE & v v v vivis v o s s & ens & w5 s - 1,033 1,033
95.057 1,044,615 1.139.672
COMMITTED
ATTPOrtEXPENGIIAes « cowe voae v pasis e s o - 6,678 6,678
Museum expenditures . ... ooew som s et s s 20 - 95,385 95.385

- 102,063 102.063




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES - CONTINUED

OTHER
GENERAL  GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS TOTAL
ASSIGNED
Subsequent year’s appropriations . ............ § 320991 $ - § 320,991
Outside fire expenditires - s vos ¢ vvs v vad 2 v 2 - 431,721 - 431,721
Citizen assistance funds . .. .................. 15.868 - 15,868
Street expenditures . ............ ... ... 38,000 - 38,000
Debtservice .. ... - 17.098 17.098
806,580 17.098 823.678
UNASSIGNED ...... ... ... i 1.161.610 - 1.161.610

—_—

$ 2.093.486 3 1,507.340 5 3.600.826

NOTE 8 - OPERATING LEASES

The City is the lessor of certain farm land and airport buildings under cancelable operating leases.
The cost of the farm land is approximately $133,000. The cost and carrying amount of the airport
buildings are included in a pool of airport improvement costs and, as such, their specific cost and
carrying value is not readily determinable.

The City is the lessor of certain real property including buildings, parking areas, and facilities to a
local non-profit organization at the rental rate of $1 per year. The initial lease term expires February
1, 2036, but the lease shall automatically renew for an additional twenty years, upon all terms,
conditions and obligations contained in the initial lease.

NOTE 9 - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

As of June 30, 2018, the City had entered into fixed price purchase commitments for the future
delivery of natural gas in the amount of approximately $1,568,000.

The City has entered into two contracts for maintenance on water tanks through November 2021.
The remaining payments due on the contracts as of June 30, 2018 were approximately $439,000.

The City is a defendant in a lawsuit that arose in the normal course of business. While substantial
damages are alleged in this action, the outcome cannot be predicted with certainty. In the opinion
of the City’s legal counsel, the action when finally adjudicated will not have a material adverse effect
on the financial position of the City.

In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various federal and state
agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of
which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability for
reimbursement which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material.
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NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS
General Information About the Plan

Plan administration - The City of Covington Pension Plan (Plan) is a single-employer defined
benefit pension plan sponsored and administered by the City. Management of the Plan is vested in
the Finance and Administration Committee which consists of the Mayor and 6 aldermen, each
elected to 4-year terms. The Plan covers all full-time employees of the City hired before October 1,
2015, with the exception of employees of Covington Electric System, which are covered by another
plan. All elected officials other than the Mayor are excluded from the Plan. Effective October 1,
2015, the Plan was closed to new participants.

Plan membership - At December 31,2017, pension plan membership consisted of the following:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits ...................... 70
Terminated participants entitled to but not yet receiving benefits ... ... 79
ACtiVe partiCIPants . . . ..ot e 103

252

Benefits provided - The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits
are calculated as the sum of (a) 1.30% of Average Annual Compensation up to $16,800 times years
of Credited Service, plus (b) 1.95 % of Average Annual Compensation in excess of $16,800 times
years of Credited Service Years not in excess of 35 years. The minimum benefit for a 100% Vested
Participant is $100 per month. The normal form of benefit is a straight life annuity with other
actuarially equivalent forms available. Average Compensation is defined as Compensation for the
highest 5-year consecutive period in the last 10 years. Compensation is defined as total compensation
for a plan year, excluding reimbursements or other expense allowances, fringe benefits, moving
expenses, deferred compensation, welfare benefits, overtime, bonuses and commissions. Normal
retirement is the later of age 65 and the 5" anniversary of hire. Early retirement is the later of age 55
and 7 years of service with a benefit equal to the vested accrued benefit reduced by 0.50% for each
month prior to age 62. Disability benefits are equal to the early retirement benefit without regard to
age and service requirements. Death benefits are equal to the “minimum spouse’s death benefit” as
defined in the Internal Revenue Code.

Contributions - The City establishes the annual contributions based on the recommendations of an
independent actuary. The actuarially determined contribution is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the costs of benefits earned by participants during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City contributes at an actuarially determined rate.
Administrative costs of the Plan are paid by the Plan. For the plan year ending December 31, 2017,
the City’s contribution rate was 30.31% of annual payroll. For the plan year ending December 31,
2018, the City’s recommended contribution rate is 23.96% of covered payroll.
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NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED
Investments

Investment policy - The Plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and
may be amended by the Finance and Administration Committee. It is the policy of the Committee
to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio
across a broad selection of distinct asset classes. The pension plan’s policy discourages the use of
cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from drastically shifting asset
class allocations over short time spans. The following was the Committee’s adopted asset allocation
policy as of June 30, 2018:

Domestic Equity 45 %
International Equity 25%
Alternative Investments 11 %
Fixed Income 12 %
Cash 7%

Rate of return - For the year ended December 31, 2017 the annual money-weighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 18.13%. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for
the changing amounts actually invested.

Net Pension Liability of the City

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2018.

Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
January 1, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement. The results of this valuation were rolled forward to the reporting date of June 30,
2018:

Inflation 1.75%
Salary increases 3.5% including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.0% net of investment expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Society of Actuaries’ RP2014 Table with MP2017 for males and
females, as appropriate. Withdrawal rates were based on the Saranson Crocker Table T5.

Other than mortality, the actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2018 valuation were based on
the results of an experience study done for the 5 or 10 year period ending on December 31, 2012 by
Burleigh Consulting Group. The 5 or 10 year period for an active employee depended upon the
length of service of such employee with the City.
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NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Net Pension Liability of the City - Continued

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investment was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return(expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018 (see the discussion of the pension plan’s
investment policy above) are summarized in the following table.

Domestic Equity 5.10%
International Equity 6.10 %
Alternative Investments 3.00 %
Fixed Income 1.30 %
Cash .00 %

Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.00%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that City contributions will be
equal to 25% of covered payroll. Based on this assumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Amortization of Deferred Inflows and Outflows - The difference between actual investment results
and expected returns are allocated to pension expense over a closed 5-year period. Gains and losses
arising from demographic experience and from changes in actuarial assumptions are amortized over
a closed period equal to the average expected remaining service lives of all participants. For the
January 1, 2018 valuation, this period was 5.19 years, calculated as follows:

Sum of the expected remaining service period for all actives participants = 1.308

Number of total pension plan participants (active and inactive) 252
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NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Net Pension Liability of the City - Continued

Changes in net pension liability:

Balances at June 30,2017 ........

Changes for the year:
Serviee Cost v s saupaae
Interest .o uaewas e ez 0 vwmis
Contributions - Employer. .. ...
Actuarial Liability Loss (Gain) .
Change in Assumptions . ......
Benefit Payments ............
Net Investment Income .......
Administrative Expense . ... ...
Net Changest. «osovvisssin

Balances at June 30, 2018 ........

Change of Assumptions -
None

INCREASE (DECREASE)
TOTAL PENSION PLAN FIDUCIARY NET PENSION
LIABILITY NET POSITION LIABILITY
(a) (b) (a)-(b)

19,696,059 $

12.867.350 §$ 6.828.709

451,271 ; 451,271
1,169,500 “ 1,169,500
. 1,416,000 (1,416,000)
(320,630) - (320,630)
(36,287) . (36,287)
(860,520) (860,520) .
: 1,502,671 (1,502,671)
- (67.108) 67.108
656.756 1.991.043 (1,334.287)
20.099.393 14858393 $  5.241.000

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the
net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.00%, as well as what the
City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that was 1-percentage-
point lower (5.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.00%) than the current rate:

Net pension liability ..........

1% Decrease
(5.00%)

Current Rate
(6.00%)

1% Increase
(7.00%)

8.141.950 §

5.241.000 §$ 2,507,920
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pension Plan

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the City’s recognized pension expense is $467,763. The
City’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources as of June 30, 2018 are:

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES OF RESOURCES
Differences between expected and
Aptun] BRPEeNER i s s 555 % 8 5 somas & 8 $ 203,373 § 475,827
Changes of Assumptions ............... 161,894 1,106,831
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan assets . ... - 555.386
$ 365,267 $ 2.138.044

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2019 $ (433.416)
2020 (519,496)
2021 (554,646)
2022 (252,152)
2023 (13,067)
Thereatfter -

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description - Employees of the City hired after October 1, 2015 are provided a defined benefit
pension plan through the Public Employee Retirement Plan, an agent multiple-employer pension
plan administered by the TCRS. The TCRS was created by state statute under Tennessee Code
Annotated Title 8, Chapters 34-37. The TCRS Board of Trustees is responsible for the proper
operation and administration of the TCRS. The Tennessee Treasury Department, an agency in the
legislative branch of state government, administers the plans of the TCRS. The TCRS issues a
publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.treasury.tn.gov/ters.
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NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED
General Information about the Pension Plan - Continued

Benefits provided - Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8, Chapters 34-37 establishes the benefit terms
and can be amended only by the Tennessee General Assembly. The chief legislative body may adopt
the benefit terms permitted by statute. Members are eligible to retire with an unreduced benefit at
age 65 with 5 years of service credit or pursuant to the rule of 90 in which the member’s age and
service credit total 90. Benefits are determined by a formula using the member’s highest five
consecutive year average compensation and the member’s years of service credit. Reduced benefits
for early retirement are available at age 60 and vested or pursuant to the rule of 80 in which the
member’s age and service credit total 80. Members vest with five years of service credit. Service
related disability benefits are provided regardless of length of service. Five years of service is
required for non-service related disability eligibility. The service related and non-service related
disability benefits are determined in the same manner as a service retirement benefit but are reduced
10 percent and include projected service credits. A variety of death benefits are available under
various eligibility criteria.

Member and beneficiary annuitants are entitled to automatic cost of living adjustments (COLAs)
after retirement. A COLA is granted each July for annuitants retired prior to the 2™ of July of the
previous year. The COLA is based on the change in the consumer price index (CPI) during the prior
calendar year, capped at 3 percent, and applied to the current benefit. No COLA is granted if the
change in the CPI is less than one-half percent. A one percent COLA is granted if the CPI change
is between one-half percent and one percent. A member who leaves employment may withdraw their
employee contributions, plus any accumulated interest.

Employees covered by benefit terms - At the measurement date of June 30, 2017, the following
employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits .
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 2
Active employees 22

Contributions - Contributions for employees are established in the statutes governing the TCRS and
may only be changed by the Tennessee General Assembly. Employees are non-contributory. The City
makes employer contributions at the rate set by the Board of Trustees as determined by an actuarial
valuation. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the employer contributions for the City were $57,739
based on a rate of 5.9 percent of covered payroll. By law, employer contributions are required to be
paid. The TCRS may intercept the City’s state shared taxes if required employer contributions are
not remitted. The employer’s ADC and member contributions are expected to finance the cost of
benefits earned by members during the year, the cost of administration, as well as an amortized
portion of any unfunded liability.
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NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Net Pension Liability (Asset)

The City’s net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension
liability used to calculate net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date.

Actuarial assumptions - The total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.5 percent

Salary increases Graded salary ranges from 8.72 to 3.46 percent based on
age, including inflation, averaging 4.00 percent

Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses,
including inflation

Cost-of-Living Adjustment 2.25 percent

Mortality rates were based on actual experience including an adjustment for some anticipated
improvement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study performed for the period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. The
demographic assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected future
experience.

Changes of assumptions - In 2017, the following assumptions were changed: decreased inflation rate
from 3.00 percent to 2.50 percent; decreased the investment rate of return from 7.50 percent to 7.25
percent; decreased the cost-of-living adjustment from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent; and decreased
salary growth graded ranges from an average of 4.25 percent to an average of 4.00 percent.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS
Board of Trustees in conjunction with the June 30, 2016 actuarial experience study. A blend of future
capital market projections and historical market returns was used in a building-block method in
which a best-estimate of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) is developed for each major asset class. These best-estimates are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.5
percent. The best-estimates of geometric real rates of return and the TCRS investment policy target
asset allocation for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

70



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
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Net Pension Liability (Asset) - Continued

LONG-TERM EXPECTED TARGET

REAL RATE OF RETURN ALLOCATION
U.S. equity 5.69 % 31 %
Developed market international equity 5.29% 14 %
Emerging market international equity 6.36 % 4%
Private equity and strategic lending 5.79 % 20 %
U.S. fixed income 2.01 % 20 %
Real estate 4.32 % 10 %
Short-term securities 0.00 % 1 %
100 %

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS
Board of Trustees as 7.25 percent based on a blending of the factors described above.

Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions
will be made at the current rate and that contributions from the City will be made at the actuarially
determined contribution rate pursuant to an actuarial valuation in accordance with the funding policy
of the TCRS Board of Trustees and as required to be paid by state statute. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Net Pension Liability (Asset) - Continued

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset):

INCREASE (DECREASE)

TOTAL PLAN NET PENSION
PENSION FIDUCIARY LIABILITY
LIABILITY NET POSITION (ASSET)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balance at 6/30/16 . ..., $ 1.651 § 1.802 § (151)
Changes for the year:
Service Cost .. ..ottt 2,492 - 2,492
Interest . ..ot 311 - 311
Differences between expected and
actual experience ....................... 12,081 - 12,081
Change in assumptions . .................. 349 - 349
Contributions - employer ................. - 23,049 (23,049)
Net mvestoient ICoME ;- svusmavessssssms - 1,425 (1,425)
Benehit paymentsSicccosisssonvmass 5155 55 - - -
Administrati Ve eXPENSES & 5 o sy s x5 5 4 8 5 50 - (1,648) 1,648
Otherchanges woassssssssmmnmes s sv s s - - -
BICEERAMPET .+ «omwems ¢ ¢ 5+ 5 % 5 woavemwcs « % 4 % & ¥ 5a 15233 22.826 (7.593)
Balance at 6/30/17 .. ... . 3 16.884 § 24628 §$ (7.744)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount rate - The following presents
the net pension liability (asset) of the City calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well
as what the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (6.25 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25 percent) than the current
rate:

CURRENT
1% DECREASE DISCOUNT RATE 1% INCREASE
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)

Net pension liability (asset) .. .............. $ (2,920) $ (7.744) § (11.401)
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

Pension expense - For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $4.404.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resource - For the year ended June 30, 2018,

the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension
from the following sources:

DEFERRED DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF  INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES RESOURCES
Differences between expected and actual experience ......... § 11,074 § 507
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
ot pension plan INVESHBenlS . v:: a5 smseusiss 555 3 asimn - 365
Change in assumPlONg o uweos o008 5 amens 65 25 55 5 45 S 320 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement
dateofTune 30: 20ET . o orummmerss 5 3 o pammsiaes 5 5 5 55w EEes 57.739 -
$ 69,133 § 872

The amount shown above for “Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of June 30,2017.”
will be recognized as a reduction (increase) to net pension liability (asset) in the following
measurement period.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as follows:

Year ended June 30,
20010 L $ 891
2020 .o e e 891
202 e e e e 891
IR o e it 8 g N g 4 8 AR et 883
A et T T o i S L ABITAR. s i arih B smsen R er's 980
INETCATIEr w4 5 ot crrs T AL ohpaens: i Bhaprimee Bl Bl o 5,986

In the table shown above, positive amounts will increase pension expense while negative amounts
will decrease pension expense.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED
General Information About the Plan

Plan description - The Covington Electric System’s Retirement Plan Committee (Committee)
accounts for the activity of the Plan for employees of the Electric System. The Plan is a single
employer public employee retirement System (PERS) administered by Ellis & Ward Consulting
Group Inc.. All employees of the Covington Electric System participate as of April 1* following one
year of service.

The Plan for employees of the Electric System issues a publically available report that can be
obtained by contacting Ellis & Ward Consulting Group Inc. P.O. Box 2470, Cordova, TN 38088-
2470.

Benefits provided: The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
Retirement benefits vest at a rate of 20% per year beginning with three years of service. Employees
may retire after age 60 and the completion of 10 years of service with a reduction for early
commencement. The amount of normal retirement benefit to be provided for each Participant who
retires on the Participant’s Normal Retirement Date shall be a monthly income equal to the number
of years of continuous service multiplied by 1.6% of the final average monthly compensation. For
early retirement, death benefits and benefits upon termination of employment, the accrued retirement
income will be determined using the final average monthly compensation and continuous services
at the date of termination. A participant is eligible for early retirement when he/she has both
completed at least 10 years of service and attained age sixty (60). The normal retirement for early
retirement is the accrued retirement income calculated as described above, and reduced by an
actuarial reduction factor due to younger age at retirement and earlier commencement of retirement
income payments. Upon death of a participant after his/her initial vesting date and prior to his/her
normal retirement date, his/her beneficiary will receive the actuarial equivalent of the participant’s
vested accrued benefit. A participant whose employment is terminated due to total and permanent
disability shall be entitled to the retirement income at normal retirement age which the participant
would have received had he continued in employment to his normal retirement date assuming
constant earnings. The normal form of retirement is life only income.

At March 31, 2018, the Retirement Plan membership consisted of:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits .. ... ... 4|
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits ........... -
ARV PIUNIDRIHBETE varvrr s sis prnedme i §¥ k33 somlRmesne B UK s § ¥ 5 b 19

l=
o
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED
General Information About the Plan - Continued

Contributions - Required contributions are determined by the Plan for employees of the Electric
System based on calculations performed by an independent actuary. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Contributions are based on the employee’s annual covered salary. For the year ended June 30, 2018,
the contribution rate was 11.70%. The Electric System’s required contribution for the year ended
June 30, 2018 was $132,956. Actual contributions for the year were $146,866, or 110% of required

contributions.
Net Pension Liability

The Electric System’s net pension liability was measured as of March 31, 2018, and the total pension
liability used to calculate net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date.

Actuarial assumptions: The total pension liability as of the March 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Actuarial cost method Aggregate

Asset valuation method Market value

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases 3.0%, including inflation

Investment rate of return 6.5%, net of plan investment expense, including inflation
Retirement age 65

Mortality RP-2000

Withdrawal rates None

The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2018 actuarial valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study performed for the period April 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018. The
demographic assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected future
experience.

Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.5%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employee contributions
will be made at the current contribution rate and the employer will continue to contribute the
actuarially determined contribution in accordance with the plan’s current funding policy on an annual
basis. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED
Net Pension Liability - Continued
Discount rate - Continued
the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of

projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Changes in the net pension liability:

INCREASE (DECREASE)

TOTAL PENSION PLAN FIDUCIARY NET PENSION
LIABILITY NET POSITION LIABILITY
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at March 31,2017 ....... $ 3.666.876 § 3.175,002 § 491,874
Changes for the year:

Service cost ................ 103,352 - 103,352

Interestcost ................ 237,814 - 237,814

Difference between expected

and actual experience ........ (104,479) - (104,479)

Employer contributions ....... - 146,866 (146,866)

Net investment income ....... - 206,360 (206,360)

Actual versus expected income . - 40,331 (40,331)

Benefib:paymenis . vavoew s s avus (119,767) (119,767) -

Administrative expense ....... - (27,583) 27,583

Netchanges ................ 116,920 246.207 (129.287)
Balances at March 31,2018 .. .. ... $ 3,783,796 $ 3.421.209 $ 362.587

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the
net pension liability of the Electric System calculated using the discount rate of 6.5 percent, as well
as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (5.5 percent) or | -percentage-point higher (7.5 percent) than the current rate.

Net pension liability with a 1% decrease in discount rate: 5.5% $ 872,520
Net pension liability at current discount rate: 6.5% 362,587
Net pension liability with a 1% increase in discount rate: 7.5% (69,263)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Electric System recognized pension expense of $184,290. At
June 30, 2018, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in relation to

pensions were as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions - Continued

DEFERRED DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES OF RESOURCES
Difference between expected and
HETOM] ERPEIIBNIE <« o « 5 5 cxiursii w0 s o b s s $ 96,370 % 205,566
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings in pension investments . . . . .. 20,977 -
Pension contributions subsequent to
MCHSIMENE O8I . o sns v nomEes o p e 200 9E 132,956 -
$ 250.303 $ 205.566

The amount shown above for “Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date™, will be
recognized as a decrease to net pension liability in the following measurement period.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2009 . somemsns s 5 5 50 $ 21,902
2020 , camevasasseses 18,091
40 0.1 (s —— (35,838)
4 i 5 A, (16,362)
2008 spvsaygenme g 6 5@ 5 5 s (8,296)
Thereafter .............. (67,716)

NOTE 11 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The City offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with the Internal
Revenue Code Sections 457 and 401(k), as a participating employer in the Tennessee State
Employees Deferred Compensation Plan and Trust. The plans are available to all City employees
with the exception of employees of Covington Electric System. The plans permit them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees
until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 11 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS - CONTINUED

These assets are required to be placed in trust and the City does not control the assets in the trust,
thus eliminating the requirement that assets be reflected in the statement of net position of the City.

The Electric System offers a deferred compensation plan (Covington Electric System Employees’
457 Plan) that is administered by VOY A. The contribution rates for this plan are determined by the
employee while the Electric System does not match any contributions. The employee can change
contributions rates at any time while on the plan. The amount of pension expense recognized by the
Electric System in the current period was $0. The amount of forfeitures reflected in pension expense
were $0 during the current period, and there will never be forfeitures due to the fact that the
employee is 100% vested at the time of contribution. The Electric System did not have a liability at

June 30, 2018.
NOTE 12 - POWER CONTRACT

The Electric System has a power contract with the Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) whereby the
Electric System purchases all its electric power from TV A and is subject to certain restrictions and
conditions as provided for in the power contract. Such restrictions include, but are not limited to,
prohibitions against furnishing, advancing, lending, pledging, or otherwise diverting electric system
funds, revenues or property to other operations of the municipality and the purchase or payment of,
or providing security for indebtedness on other obligations applicable to such other operations.

NOTE 13 - JOINT VENTURE

Following is summary information for HTL Advantage as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018, which is taken from its separately issued audited financial statements.

CASH cicsii53555 anmmisiniis ey $ 872,365
Otherassets : c .- s cowsvmsasees 19.954
Totalassets ................. $ 892319
Liabilities .................. $ 2,108
Net position . . ............... 890.211

Total liabilities and net position .  § __ §92.319
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 13 - JOINT VENTURE - CONTINUED

Totalrevenues ... ............ $ 353,904
Total EXPERSes ... vovovuamsmns 334,373
Change in net position ........ $ 19.531

Complete financial statements for HTL Advantage can be obtained from the President/CEO at 1469
South Main Street, Covington, Tennessee 38019.

NOTE 14 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City considers it to be
more economically feasible to participate in a public entity risk pool as opposed to purchasing
commercial insurance for certain general liability, workers' compensation and property and casualty
insurance. As such, the City participates in the Public Entities Partners risk management pool
(previously named the Tennessee Municipal League Risk Management Pool), which is a public
entity risk pool consisting of member political subdivisions of the State of Tennessee. The City pays
an annual premium to the pool for its certain general liability, workers' compensation and property
and casualty insurance. Each political subdivision that has participated in the pool is subject to
assessment if the funds it paid as premiums are insufficient to meet the obligations of the pool. The
pool may reinsure through the Local Government Reinsurance Fund of Tennessee or a commercial
insurance company.

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including certain general
liability, workers' compensation, property and casualty insurance, and employee health, life and
accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There was no significant reduction in the
amount of coverage provided during this year.

NOTE 15 - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - PENSION PLANS

The plans invest in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various risks
such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and, that such changes could materially affect the amounts
reported in the statement of net position available for benefits.

Plan contributions are made and the actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits are reported
based on certain assumptions pertaining to interest rates, inflation rates and employee demographics,
all of which are subject to change. Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimations and assumptions
process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimates and assumptions in the near
term would be material to the financial statements.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Account balances and transactions with related organizations and joint venture are as follows:

BALANCE REVENUE EXPENDITURE
ENTITY FROM (TO) FROM TO
Covington Housing Authority . ... .. $ 19,141 $ 19,141 $ -
HTL Advantage ................. - - 50,000

NOTE 17 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

During the current year, it was determined the liability for accrued overtime (comp time) had not
been reflected in the City’s prior financial statements. To correct this error, the beginning balances
of net position and fund balance were decreased as follows:

NET POSITION/

FUND BALANCE, ACCRUED NET POSITION/
AS PREVIOUSLY EXPENSE FUND BALANCE,
REPORTED RESTATEMENT AS RESTATED
Governmental Activities . .......... $15895.061 § (148.583) § 15,746,478
General Fund ................... § 2052042 $ (148.583) §$ 1.903.459

The effect of this restatement is not material to the change in net position/change in fund balance for
the preceding year of June 30, 2017.

NOTE 18 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Due to market fluctuations, the fair value of the City of Covington Pension Plan’s investments had
decreased by approximately 5% ($743,000) as of January 28, 2019.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

CITY OF COVINGTON PENSION PLAN

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service Cost

Benefit payments, including return of participant contribution

Net change in pension liability .. ................ ...

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY, BEGINNING OF YEAR

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY, ENDOF YEAR ... ... ... ..

PLAN FIDUCIARY POSITION
Contributions from employer
Net investment income (loss)

Net change in plan fiduciary position

PLAN FIDUCIARY POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR

PLAN FIDUCIARY POSITION, END OF YEAR ... ... . ..

NET PENSION LIABILITY ... covmmnimonn vommn rranes

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A

PERCENTAGE OF THE TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY ..

COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL ....................

NET PENSION LIABILITY AS A PERCENTAGE

OF COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL ................

IREEIREY <o ovommims wanhomar srarecens 0% WRURISI. GG AT RIS SRS
Actuarial liability loss/(gain) ............. oo
Changes in assumptions ... ...........oooiiiieinaan..

Benefit payments, including return of participant contributions
Adminisrative expenses .. o s o vae 4 s5e s i wive w5 el 6 &

LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
......................... S 451271 S 489410 S 415308 S 556576 S 555479
......................... 1.169.500 1,146,100 1.101.200 962.300 857122
......................... (320630)  (139075)  (240.798) 521,145 581.220
......................... (36.287)  (285.326) 305165 (2.292.102)  (1.914.894)
......................... (860.520) __ (818.631) __(705.650) __ (573.124) ___ (437457
......................... 403,334 392478 875.225 (825205)  (358.530)
......................... 19,696,059 _ 19303,581 _ 18428356 _ 19.253.561 _ 19.612.091

§ 20099393 S 19,696,059

$ 19303581

$ 18428356 $ 19253561

......................... $ 1,416,000 $ 1,416,000

$ 1.320.000

1.142.940 % 1,046.280

......................... 1,502,671 1.305.195 (16,071) 267.400 360.301
........................ (860.520) (818.631) (705.650) (573.124) (434.561)
......................... (67.108) (62,274) (57.705) (70.4006) (28.104)
......................... 1,991,043 1,840,290 540.574 766,810 943916
......................... 12,867,350 11,027,060 10,486,486 9.719.676 8,775,760

......................... $ 14858393 § 12,867,350

e A e

......................... $ 5241000 $ 6828709

$ 11.027.060

$ 10486486 § 9.719.676

$ 8276521 § 7941870 3% 9.533.885

73.92% 65.33% 57.12% 56.90% 50.48%

$ 4558878 S 4798394 $ 5309249 § 5136373 § 4830722
114.96% 142.31% 155.89% 154.62% 197.36%
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
CITY OF COVINGTON PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION
LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTES TO SCHEDULE

Valuation date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of January 1* prior to the
end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Benefit changes: None

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for January 1, 2018 valuation
Actuarial cost method Entry age

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method Market value including contributions receivable

Inflation 1.75%

Salary increases 3.50% including inflation

Investment rate of return 6.0% net of investment expense, including inflation

Retirement age Later of 65 or current age

Mortality Society of Actuaries, RP2014 Table with MP 2016 for Males
or Females, as appropriate

Marriage 85% of Participants are assumed to be married, with males
3 years younger

Rehire rates None assumed

Differences in methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for prior valuations

Actuarial cost method Prior to January 1, 2015, Projected Union Credit

Discount rate See rates in Schedule of City Contributions

Investment rate of return See rates in Schedule of City Contributions

Mortality Prior to January 1, 2011, the 1983 Group Annuity Table;

from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2015, the 1994 Group
Annuity Reserving Table; January 1, 2016, the Society of
Actuaries RP2014 Table with MP2015 for Males and
Females, as appropriate.

GASB 68 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented starting with the implementation
of GASB 68. The information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively prior to
the implementation date.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
CITY OF COVINGTON PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PLAN YEAR ENDED 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Actuarially determined

CONUADIEIONS oo cvime cwamac o $ 1117376 S 1,167346 § 1.079633 S 1.173.543 § 1446948 § 1357490 $ 866,614 § 615201 § 631021 $ 566,947
Actual contributions ... ........... 1.416.000 1.368.000 1.231.470 1.181.845 1.133.535 898.920 945,000 810.000 690.000 700.000
Contribution excess (deficiency) .... § 298624 § 200,654 $ 151837 § 8302 § (313413) $ (458.570) $_ 78386 S 194799 § 58979 § 133,053
Covered employee payroll ......... $ 4671875 $ 4798394 § 5309249 § 5136373 § 4980764 S 4923916 §$ 4730687 $ 4569308 § 4662946 $ 4258046
Contribution as a percentage
of covered employee
payioll . i vaiams s va smesn saa 30.31% 28.51% 23.19% 23.01% 22.76% 18.26% 19.98% 17.73% 14.80% 16.44%

Discount rate/assumed investment returmn 6.00%/6.00%  6.00%/6.50%  5.00%/7.00% 5.00%/7.00% 4.25%/4.25% 4.50%/4.50% 5.50%/6.50% 5.50%/6.50% 6.50%/7.50% 6.50%/7.50%

NOTES TO SCHEDULES

Valuation date
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of January 1" prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Benefit changes: None

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates

Actuarial cost method Entry age

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method Market value including contributions receivable

Inflation 1.75%

Salary increases 3.5%, average, including inflation

Investment rate of retumn 6.0%, net of investment expense, including inflation

Retirement age Later of 65 or current age

Mortality Society of Actuaries, RP2014 Table with MP2015 for males and females, as appropriate
Marriage 85% of participants are assumed to be married. with males 3 years younger
Rehire rates None assumed

Difference in methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for prior valuations

Actuarial cost method Prior to January 1. 2015, Projected Unit Credit

Discount rate See above

Investment rate of return See above

Mortality Prior to January 2, 2011, the 1983 Group Annuity Table; from January 1,201 1 to December 31, 2015, the 1994 Group Annuity Reserving Table; January 1,2016,

the Society of Actuaries RP2014 Table with MP2015 for Males and Females, as appropriate.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
CITY OF COVINGTON PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Annual money-weighted rate of return 18.13% 5.25% (1.37)% 3.74% 3.83%

GASB 68 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented starting with the implementation of GASB 68. The information in this
schedule is not required to be presented retroactively prior to the implementation date.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) AND
RELATED RATIOS BASED ON PARTICIPATION IN THE PUBLIC
EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN OF TCRS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

SeIVICE COSE . v vttt e
| £7E050 o] SO o OSSR
Changes intbenefit Terms - s s v o s v s » s s s

Difference between actual and

EXPECEd EXPELICHIOR wun v sin v i ¥ o ¥ o v ¥ osict &
Chanpe: I ASSUNPLHONS = o wum s cove v cun s s e s

Benefit payments, including refunds

of employes contibUtONS i vun s sues sswm wip & s &
Net change in pension liability ................

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY,

BEGINNINGOFYEAR . ...... ... ... .. ... . ...

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY,

ENIVOBYEAR. ... 5 om o s o sonme » o 6 st w sosss s 5

PLAN FIDUCIARY POSITION

Contributions from employer ....................
Contributions from employees .. .................
Net investiient intoiie . cu: cevy vory suss ven ¢ pes 34

Benefit payments, including return

of participant contributions . ....................
Administrative eXpenses ... ...,
Net change in plan fiduciary position ..........

PLAN FIDUCIARY POSITION

BEGINNINGOFYEAR .. ... ... ... ... .........

PLAN FIDUCIARY POSITION

ENBDIOE YEAR o cooim ciims s wamem swm v 5 aes & oo

NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) .. ............

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS
A PERCENTAGE OF THE TOTAL

PENSIONLIABILITY ........connvinineiennennn

COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL ..............

NET PENSION LIABILITY AS A PERCENTAGE

OF COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL ...... ....

NOTES TO SCHEDULE

2017 2016
2492 § 2,112
311 158
12,081 (619)
349 ;
15,233 1.651
1,651 -
16884 1,651
23049 $ 7T
1,425 26
(1.648) (336)
22.826 1,802
1.802 -
24628 $ 1,802
(1.744) $ (151)
145.87% 109.15%
390.656 $ 35804
(1.98%) (.042%)

Changes in assumptions - In 2017, amounts reported as changes of assumptions resulted from changes to the inflation
rate, investment rate of return, cost-of-living adjustment and salary growth.

2016 was the initial year of participation in TCRS.

85



86

CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS BASED ON PARTICIPATION
IN THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN OF TCRS
LAST FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30

Actuarially determined contributions

Actual contributions . . ..........

Contribution excess (deficiency)

Covered employee payroll . ......

Contribution as a percentage of

covered employee payroll .......

2017 2016

......... $ 23,049 § 2,112

.......... 23.049 2112

2016 was the initial year of participation in TCRS.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE

Valuation date

Actuarially determined contribution rates for fiscal year 2018 were calculated based on the June

30, 2017 actuarial valuation.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation

Inflation

Salary increases

Investment rate of return
Retirement age

Mortality

Cost of living adjustments

Entry age normal

Level dollar, closed (not to exceed 20 years)

Varies by year

10-year smoothed within a 20 percent corridor to market value
3.0%

Graded salary ranges from 8.72 to 3.46 percent based on age,
including inflation

7.5%, net of investment expense, including inflation

Pattern of retirement determined by experience study
Customized table based on actual experience including an
adjustment for some anticipated improvement

2.50%



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
COVINGTON ELECTRIC SYSTEM’S DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION
LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

SEIVICE COSE . v v vvivimiee n v e e commmimi s v s s s emties o $ 103,352 § 91976 $ 95438 § 92,286

IHEEPBSE ous e o mimamimns 5o s Suarusnm s s & o5 s Salsasr 5 237,814 217,905 207,893 201,831
Changes of benefitterms . ....................... - - -

Difference between actual and

expected experience ...............ouiiiininian. (104,479) 109,220 (36,904) (102.458)

Changes I ASSUMPHONS. 5 ¢ 5 5 6 ¢ svans s 5 55 8 80 semme s - - - -

Benefit payments, including refunds

of employee contributions ...................... (119.767) (117,249) (104,077) (95.873)
Net change in pension liability ........... .. ... 116,920 301,852 162,350 95,786

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY,

BEGINNINGOFYEAR . .. ...t 3.666.876 3.365.024 3.202.674 _3.106.888
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY, END OF YEAR ........ § 3783796 § 3.666.876 $ 3.365.024 $3.202.674
PLAN FIDUCIARY POSITION
Contributions from employer .................... $ 146,866 $ 135141 §$ 120,292 § 127,307
Contributions from employees ................... - - - -
Net investment income (loss) .................... 246,691 285,550 (75,956) 164,946
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions . ..................... (119,767) (117,249) (104,077) (95,873)
Administrative eXpenses . ...............o.ii.... (27,583) (28,884) (23.130) (28,073)

Net change in plan fiduciary position...... ... .. 246,207 274,558 (82,871) 168,307

PLAN FIDUCIARY POSITION,

BEGINNINGOFYEAR : . : .vovvisiii s v o v wisenssssivi s v o 606 3.175.002 2.900.444 2,983,315 2.815.008
PLAN FIDUCIARY POSITION, END OF YEAR ........ $ 3421209 §3.175.002 $ 2.900.444 $2,983.315

NET.PENSION LIABILITY . :coisiss v v sasss $ 362587 § 491874 $§ 464580 $ 219,359
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
COVINGTON ELECTRIC SYSTEM’S DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION
LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A
PERCENTAGE OF THE TOTAL
PENSION LIABILITY 90.42% 86.59% 86.19% 93.15%
COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL $ 1,255,270 $ 1.105.403 $ 1.150.884 §$ 1.198.494
NET PENSION LIABILITY AS A PERCENTAGE
OF COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 28.89% 44.50% 40.37% 18.30%

GASB 68 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented starting with the implementation of GASB 68. The information in this schedule
is not required to be presented retroactively prior to the implementation date.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

COVINGTON ELECTRIC SYSTEM’S DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution . . $ 146,866 $ 135,141 $ 120,292 § 127,307
Actual contributions .. ............. 146,866 135.141 120.292 127,307
Contribution excess (deficiency) . .. .. $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered employee payroll .......... $ 1.255.270 §$ 1.105403 § 1.150.884  $1.198.494
Contribution as a percentage

of covered employee

PAYPOIL oo ox wibiirae wo v g e 11.70% 12.23% 10.45% 10.62%

GASB 68 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented starting with the implementation
of GASB 68. The information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively prior to

the implementation date.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE

Valuation date

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of April 1st, three months prior to the

fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates

Actuarial cost method Aggregate cost

Amortization method N/A

Remaining amortization period N/A

Asset valuation Market value

Inflation 2.50%

Withdrawal rates None

Salary increases 3.0%, including inflation

Investment rate of return 6.50%, average, net of plan investment expenses, including
inflation

Retirement age Age 65

Mortality RP-2000 Mortality Table
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
COVINGTON ELECTRIC SYSTEM’S DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015

Annual money-weighted rate of return 6.70% 8.70% (3.30)% 4.80%

GASB 68 requires a 10-year schedule for this data to be presented starting with the implementation of GASB
68. The information in this schedule is not required to be presented retroactively prior to the implementation
date.
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COMBINING FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

STATE COMMUNITY  SOLID WASTE/ (Ffr(])l:JTqu\\
STREET  AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT  SANITATION MUSEUM DRUG
AID FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
ASSETS
Cash ............... $ 90536 % 54017 § 396458 § 752,612 § 98,874 § 40415
Accounts receivable . . . - 110 - 188.361 - -
Grants receivable ... .. - 58,620 - - - -
Due from other funds .. 448 - - 16,882 - -
Due from
State of Tennessee . . . . 53,233 - - - - -
Other receivables . .. .. - 33,691 - - - -
Fuel inventory ....... - 20,526 - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS .... § 144217 $166964 $§ 396458 § 957,855 § 98.874 § 40415
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable . . ... § 12,806 § 64,725 § 4,709 § 75,258 § 1,873 § 29
Accrued expenses . . . .. - 1,562 - 6,551 1,616 -
Due to other funds . . .. - 899 = 2233 - -
Advances from
otherfunds ......... - - - 9.473 - -
Unearned revenue -
grantrevenue . ....... - - 391,749 - - -
Unearned revenue -
YENANCOME: (s woscs « - 35.125 - - - -
TOTAL
LIABILITIES . ... 12,806 122311 396.458 93.515 3.489 29
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue -
grantrevenue .. ...... - 10,004 - - - -
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable . . ... ... - 20,526 - - - -
Restricted . .......... 131,411 7,445 - 864,340 - 40,386
Committed .......... - 6,678 - - 95,385 -
Assigned . ........... - - - - - -
TOTAL FUND
BALANCE ....... 131411 34,649 - 864,340 95.385 40.386
TOTAL
LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND
BALANCE . ...... $ 144217 $166964 § 396458 § 957.855 § 98.874 § 40415
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2018

SPECIAL
REVENUE FUNDS DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
AIRPORT GENERAL
IMPROVEMENTS PBACCT  OBLIGATION
CONSTRUCTION BOND REFUNDING
TOTALS BOND FUND FUND BOND FUND _TOTALS
ASSETS
Cash .................... $ 1,432.912 $ 1,033 § 12,321 § 4,777 § 18,131
Accounts receivable .. ... ... 188,471 - - - -
Grants receivable .. ........ 58.620 - - - -
Due from other funds . ...... 17,330 - - - -
Due from State of Tennessee . 53,235 - - - -
Other receivables .......... 33,691 - - - -
Fuel INVentory «w. s wws s v o4 20,526 - = 7 -
TOTAL ASSETS ......... $ 1,804,783 3 1,033 § 12321 $ 4777 §$18.131
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable . ......... $ 159,400 $ - % - 8 - 8 -
Accrued expenses . . ........ 9,729 - - - -
Due to other funds ......... 3,132 - - - -
Advances from other funds . . 9.473 - - - -
Unearned revenue -
grantrevenue . . ........... 391,749 - - - -
Unearned revenue -
PRILYEVENNE o wwmm conis v 55,125 - B - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES .. 628,608 - - - -
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue -
SEANMtTEVERIG:, ; sun 5 s v wan 10,004 - - - -
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable . ............ 20,526 - - - -
Restricted . ............... 1,043,582 1,033 - - 1,033
Committed ............... 102,063 - - - -
Assigned .. ............... - - 12,321 4.777 17.098
TOTAL FUND
BALANCE .........o0. 1.166.171 1.033 12,321 4,777 18,131
TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND
FUND BALANCE . ... .. $ 1.804.783 $ 1.033 $ 12321 § 4777 $18.131
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2018
PERMANENT TOTAL
FUND NONMAJOR
MUNFORD  GOVERN-
CEMETERY MENTAL
FUND FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash .................. $ 331,566 § 1,782,609
Accounts receivable . .. ... - 188,471
Grants receivable .. ... ... - 58,620
Due from other funds . .. .. - 17,330
Due from State of Tennessee - 53233
Othetreceivables . v i - 33,691
Fuel inventory .......... - 20,526
TOTAL ASSETS ....... § 331.566 § 2.154.480
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable . ....... § - % 159400
Accrued expenses .. ...... 2,899 12,628
Due to other funds ....... 5,629 8,761
Advances from other funds - 9473
Unearned revenue -
Prantrevenues vou s san s s - 391,749
Unearned revenue
rentTevenue. < oo ¢ w5 aa - 55125
TOTAL
LIABILITIES . ... ... 8,528 637,136
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue -
grantrevenue ... ........ - 10.004
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable . .......... 323,038 343,564
Restricted . . . .o v vvv s s - 1,044,615
Committed . ............ - 102,063
ASSIENE vooe + v wsssr o - 17.098
TOTAL FUND
BALANCE .......... 323.038 1,507.340
TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND

FUND BALANCE . ... § 331.566 § 2.154.480



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

94

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

REVENUES

Intergovernmental

revenues

Charges for services . .... ..

Fines, forfeits, and

penalties

Other revenues
TOTAL REVENUES . ..

EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Public works
Health, welfare,
recreation and education . . .
Debt service

TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES .........
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Insurance proceeds . . ......
Proceeds from capital lease .
Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER
FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) . ...

NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1, 2017 . ...

Balance at June 30, 2018 . ..

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMMUNITY SOLID TIPTON
STATE DEVELOP- WASTE COUNTY

STREET AIRPORT MENT SANITATION MUSEUM DRUG

AID FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
$ 303,081 $ 572,064 $ 374353 $ - $ 68000 $ .
- 340,367 - 1,518,022 13,458 .
: ; - - - 12,789
6.083 797 - 28.785 11.236 564
309.164 _ 913228 _ 374.353 _1.546.807 92.694 13,353
. ’ : . s 86,060
342,151 : - 1,347,552 : .
- 1,007,885 374,353 ; 150,357 3
: - : 5.842 - 21516
342,151 _1.007.885 _ 374,533 _1.353394 _ 150357 _ 107.576
(32.987) __(94.657) - 193413 _ (57.663) _ (94.223)

x 50,000 s < 68,000 ;

s 20,532 33,220 . :
: : 5 ’ 61,017

: (1.375) ; (8.159) 2 :
- 63.157 . 25.061 68.000 61.017
(32,987)  (31,500) - 218474 10337 (33,206)
164,398 66.149 - 645.866 85.048 73.592
$ 131411 $ 34649 § - $ 864340 $ 95385 $ 40386




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
SPECIAL
REVENUE
FUNDS DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

IMPROVEMENTS
CONSTRUCTION

AIRPORT

GENERAL
OBLIGATION
PBACCT REFUNDING

TOTALS BOND FUND BOND FUND BOND FUND TOTALS
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
FEVeNUes . ............. § 1,317,498 $ - % - % - b -
Charges for services . ... .. 1,871.847 - - - -
Fines, forfeits, and
BERAlOEs: wx 2 2o 2 2o 5 2o 12,789 - - - -
Other revenues . ......... 47.465 11 678 48 737
TOTAL REVENUES . . 3.249.599 11 678 48 737
EXPENDITURES
Public safety . ........... 86,060 - - % =
Publicworks . ........... 1,689,703 - - - -
Health, welfare,-
recreation and education . . 1,532,595 - - - -
DEbESEIVIGE! v = v 6 coos 4 27.358 7.375 204,690 - 212.065
TOTAL
EXPENDITURES . . .. 3.335.716 T3S 204,690 - 212,065
EXCESS OF REVENULS
OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES ........ (86.117) (7.364) (204.012) 48 (211,328)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfersin ............ 118,000 7,375 205,282 - 212,657
Insurance proceeds . . ... .. 53,1752 - - - -
Proceeds from capital lease 61,017 - - - -
Transfers ot . vos o wum s s (15.534) - - - -
TOTAL OTHER
FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) ... 217.235 7.375 205.282 - 212.657
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE ........ 131,118 11 1,270 48 1,329
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1, 2017 ... 1,035,053 1,022 11.051 4,729 16.802
Balance at June 30,2018 .. § 1.166.171 $ 1.033 12321 § 4777 $ 18.131




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PERMANENT
FUND TOTAL
MUNFORD NONMAJOR
CEMETERY GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
FEVENUES . ............. b - $ 1,317,498
Charges for services ... ... 9,780 1,881,627
Fines, forfeits, and penalties - 12,789
Other revenues . ......... 9.750 57.952
TOTAL REVENUES . . 19.530 3.269.866
EXPENDITURES
Poblic Sarety « woe 5 s » mn - 86,060
Publicwotks < v w was v a6 - 1,689,703
Health, welfare,
recreation and education . . 165 1,532,760
Debtservice ............ - 239423
TOTAL
EXPENDITURES . ... 165 3.547.946
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES ........ 19,365 (278,080)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfersin ............ - 330,657
Insurance proceeds . ...... - 53,752
Proceeds from capital lease - 61,017
Transfersout ........... (5.629) (21.163)
TOTAL OTHER
FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) ... (5.629) 424,263
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE ........ 13,736 146,183
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1, 2017 ... 309.302 1,361,157

Balance at June 30. 2018 .. § 323038 $  1.507.340




SCHEDULES



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - STATE STREET AID FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL  (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues
State gasoline and motor fuel tax . $ - $ - § 173,395 § -
State'gas 3 centtaX . s vonnss s - - 51,240 -
State gas 1989tax ............. - - 27611 -
State'gas 201 71a% <« o vvsnns s s - - 50,835 -
255,400 255,400 303,081 47,681
OIS TeVentes & s oy comenp 25 5 5 & - - 6,083 6.083
TOTAL REVENUES . ....... 255,400 255.400 309,164 53.764
EXPENDITURES
Public works
Building materials . ............ - - 61,711 -
Street lighting . ............... - - 148,398 -
Capital Oty < :svsamemarstss - - 132,042 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . .. 255,400 355.400 342151 13,249
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES . ... .. - (100,000) (32,987) 67,013
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1,2017 . ......... 164.398 164,398 164,398 -

Balance at June 30, 2018 ........ $ 164,398 $ 64398 $ 131411 $§ 67013




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - AIRPORT FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues
Federal grants .. .............. - § - . § 539277 § -
State Grantsioe. ; « = v s v 5 5 0 4 - - 32,787 -
614,000 614,000 572,064 (41,936)
Charges forservices .« cowmis as s us 346,500 346,500 340,367 (6,133)
Other revenues ................ - - 797 797
TOTAL REVENUES ....... 960,500 960,500 913.228 (47,272)
EXPENDITURES
Health, welfare, recreation, and
education
Personal services ............. - - 182,244 -
Contractual services . ... ....... - - 89,338 -
Supplies . ................... - - 127,270 -
Fixed charges: . . v coss s 5 5 0 ¢ e - - 10,353 -
Capitaloutlay .. .............. - - 598.680 -
TOTAL
EXPENDITURES ......... 991,500 1.011.500 1.007.885 3,615
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES .. ... (31.000) (51.000) (94.657) (43.657)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)
TransferS il ; » ¢ wesaenis s ¥ & 3 pvesss 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Transfersout .................. (7,750) (7,750) (7,375) 375
Insurance progeeds: .o s . s ¢ seswanx - 20,000 20.532 532
TOTAL OTHER
FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) .......... 42250 62,250 63.157 907
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE ;.o is s 5 omamsn s 11,250 11,250 (31,500) (42,750)
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1,2017 .......... 66,149 66,149 66,149 -
Balance at June 30, 2018 ........ 77399 § 77399 § 34649 § (42.750)




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues
Federal grants . . .............. $ 479400 § 604400 § 374353 § (230.047)
TOTAL REVENUES ....... .. 479,400 604,400 374,353 (230.047)
EXPENDITURES

Health, welfare, recreation,
and education
Community development

PrOETAMN s o 4 ¥ & 5oy § 5 ¥ & gas - - 1,045 -
Capitaloutlay .. .............. - - 373.308 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES .. 475.900 600,900 374.353 226,547

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES .. ... 3,500 3,500 - (3,500)

FUND BALANCE
Balaniceat July 1, 2017 & 4 v s v onnis » : - -

Balance at June 30, 2018 ........ 3 3500 % 3500 % - $ (3.500)
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - SOLID WASTE/SANITATION FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

100

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Charges for services ............ $ 1,555,000 % 1,555,000 $ 1,518,022 $  (36,978)
Other revenues . .....ouovsesssos 20,000 20.000 28,785 8.785
TOTAL REVENUES .. ....... 1,575,000 1,575,000 1,546,807 (28,193)
EXPENDITURES
Public works
Personal services ............. - - 314,179 -
Contractual services . .......... - - 939,517 -
SUPPHES: .« o« =« v vvvmes v 5 = » oo - - 28,718 -
Building materials ............ - - 15,285 -
Fixed charges . ...covuunvvcwns - - 4,767 -
Capital outlay ; « ¢« ces s 3 83 200 - - 45.086 -
Total public works .......... 151 3:675 1.525.532 1,347,552 177.980
Debt Service
Principal retirement ........... - - 4,773 -
Initetest and fees . cuun s s o0 s - - 1,069 -
Total debt service . .......... 300 8.443 5,842 2,601
TOTAL
EXPENDITURES ........ 1,513.975 1,533,975 1,353,394 180,581
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES .............. 61,025 41,025 193,413 152.388
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfersout .................. (8,143) (8,143) (8,159) (16)
Insuranceproceeds < .. osiveens - 33.000 33,220 220
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) .......... (8,143) 24.857 25,061 204
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE .................... 52,882 65,882 218,474 152,592
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1,2017 .......... 645,866 645.866 645.866 -
Balance at June 30, 2018 ........ $ 698748 $§ 711,748 $ 864340 $ 152.592
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - TIPTON COUNTY MUSEUM FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues
Tipton County grant . .. ........ $ 68,000 §$§ 68000 § 68,000 S -
Charges forservices «suwwamn v v o 9,800 9,800 13,458 3,658
Otherrevenues ................ 3,500 3,500 11,236 7.736
TOTAL REVENUES ......... 81.300 81.300 92.694 11,394
EXPENDITURES
Health, welfare, recreation and
education
Museum/Nature Center
Personal Services .. ..ivovs - - 101,264 -
Contractual services ......... - - 31,595 -
SUPPHIBS  cos summniin s ks oun - - 12,429 -
Fixed charges .............. = - 2,678 =
Capitaloutlay .............. - - 2,391 -
TOTAL
EXPENDITURES ........ 147.775 147.775 150,357 (2.582)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES ..... (66.475) (66.475) (57.663) 8.812
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES
Transfersin ................... 68,000 68.000 68.000 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE ; . .conneas 3o oo s 1,525 1,525 10,337 8,812
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1,2017 .......... 85,048 85.048 85,048 -

Balance at June 30, 2018 ........ $ 86,573 $ 86,573 S 95,385 3 8.812
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - DRUG FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Fines, forfeits, and penalties ... ... $ 30,000 $ 30,000 § 12,789 § (17.211)
OB TeVenues .- uoeenndniss s - - 564 564
TOTAL REVENUES .. ....... 30.000 30,000 13.353 (16.647)
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Drug investigation and control
Supplies .................. - - 1,358 -
Capitaloutlay « commvn s s 5 05 5 . - - 84,702 -
41.300 48.300 86,060 (37.760)
Debt service
| 531 12ed 5} 1 A - - 21,516 (21.516)
TOTAL
EXPENDITURES ... ... .. 41.300 48.300 107.576 (59.726)
EXCESS OF REVENUES
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES ... .. (11,300) (18,300) (94,223) (75,923)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from capital lease . . .. . .. - - 61.017 61.017
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE ; ; ¢ coins 55 2 ¢ 5 s (11,300) (18,300) (33,206) (14,906)
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1, 2017 .......... 73.592 73,592 73,592 =

Balance at June 30,2018 ........ $ 62292 § 55292 § 40386 S (14.906)




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - TIIP FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues .. .. .. $ 609555 $ 609555 $ - $ (609.555)
EXPENDITURES
Public works
Construction costs ............ - 5 o -
TOTAL
EXPENDITURES ......... 609,555 609.555 - 609,555
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES . ....... - = . .
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1,2017 .......... 2 s - -
Balance at June 30,2018 ........ $ - 5 - § " $ =
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - AIRPORT IMPROVEMENTS
CONSTRUCTION BOND FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Other revenues . ............... s = S 11 11
EXPENDITURES
Principal retirement . . . . ccvonn s - - 7,000 -
Interestand fees ............... - - 375 -
TOTAL
EXPENDITURES ........... 7.750 7.750 7.373 375
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES . .... (7,750) (7,750) (7,364) 386
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfersin ..........covnn... 7.750 7.750 7. 375 (375)
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE o000 s nommiasa v - - 11 11
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1, 2017 .......... 1.022 1.022 1.022 -
Balance at June 30, 2018 ........ 1,022 1,022 $ 1,033 11
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - PBACCT BOND FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
ONHEL FEVEIUEE coonnsaasy e e nin - $ - b 678 § 678
EXPENDITURES
Principal retirement ........... - - 180,500 -
Interestand fees .............. - - 24,190 -
TOTAL
EXPENDITURES ...... 211,784 211,784 204,690 7.094
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES ... .. (211,784) (211,784) (204,012) 7,772
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfersin ...........oou... 211.784 211,784 205,282 (6.502)
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE .............ccuo... = = 1,270 1,270
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1, 2017 ......... 11.051 11,051 11.051 -
Balance at June 30, 2018 ....... 11.051 $ 11,051 $ 12.321 $ 1,270
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - GENERAL OBLIGATION
REFUNDING BOND FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
YARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Other revenues . .............. $ = $ - $ 48 $ 48
EXPENDITURES
Interestand fees ..o conawns o 1.100 1,100 - 1.100
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES . .... (1.100) (1,100) 48 1,148
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
TS i ane s s s o s sovans 20 5 g 1.100 1,100 - 1.100
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE .................... - - 48 48
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1, 2017 ......... 4,729 4.729 4.729 -

Balance at June 30, 2018 ....... ) 4,729 % 4729 % 4777 § 48
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET - MUNFORD CEMETERY FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
VARIANCE
WITH FINAL
BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Charges Tor services ..o:iv:0: 4. $ 3,000 § 3000 § 9,780 § 6,780
Otherrevenues ............... 700 700 9,750 9,050
TOTAL REVENUES ...... 3,700 3.700 19.530 15.830
EXPENDITURES
Health, welfare, recreation,
and education
Cemetery maintenance
Contractual services ...... 3.000 3,000 165 2.835
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES .............. 700 700 19,365 18,665
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
TransTerSoul coemen a5 9 % & & vasss (700) (700) (5,629) (4.929)
NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCE ................. - : 13,736 13,736
FUND BALANCE
Balance at July 1,2017 ......... 309,302 309.302 309.302 -

Balance at June 30, 2018 ....... $ 309302 § 309302 $§ 323038 §% 13.736




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ CFDA
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER
CASH FEDERAL AWARDS
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grants/State’s Program
and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii ............ ... ... ........... 14.228
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development . ...............
Department of Transportation
Passed through State of Tennessee Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction .. ............coviiiiiveinnenn. 20.205
Highway Planning and Construction ... .................oooenon.. 20.205
Alcohol Open Container Requirements . ........................... 20.607
Alcohio):Open Container REqUtemMent ; ..o w s vosus sammn v eve s awes 20.607
Airport Improvement Program . .. ... ... ... ... 20.106
Afrport Improvement PROZIAM . . . wovn == simeims vasirs svcemns ay wim g swm 20.106

Total Department of Transportation

TOTAL CASH FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

PASS-
THROUGH
GRANTOR'S
NUMBER

N/A

84LPLM-F3-022,
84LPLM-F0-021

84LPLM-F3-047
84LPLM-F3-037

Z17THSI137
ZI8THS075

AERO-18-210-00
AERO-16-249-00

RECEIVABLE/
(UNEARNED)
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RECEIVABLE

(UNEARNED)
BALANCE AT DISBURSE- BALANCE AT
JULY 1,2017 RECEIPTS MENTS ADJUSTMENTS JUNE 30, 2018
$ (760,360) $ (6079) $ 374353 § 337 $ (391,749)
(760.360) (6.079) 374.353 337 (391.749)
- (57.325) 98.258 - 40,933
- (13.150) 15.880 - 2,730
- (19.580) 20,804 - 1,224
- (90,055) 134,942 - 44.887
1,939 (3,837) 1.898 - %
= (5.000) 5.000 L -
1,939 (8.837) 6.898 - -
- - 46,185 - 46.185
153.474 (646.560) 493,092 - -
153.474 (646,566) 339,277 - 46,185
155,413 (745.458) 681.117 - 91,072
$ (604947) $  (751.537) § 1055470 § 337 3% (300,677)

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award activity of the City of Covington, Tennessee under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule 1s presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles.
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City of Covington, Tennessee, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the City of Covington, Tennessee.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types

of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

City of Covington, Tennessee has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

PROGRAM TITLE

CASH STATE AWARDS

Department of Transportation
Maimntendiice Grant (FY 18) : vons svms sii s ven s swies &
Maintenance Grant (FY 17) ... .o iviniininnnnns
AATPOTt BINPrOVEIBILS vix -« it 1 bore v e v wimin wimis Gine o
Adrport IMProvements ..: - . wows v son swan poas sams s
HIAISHAAT ACEESEIORA. i o wras < omvig e s unists i sroeis vimminies

TOTAL CASH STATE AWARDS ..........

Note: Significant Accounting Policies

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
RECEIVABLE RECEIVABLE
(UNEARNEDY/ (UNEARNEDY/
GRANTOR'S BALANCE AT DISBURSE- ADJUST  BALANCE AT
NUMBER JULY 1,2017 RECEIPTS MENTS MENT JUNE 30, 2018
AERM-18-111-00  § - § (4403) 14,407 $ 10,004
AERM-17-111-00 4,630 (4,630) - -
AERO-18-210-00 - - 2431 2,431
AERO-16-249-00 8,076 (34,030) 25,954 -
84696M-SO-018,
84LPM-51-019,
841.PM-53-020 - - 37.675 37.675
b 12,706 $_(43.063) 80.467 $ 50,110
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All of the state awards are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they
are earned. Expenses are recognized when the related liability is incurred or economic asset is used.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
LONG-TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
REQUIREMENTS BY YEAR

JUNE 30, 2018
WATER REVENUE SEWER
AND TAX BOND REVENUE AND TAX BIO MASS
SERIES 2008 BONDS - SERIES 2008 GASIFICATION BONDS
ENDING PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2019 $ 18,046 $ 38,438 $ 24,787 h 48,833 $ 73,000 $ 42,646
2020 18,804 37,680 25,733 47,887 75,000 41,026
2021 19,595 36,889 26,716 46,904 78,000 39,361
2022 20,418 36,066 27,737 45,883 81,000 37.629
2023 21,277 35,207 28,796 44,824 84,000 35,831
2024 22,171 34,313 29,896 43,724 87,000 33,966
2025 23,103 33,381 31,038 42,582 90,000 32,035
2026 24,074 32,410 32,224 41,396 93,000 30,037
2027 25,087 31,397 33,455 40,165 96.000 27,972
2028 26,141 30,343 34,733 38,887 99,000 25,841
2029 27,240 29,244 36,059 37,561 103,000 23,643
2030 28,385 28,099 37,437 36,183 106,000 21,356
2031 29,579 26,905 38.867 34,753 110,000 19,003
2032 30,822 25,662 40,351 33,269 114,000 16,561
2033 32,118 24,366 41,893 31,727 118,000 14,030
2034 33,468 23,016 43,493 30,217 122,000 11,411
2035 34,875 21,609 45,154 28.466 126.000 8,702
2036 36,341 20,143 46,879 26,741 131,000 5,905
2037 37,869 18,615 48,670 24,950 135,000 2,997
2038 39,461 17,023 50,529 23,091 - -
2039 41,119 15,365 52,459 21,161 - -
2040 42,848 13,636 54,463 19,157 - -
2041 44,649 11,835 56,543 17,077 - =
2042 46,526 9.958 58,703 14,917 - -
2043 48.482 8,002 60,946 12,674 - -
2044 50,520 5.964 63,274 10,346 - -
2045 52,644 3.840 65,690 7,930 - -
2046 54,857 1,627 68,200 5,420 - -
2047 7.353 49 70,805 2,815 - -
2048 - - 33,810 400 - =

§ 937874 § 651,082 $ 1.309.340 $ 859940 § 1.921.000 $ 469952
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
LONG-TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
REQUIREMENTS BY YEAR - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2018

COVINGTON ELECTRIC POOLED REFINANCING
SYSTEM REVENUE PUBLIC WORKS REVENUE
BONDS - SERIES 2003 AIRPORT BONDS BONDS - SERIES 1994
ENDING PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2019 $ 125000 § 32,648 § 8,000 $ 400 $ 137600 S 11,827
2020 130,000 27,483 - - 145,200 9,708
2021 135,000 22,034 - . 153,200 7,472
2022 140,000 16,188 - . 161,600 5,113
2023 145,000 16,188 . . 170,400 2,624
2024 155,000 13,345 » . ‘ .
2025 - ; . - - .
2026 . . . . : -
2027 ’ . a - ) .
2028 : : s - . :
2029 : :
2030 2 : 5 : - ’
2031 3 - - ; z -
2032 - - - - - -
2033 : : - . - :
2034 . - - - - -
2035 . . . ’ . .
2036 . . . - . .
2037 « . . - . »
2038 - . . - . -
2039 : - , . . -
2040 s : " < ’ .
2041 . 2 . . : 3
2042 : : 2 ” . :
2043 : : : : : g
2044 : : : ; . -
2045 - - - - 5
2046 - - - - - -
2047 . . - e s :
2048 . . y - - s

§ 830,000 $ 127886 b 8.000 $ 400 § 768000 § 36.744
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
LONG-TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
REQUIREMENTS BY YEAR - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2018
GENERAL OBLIGATION GENERAL OBLIGATION
NOTE PAYABLE - CAPITAL OUTLAY NOTE REFUNDING
LAWSUIT SETTLEMENT SERIES 2007 BOND - SERIES 2014

ENDING PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2019 b 133,333 $ 30,170 b 52,000 $ 2,184 b 115,000 $ 91,550

2020 133,333 21,333 : A 160,000 89,250
2021 133,333 18,667 3 = 160,000 86,050
2022 133,333 16,000 - - 165,000 82,450
2023 133,333 13,333 - - 170,000 78,325
2024 133,333 10,667 - - 175,000 74,075
2025 133,333 8,000 . , 170,000 68,825
2026 133,333 5,333 - . 165,000 63,725
2027 133,336 2,667 . . 170,000 58,363
2028 » . a - 175,000 52,838
2029 - - . . 180,000 46,713
2030 s : g : 170,000 40,413
2031 : : 3 : 175,000 34.463
2032 - : : 2 185,000 28,556
2033 3 - - 2 190,000 22,313
2034 - . - - 200,000 15,188
2035 - - - - 204,890 7,688
2036 " “ . - ’ -
2037 . . - . - .
2038 - . « . ’ -
2039 - - . ‘ . :
2040 - ’ . , . -
2041 - - : . ’ .
2042 . : . . . :
2043 ¢ . . . . 5
2044 : . : ’ - .
2045 2 : " - = :
2046 : 5 . ; ; .
2047 - - - - - -
2048 - - - - - -

$ 1200000 § 126170 § 52,000 § 2.18¢ § 2929890 §  940.785
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
LONG-TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
REQUIREMENTS BY YEAR - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2018

CAPITAL LEASE CAPITAL LEASE CAPITAL LEASE
OBLIGATION - TRUCK OBLIGATION - SWEEPER OBLIGATION - POLICE CAR
ENDING PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2019 $ 5031 § 557  § 34639 § 4121 § 9,669 § 1,195
2020 5,302 286 35,626 3,134 10,248 615
2021 - - 36,641 2,118 N .
2022 - - 37,685 1,074 - -
2023 - - - . -
2024 ’ . - - . .
2025 - . . . « .
2026 - < ’ - . .
2027 . : . = 2 s
2028 x , 2 s 2 :
2029 , = : : . :
2030 ; ; > : - -
2031 - - - - - -
2032 - - - -
2033 - - - - - -
2034 . . " - - -
2035 , - . . : :
2036 : - - . . -
2037 - . , - .
2038 - - . . . «
2039 5 , - ’ s 2
2040 ; : . 5 2 :
2041 2 3 : . :
2042 ; 2 : . : 5
2043 5 3 ; ; - :
2044 - - - - - -
2045 - : : . :
2046 - - - - -
2047 . . ’ . - ’
2048 : . . - , .

3 10333 % 843 § 144591 § 10447 % 19917 $ 1.810
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
LONG-TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
REQUIREMENTS BY YEAR - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2018

CAPITAL LEASE CAPITAL LEASE CAPITAL LEASE
OBLIGATION - OBLIGATION - OBLIGATION -
POLICE CARS TRUCK TRUCK
ENDING PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST

2019 $ 23353 § 1,401 § 6326 $ . $ 7,775  § -
2020 - - 5,320 1,006 6,538 1,237
2021 - - 5,636 690 6.927 848
2022 - . 5,972 354 7,339 436
2023 ’ . - , .

2024 . ’ - . .
2025 . - - . :
2026 < ’ ’ : 2
2027 : : s . <
2028 - g : : - :
2029 : . : : . :
2030 - - ; ; ; -
2031 - - - - - -
2032 - - - - -

2033 . . - . :

2034 : - " . " ’
2035 . . - - - .
2036 . - - . . -
2037 . - : ’ ,

2038 - - - = .

2039 . : . . . 3
2040 2 : . 2 5 >
2041 : s : : i 2
2042 = : : - ; =
2043 - " ; - =

2044 . - s . . .
2045 . e : . - .
2046 - . - : e -
2047 - . ’ . . -
2048 : . . ’ .

b} 23,353 S 1.401 $ 23254 % 2.050 $ 28.579  § 2,521
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
LONG-TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
REQUIREMENTS BY YEAR - CONTINUED
JUNE 30, 2018

GENERAL OBLIGATION GENERAL OBLIGATION
CAPITAL LEASE INTERFUND LOAN INTERFUND LOAN
OBLIGATION - CAPITAL OUTLAY NOTE CAPITAL OUTLAY NOTE
POLICE CARS SERIES 2009 SERIES 2012
ENDING  PRINCIPAL INTEREST  PRINCIPAL INTEREST  PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2019 $ 19,185 $ 2331 & 397 % 1511  § 176,358 § 5,291
2020 20,317 1,199 38,533 756 176,358 3,527
2021 - g . - 176,359 1,764
2022 - - - - - -
2023 - . - - - -
2024 - - . - -
2025 - . . . ’ ’
2026 : . ’ ; . ,
2027 ’ : : . s .
2028 - - - - : -
2029 2 : . - - g
2030 : : : s : :
2031 : : ; " ; e
2032 - : = - ; s
2033 = . . : : .
2034 - - - - : .
2035 - - : S . :
2036 - " . . . .
2037 . . " - - -
2038 . . " 5 . ,
2039 : g . ; “ .
2040 - - : . - -
2041 - : 2 : . :
2042 : ‘ . . - :
2043 : ‘ . : . :
2044 . : : 3 3 5
2045 . - 2 . 2
2046 . ’ X . b a
2047 - - 3 - - :
2048 . - . . s -

$ 39.502 b 3:530 § 76,311 $ 2.267 § 529.075 $ 10,582
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
LONG-TERM DEBT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
REQUIREMENTS BY YEAR - CONTINUED

JUNE 30, 2018
GENERAL OBLIGATION GENERAL OBLIGATION
INTERFUND LOAN INTERFUND LOAN
CAPITAL OUTLAY NOTE CAPITAL OUTLAY NOTE
SERIES 2014 SERIES 2015 GRAND
ENDING PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

2019 b3 30,243 3.024  § 66,702 § 767 § 1,422,719
2020 30,243 2,419 - - 1,305,101
2021 30,243 1.815 - - 1,226,262
2022 30,243 1,210 - - 1,052,730
2023 30,245 608 - - 1,009,991
2024 - - - - 812,490
2025 - - - - 632,297
2026 - - - - 620,532
2027 - - - - 618,442
2028 . - - - 482,783
2029 - - - - 483,460
2030 - - - - 467.873
2031 - - - - 468,570
2032 - - - - 474,221
2033 - - - - 474,447
2034 . - - - 478,793
2035 - - - - 477,384
2036 - - - - 267,009
2037 - - - - 268,101
2038 - - - . 130,104
2039 - - - - 130,104
2040 - - - - 130,104
2041 - - - - 130,104
2042 - - - - 130,104
2043 - - - - 130,104
2044 - - - - 130,104
2045 - - - - 130,104
2046 - . - - 130,104
2047 - - - - 81,024
2048 - - - - 34210

$§ 151217 % 9076 § 66.702 % 767  $ 14,329,375

Less interfund capital outlay notes (845.997)

Outside long-term debt § 13,483,378



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
WATER FUND - OPERATING EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PURIFICATION
Personal SErVICES . . .. oot
Contractual SEIVICES . ..ot ittt ittt e e e e e
SUPPlies . . e

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION
PersOital SEIVITES: « - ot ie om 05 S5 5 s b 6 8 ¥ S5 B S S U 5 6 e s
Comtractiial SErVICES seanmsrers vas s s amined o5 i85 9ormaee a5 o7 58 8 5 5 5m50e s
SUDDHEE ¢ 55 5 54 7 L paoees £65 5 165 § RIEEREEE 355 § VETEERE Q0 258D aEEE

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Personal SErVICES . . . ..ot
Contractual SerVICES . . ...ttt
SUPPIIES .« oot e e e
Fidod ChAEEES .. ... o0commasson onmmn mmmom s s o s e & namommenn s s b s s 6
FO1HT CORTS R CTEARNAL TR ovn o v en oo e Rebimem o £ 5 4 in 8 csobiomimins o s e R

DEPRECIATION ;::oiiiinemsess is doi aa@ned s 845 3 nissmes o 654 s

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . . i isammmseiausi vummmensssiysysis

$ 106,950
268,302
26.947
402.199

281,089
229,407

13972

524.468

117,381

229.066

223.141

$ 1.378.874
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SEWER FUND - OPERATING EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

COLLECTION
Personal ServiCes co s cvsn oo b e e § 9 5 S et s G5 o SR e 3 $ 163,167
Contmactual SOrBBES. « o v o9 r o aomabe e 6 5 & 8 R Rt o S B 5 3 64,002
BUPPHOE « 3 oo vrmrn & vm v v on s SUEEE S TEE 5 R PRSI EES B9 SO ESE E 14.050
241,219
TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL
Personal SEIVICES . . ..o v e e 242,279
Contractual SEIVICES . . .ottt et e e e 364,428
SOTPIIEE . o x o ihct b sagasemn h b neob B gk R B Be¥) & rcncdcee B 95.677
702.384
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Personal SELVICES o wwmemse o5 56 50 s o84 amin & s ms § & o ST0EE 58558 55 50 v s e 153,299
Contraciun] ServlEns oo cn s wewoommss C9e oEw i e Gi-e e § 3w e 8,599
BUPPIIGR 5o o oimss o0 mmosrgs o §8 ¥ 00 & BRGS0 5§ BRI B8R e I 1,350
FIXed Charges . ... ..ceuuivvionusnionmonensisenannseraessssnssssss 76,484
Jointcoststo General Fund . ........... ... .. . . . 117.381

357,113

DEPRECIATION . . e e 625,685

TOTAL OPERATINGEXPENSES . ... ..ot iiiiiinannnnnnnns $ 1.926.401
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
GAS UTILITY FUND - OPERATING EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PURCHASEB CIAS . o553 somvmens 5 89 a8 SRames 459 5 8 07 s buse ewss 44 93

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION
RRrBOmal SETVIGEE: v« vy w i e mrss 4 Boen ou PREEEER £ S00E P Y PR & P T
Contractual SEIVICES .. .. ittt i e
BRPPIIEE .« i 10 s mssoiine coseom b 18 e a0 o 0 A 0 30050 R 5

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
ECRSHTE SOEVECER ......orm om0 im0 sk, o o com 8 et i 5 . v m s e o
COMTERta] SOTNTEE /s i 6 6 kBT GO S E ot B e Ko AT Rl
SO 5 2 s s mEe £ 6 P FITRABEEREEEET L S DTEA R o S AN S
Fixed charges -~ MSMIBNGE: & v v v v swainaess 553 s haBEs s s s e a9 85 pEEess
Jomt coststo Cienetal Fund . . s ssvmvamusss o5 055 @ avmpass & 54 5 B0 ERERAN S

DEPRECTATION . iuowescvss vy vammes o n s ou 8§05 @nmase s 568y w s

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . .. .coovusvins s swnmonssessensssuwss

$ 1.643.177

372,469
85,037
22,507

480,013

278,893
38,564
5,719
13,823

117,381

454,380
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
BIO MASS GASIFICATION FUND - OPERATING EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
OPERATIONS
IR ORORRIE .. cons s wvmoonma s 63 o 8 5 3 oo & 5 8 5 4 5 ¥ B R HABIRIRES & ¥ 5 9§ 3 SN $ 23,127
DEPRECTATION . oo wmmmommsmmesown v o wsamss s 6 6 6% 5% 4 5 2 s/ 2 55 v 8 o e 97,565

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . . ... ... .. i $ 120,692



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
COVINGTON ELECTRIC SYSTEM ELECTRIC FUND - OPERATING EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

COST OF POWER .............

OPERATIONS EXPENSE
Distribution expense ...........
Customer accounts expense . . . . . .

Custoriet serviee and information EXPENEE ; s wsssssme s 15555 5555 himmi s 5

General and administrative ... ...

MAINTENANCE EXPENSE
Distribution . .................
General and administrative . ... ..

$17.112.807

493,221
377,533
21,765

— 968,092

1.860.611

389,673
142,447

532,120
729.682

97.061

$ 20,332,281
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
PROPERTY TAXES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Property tax rates for the ten most recent years follow:

YEAR OF LEVY

2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009

RATE PER $100 OF
ASSESSED VALUE TOTAL ASSESSED VALUES
$1.33 $182,774,459
1.33 179,604,989
1.33 179,377,484
1.33 182,430,601
1.33 179,477,976
1.29 176,358,813
1.19 178,950,710
1.19 185,646,869
1.19 179,805,580
1.19 179,843,130

Following is a schedule of changes in property taxes receivable:

BALANCE ADJUSTMENTS/ BALANCE
YEAR OF LEVY JULY 1,2017 ASSESSMENT ABATEMENTS COLLECTIONS JUNE 30, 2018
2018 $ - $2431,058 $ - $ - $ 2,431,058
2017 2,385,784 - (14,396) (2,212,930) 158,458
2016 164,318 - (1,031) (82,424) 80,863
2015 58,361 - (802) (25,506) 32,053
2014 30,650 - (802) (20,125) 9,723
2013 18,114 - - (7.577) 10,537
2012 5,619 - - (1,076) 4,543
2011 63,577 - - (648) 62,929
2010 7,658 - - (234) 7,424
2009 10,701 - - (10) 10,691
2008 7.547 - (7.547) - -
Totals 2,752,329 $ 2,431,058 $ (24,578) $ (2,350,530) 2,808,279
Allowance for
uncollectible
property taxes (108.889) (107.787)
Net receivables $2.643.440 $ 2,700,492

Uncollected taxes for years prior to 2009 have been charged off for financial reporting purposes.

Such amounts are not significant. Uncollected taxes for tax years prior to 2016 have been turned

over to Chancery Court for collection.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
WATER FUND - WATER RATES AND NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS
JUNE 30, 2018

MINIMUM INSIDE OUTSIDE
CHARGE - BY CITY CITY
METER SIZE LIMITS LIMITS

BIBI ivcvvincs % w5 5 n siniomeimie s 5 % ¥ 5 svieiain & 6 4 s 8 svsiEET S 5 6 h 8.78 $ 1322
FA w55 5 % B SR B S TR B OGS R RS E TR 12.05 22.44
P, msnsons = & & 5 soasminmns 5 & & ® @aEaEE € ¥ 5 @ 5 ARSI & 8 K 24.71 33.58
STl i, TTTITTYTYT 47.05 67.17
B v 8 % 5 % B # o S E E e 8 W S % S 76.15 111.89
B 5 5 T p B S g Y 0 SRR B S b % B OO A S R L 125.29 178.99
U i v S 5 AR 6 i P o 5 5 o 156.62 223.70
0" g n v v D B e S R O Y E ESES  Y Y 5 R R Ty pA 223.70 335.57
B vess 5 % 5 3 v R 5 5 % R ¥ 5 B SRAEREKER 8 B e 447 .37 671.07
INSIDE CITY LIMITS
NUMBER OF RATE PER 1,000
GALLONS USED GALLONS USED
First D000 5 v 55 oo 55 8 7 FOaes & 6 ¥ COEIE0E 5 8 5 DN 8§ ¥ T B 3 $ 4.40
Next B 000 L 3.00
Next Q0000 s oomomprs s s s oo s 555 SSeine 6 55 5 8 SOEma s § ¥ § Camimms ¢ § 2.83
Next 50,000 ..o e e 235
Over 1000000 2 : e 33 v 5 5 oerms 48 8 9 0EEES 8 85 ¥ 8 ETEREE 55 8 8 4 GEERE 5 s 2.25

QUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

NUMBER OF
GALLONS USED
First 3,000 . o $ 4.40
Next OO0 sparcesns 355 5 2 s § 5 5 2 SATMEE £ 5 § § SSRGS 8 4 § % £ SR § 82 Y ; 3.81
Next 10,000 . .. 3.50
Over 2OUD0 s s 8 6 @ % mmms g 5 65 SCRNEE S 5 K T SR L Y § SO R ¥ 4§ B 2.50

AUTOMATIC ADJUSTMENT OF RATES TO REFLECT COST OF LIVING

The minimum charge and the cost per 1,000 gallons as set out in the schedule of rates shall be
adjusted on an annual basis in an amount equal to the percentage change in the Consumer Price
Index for Urban Areas (CPIBU, US City Average, All Items) for the prior calendar year as
determined by the U.S. Department of Labor. Said annual adjustment shall be effective with the July
billing cycle each year. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen may reject the automatic adjustment by
passage of a resolution.

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

There were approximately 4,000 water customers at June 30, 2018.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SEWER FUND - SEWER RATES AND NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

JUNE 30, 2018
NON-PRESSURIZED PRESSURIZED
INSIDE OUTSIDE INSIDE OUTSIDE

CITY LIMITS CITY LIMITS CITY LIMITS CITY LIMITS

Minimum Charge - By Meter Size

T T O, $ 7.36 $ 10.60 $ 8.31 $11.96
B i i e e S G, B 8.74 12.89 9.86 14.54
LY8" . n i vvvmin st xnensnnsne s 17.03 25.79 19.22 29.07
2V oo e 22.56 34.06 25.43 38.40
U 36.81 55.21 41.51 62.24
A 76.39 115.04 86.13 129.71
7 S N 102.09 153.69 115.09 173.29
B vt AN AN AR 4 A 144.50 217.19 162.91 244.87
Unit Charge

Per 1,000 gallons of
metered water . ............. $4.26 $5.70 $4.80 $6.44

AUTOMATIC ADJUSTMENT OF RATES TO REFLECT COST OF LIVING

The minimum charge and the cost per 1,000 gallons as set out in the schedule of rates shall be
adjusted on an annual basis in an amount equal to the percentage change in the Consumer Price
Index for Urban Areas (CPIBU, US City Average, All Items) for the prior calendar year as
determined by the U.S. Department of Labor. Said annual adjustment shall be effective with the July
billing cycle each year. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen may reject the automatic adjustment by
passage of a resolution.

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

There were approximately 3,200 sewer customers at June 30, 2018.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
GAS UTILITY FUND - GAS RATES AND NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

JUNE 30, 2018

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS

Inside City LimiE . . v oo o s s v v viowwms w08 snam o
Outside City Limits .......... ...,

COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS

[RSIIR I LIRS . oon im0 0 mem e v iscac .55 2on
L ISIECIY TR 4. 3k oo dn AR RS sasmin ey v

INDUSTRIAL CUSTOMERS

Firm ~Sehedule 24 .5 oo i vvvsasrsmnpeus s unas
Interruptible - Schedule 93 . . . v s v pvvmwvvpeas
Interruptible - Schedule 93 (Unilever) ..........
Firm - Transportation .. .....................

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

There were approximately 3,100 gas customers at June 30

PER 1,000
CUBIC FEET

.................. 4.4840

, 2018.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
COVINGTON ELECTRIC SYSTEM ELECTRIC FUND -
ELECTRIC RATES
JUNE 30, 2018

RESIDENTIAL RATE SCHEDULE
Customer charge - per delivery pointpermonth . .......................

Energy charge -cent per KWH »fILEWR . v .« oo svuminss s s 503 womwoss sz ;

GENERAL POWER SCHEDULE
GSA1 (Under 50 kW demand and less than 15,000 kWh)
Customer charge - per delivery pointpermonth .....................
Efiersy charge = e P WL v ewss o 0 54 5 wbbodin & 25 s ¥ dacvkoin® s o
GSA2 (51-1,000 kW demand or more than 15,000 kWh)
Customer charge - per delivery pointpermonth .....................
Demand charges - per kW per month
FISESU RN o5 hs s 0 ST i s, 9 RIS B 06 i M
Bxeess OVEE SORW .« ivs s nnmnawnss seis 55 vommesnes spss o0 esmmess
Energy charge - cents per kWh
First 15000 W DBETROMIN -c:ouven o pagns 3 supmsam b sopns & wm i
Additional kWhpermonth ....... .. .. .. ... .. .. . i,
GSA3 (1,000 - 5,000 kW demand)
Customer charge - per delivery pointpermonth .....................
Demand charges - per kW per month
BRI RN 2o s 5e0mn 4 5 A AR b ST B b 3 RN TS5, 5
ExicessioVer LIOOOEW ;i ss svosmnicins s 65 1555 5aiemd o405 55 55 55 st
Fxoess Over 2000 KW ..o iisnvnmcissss s soemammess i 88s 95 s
Energy charge - Conts pet KWH . & oo wammrn oy & 8 5 @Eimes 6 & 8 56 55 o ws
SMSB (Seasonal Demand and Energy - Manufacturing Service)
Customer charge - per delivery pointpermonth .....................
ASTIDIBIAMIVE CRAER wvwv s s 5 50 g amderenm § 5 § 5 553 Saresnes & 0% 5 5 b6 8
UBPSAE NN v o oot iion Ss 3 § 23 el g 3 § esdpusn st & 5 3 S
RN cae g 2 2 250m CEE b d 5 Gt § w | A e agoe e oy Seeatay
OffPeak Excess of Contract KW . .. «o v vumnmnrsesesaammannsnnesonns

S LAVERRE L « smrmnns s € 55 1§ stmt mmmnis 4555 BUSHEGHE LY RES 525

$ 1440
0.08963

$ 1.00
$ 13.90

0.10147
0.06076

$ 400.00

1313

13.13

13,13
0.06551

$1,500.00
350.00
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Click to access definttion Water Audit Report for[caty of Govington (0000144)

Click 10 add a comment Reporting Year:| 2017 || 7/2017 -6/2018 |

Please enter dala in the white cells below. Whers available, metered values should be used, if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of the

All volumes to be entered as: MILLION GALLONS (US) PER YEAR

To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where
the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it

Master Meter and Supply Error Adjustments

WATER SUPPLIED <- - Enter grading in column 'E'and 'J' ——--->  pent. Value:
Volume from own sources: EEF m‘ 2N I 630.493] MGIYT 1K IR |1 ooxn[e o | IMGrYr
Water imported: 5] BE) [ nvaf —  0.000] MG/Yr bgﬁ; m _|l®e o  Imervr
Water exported: {5 ﬂ a || ~ 0.000] MGryr | ® o LG
777777 ' Enter negative % or value for under- reglstratlon
WATER SUPPLIED: [ 636.862| MGrvr Enter positive % or value for over-registration
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION Click here
Billed metered: X (B0 o 531.822/ MG/Yr for help using option
Billed unmetered: ESE B8 'nva) 0000 Mo buttons below
Unbilled metered Eﬁi = R 58.988| MG/Yr Pent Value
Unbilled unmetered: 55 B8 7 4.304) MGIYr i [0 ® 2304 IMGHYr
4
. .. Use puttons lo select
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 58 595.114 MGryr percentage of water
supplied
: — OR
WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) | 41.748 ' MG : valliz
Apparent Losses o Pent. Y __ Value :
Unauthorized consumption: I [E31 | 1592] MG/Yr | 025%[® o | {MGIYT
Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a gradlng of § ls applied but not displayed
Customer metering inaccuracies: 23 B2 | 7 || 12.057| meryr 2004[® O | IMGIYr
Systematic data handling errors: 4 [ ! 1 330 MGIYT 025% ® O MGIYr
Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors a grading of 5 Is applied but not displayed
Apparent Losses: B3 14.979 MGAYr
Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL o R
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: L 26.769 | MGIYr
WATER LOSSES: I 41748 mervr
NON-REV oo 4
NON-REVENUE WATER: il 105.040 mGrvr
= Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered
SYSTEM DATA
Length of mains: §8 (58 7 97.0) miles
Number of active AND inactive service connections: BE 71 ) 5,181
Service connection density: 5] 53| conn./mile main
Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? — b . Yes| (length of service line. beyond the property
Average lengtr of cusiomer service line: K Bl boundary, thal is the responsibility of the utility)
Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied
Average operating pressure; (i3I 20 8 || 53.0 psi
COSTDATA
Total annual cost of operating water system' o IR $1,490,795/ $/vear
" Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses). B30 F58 7 __ $8.60:/8/1000 gallons (US)
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses) B30 858 | 1o | $476 30 $Milion galions [ Use Customer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses
WATER AUD| '/ CORE:
| *** YOUR SCORE IS: 83 out of 100 ***
A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Waler Audit Data Validity Score
PRIORITY A| NTION:

Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:
[ 1: Volume from own sources |
[ 2: Unauthorized consumption ]
[ 3: Systematic data handling errors ]

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0 Reporting Worksheet 1



Water Audit Report for:|City of Govington (0000144)

Reporting Year:| 2017 ||  7/2017 - 6/2018 |
*** YOUR WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE IS: 83 out of 100 ***
System Attributes:
Apparent Losses: | 14.979 IMG/Yr
+ Real Losses: | 26.769 |MG/Yr
= Water Losses: | 41.748 |MG/Yr
%7 Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): | 25.19|MG/Yr
Annual cost of Apparent Losses: ! $128,820!
Annual cost of Real Losses: | $12,750| Valued at Variable Production Cost
Return to Reporting Worksheet to change this assumpiton
Performance Indicators:

Financial: {

Apparent Losses per service connection per day:

Operational Efficiency:

From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL):

Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:

" This performance indicator applies for systems with a low service connection density of less than 32 service connections/mile of pipeline

Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied:
Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system:

Real Losses per service connection per day:
Real Losses per length of main per day*:
Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure: |

16.5%|
11.5%| Real Losses valued at Variable Production Cost

7.92 gallons/connection/day

; 14.16|gallons/connection/day
N/A|

~0.27 gallons/connection/day/psi

~ 26.77'million gallons/year
108

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0

Performance Indicators 1
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Whitehorn

. TGnkerSleY & 110 East Pleasant Avenue ® P.O. Box 369

< Covington, TN 38019
VD Davis, PLLC (901) 476-8275 « (901) 476-0867 FAX
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.wtdcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Justin Hanson, Mayor
Members of the Board of Aldermen
City of Covington, Tennessee
Covington, Tennessee

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Covington, Tennessee, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Covington,
Tennessee’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 28, 2019.
Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of Covington
Electric System Electric Fund, Covington Electric System Defined Benefit Plan, and Covington
Electric System 457 Plan, as described in our report on the City of Covington, Tennessee’s financial
statements. This report includes our consideration of the results of the other auditor’s testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and other matters that are reported on
separately by those other auditors. However, this report, insofar as it relates to the results of the other
auditors, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of
Covington, Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City of Covington, Tennessee’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Covington, Tennessee’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
AICPA DIVISION OF FIRMS: PRIVATE COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION
TENNESSEE SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider
to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses (Item Nos. 2018-001, 2018-002, and

2018-003).

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs to be significant deficiencies (Item Nos. 2018-004, 2018-005, 2018-006, and 2018-007).

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Covington, Tennessee’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an
instance of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned

costs (Item No. 2018-008).

City of Covington, Tennessee’s Responses to Findings

City of Covington, Tennessee’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Covington Tennessee’s responses
were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Covington, Tennessee
January 28, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Honorable Justin Hanson, Mayor
Members of the Board of Aldermen
City of Covington, Tennessee
Covington, Tennessee

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Covington, Tennessee’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the City of Covington, Tennessee’s major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2018. City of Covington, Tennessee’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Covington,
Tennessee’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of
Covington, Tennessee’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Covington,
Tennessee’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City of Covington, Tennessee complied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to
be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as Iltem No. 2018-009. Our opinion on each major federal
program is not modified with respect to this matter.

City of Covington, Tennessee’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Covington,
Tennessee’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City of Covington, Tennessee is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Covington,
Tennessee’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Covington, Tennessee’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance 1s a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

W hbhin Jﬂm/m/y ¢ Davis, e

Covington, Tennessee
January 28, 2019



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1.

8.

9.

The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of
the City of Covington, Tennessee were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

. Three material weaknesses and four significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the

financial statements are reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

. One instance of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of Covington,

Tennessee which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards was disclosed during the audit.

. One significant deficiency in internal control over major federal award programs disclosed

during the audit is reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance For Each
Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance.
No material weaknesses are reported.

. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of

Covington, Tennessee expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a)

are reported in this schedule.

. The program tested as a major program was: Airport Improvement Program - CFDA No.

20.106.
The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

City of Covington, Tennessee was determined to not be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

Material Weaknesses

Item No. 2018-001: Preparation of Financial Statements

Condition: The City does not have sufficient internal controls over the drafting of the annual audited
financial statements done by the auditor.

Criteria: The City is responsible for internal controls over the preparation of its annual audited
financial statements.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT - CONTINUED

Material Weaknesses - Continued

Item No. 2018-001: Preparation of Financial Statements - Continued

Cause: There is either lack of time available by current financial personnel and/or a lack of the
necessary skills and knowledge of current financial personnel.

Effect: There is a lack of internal control over the preparation of its annual audited financial
statements.

Recommendation: Consideration should be given to retaining a qualified individual to assist in the
review of the draft of the annual audited financial statements.

Management response: We concur with this finding.
Item No. 2018-002: Material Audit Adjustments
Condition: The following material audit adjustments were proposed:

General Fund

(1) The prior year liability to the settlement of the Flat Iron lawsuit had not been reversed in the
general ledger accounts. An adjustment was made to decrease liabilities and expenditures by
approximately $244,000.

(2) The general ledger account balance for utility reconnect fees receivable did not agree with the
detail subsidiary ledger. An adjustment was made to decrease assets and revenues by
approximately $74,000.

(3) The joint cost allocation charges to the utility funds were understated. An adjustment was
made to increase assets and decrease expenditures by approximately $64,000.

Water Fund
(1) Revenue (charges for services) was overstated. An adjustment was made to increase liabilities

and decrease revenues by approximately $111,000.

Gas Utility Fund

(1) The pension actuarial valuation report is not received until several months after the fiscal year
end. Therefore, adjustment of the year end pension related accounts must be made as audit
adjustments. An adjustment was made to decrease net pension liability and pension expense
by approximately $64,000.

135



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT - CONTINUED

Material Weaknesses - Continued

Item No. 2018-002: Material Audit Adjustments - Continued
Condition: - Continued
Bio Mass Gasification Fund

(1) Depreciation expense was overstated. An adjustment was made to increase assets and decrease
expenses by approximately $23,000.

Criteria: The City is responsible for internal controls over the adjustment of its general ledger
balances and financial statements.

Cause: The pension actuarial report is not received until after year end closing and the books and
records had been submitted to the auditor. The remaining adjustments were due to overlooked
accounting errors.

Effect: The account balances of the above funds were materially misstated.

Recommendation: Appropriate care should be taken to ensure that general ledger balances are
properly stated prior to commencement of the audit.

Management response: We concur with this finding.
Item No. 2018-003: Reconciliation and Adjustment of Utility Accounts Receivable Balances

Condition: The utility funds’ general ledger accounts receivable balances were not reconciled and
adjusted to the detail customer balances each month. As a result, misstatements of the utility fund’s
general ledger accounts receivable balances in the cumulative amount of approximately $102,000
were not corrected until the reconciliation was performed as of June 30, 2018 year end. Furthermore,
the causes for these misstatements had not been determined as of June 30, 2018.

Criteria: Sufficient internal controls should be in place that allows management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis.

Cause: Although the utility funds® general ledger accounts receivable balances were compared to
the detail balances each month through the year, the differences were not investigated and corrected
until year end and the reasons for the differences had not been determined.

Effect: The utility funds’ general ledger accounts receivable balances were misstated throughout the
year.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT - CONTINUED

Material Weaknesses - Continued

Item No. 2018-003: Reconciliation and Adjustment of Utility Accounts Receivable Balances -
Continued

Recommendation: As part of the normal monthly closing procedures, the utility funds’ general ledger
accounts receivable balances should be reconciled to detail balances. Any significant differences
noted should be investigated and corrected.

Management response: We concur with this finding

Significant Deficiencies

Item No. 2018-004: Lack of Purchase Approval in Minutes
Condition: Although the purchase was included in the current year budget, there was no evidence
in the minutes of the Board, or the appropriate committee, of the approval for the purchase of an

Aqua-tech truck by the Sewer Fund in the approximate amount of $275,000.

Criteria: Requiring Board approval for major capital asset purchases is an effective internal control
procedure.

Cause: There was an inadvertent oversight in not including the item on the Board agenda.

Effect: Internal controls over the purchase of this capital asset were not as effective as they should
have been.

Recommendation: All major capital asset purchases should be approved by the Board, or the
appropriate committee.

Management response: We concur with this finding.

Item No. 2018-005: Allocation of Pension Contributions

Condition: Testing of the fund allocation of contributions to the City’s private pension plan indicated
the Water Fund and Sewer Fund may have overpaid in the approximate amounts of $19,000 and

$17,000, respectively, while the General Fund may have underpaid in the approximate amount of
$37,000.

Criteria: Pension contributions should be allocated to the funds on a systematic and reasonable basis.

Cause: The method of allocation of contributions has not been reviewed in recent years.



CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT - CONTINUED

Significant Deficiencies- Continued

Item No. 2018-005: Allocation of Pension Contributions - Continued

Effect: Expenses of the Water Fund and Sewer Fund may be overstated, while expenditures of the
General Fund may be understated.

Recommendation: The method of allocation of pension contributions to the various funds should be
reviewed and updated, if necessary. Normally, the pension contributions should be allocated based
on the ratio of salaries paid, or some other reasonable and verifiable basis.

Management response: We concur with this finding.

Item No. 2018-006: Cash Shortage and Other Theft

Condition: A department head used a City-issued credit card to make personal purchases in the
amount of $603. The City’s cash disbursement internal control procedures discovered the

discrepancies during the review for supporting documentation of the credit card statement. The
department head promptly reimbursed the City upon discovery of the personal purchases.

Criteria: The policy of the City is that City-issued credit cards only be used by department heads for
approved travel.

Cause: The department head contended the City-issued card was unintentionally used for the
personal purchases.

Effect: City-issued credit card was used for personal purchases.

Recommendation: City-issued credit cards should be kept in the locked safe except when released
to the department head immediately prior to commencement of approved travel. The City - issued
credit card should be returned to the locked safe immediately upon the return of the department head.
Management response:. We concur with this finding.

Item No. 2018-007: Overstatement of Pension Compensation

Condition: The amount of compensation reported to the actuary for the City Pension Plan for certain

public safety employees was overstated. This necessitated that a corrected actuarial valuation be
prepared to calculate correct balances for pension related accounts.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT - CONTINUED

Significant Deficiencies- Continued

Item No. 2018-007: Overstatement of Pension Compensation - Continued

Criteria: Adequate internal controls should be designed and implemented to ensure account balances
are properly stated.

Cause: An additional overtime compensation code for public safety employees had been added
recently. The amount of compensation related to this overtime code had not been deducted from total
compensation of the employees in reporting pension compensation.

Effect: Pension related account balances were misstated.

Recommendation: Internal controls should be implemented to ensure the correct amount of pension
compensation is reported to the actuary. After the pension compensation calculations are performed,
another employee should review and recheck the calculations before the information is submitted
to the actuary. The preparer and the reviewer should initial and date the payroll register on which the
manual calculations are performed to document the preparation and review process.

Management response: We concur with this finding.

Compliance and Other Matters

Item No. 2018-008: Expenditures in Excess of Budget

Condition: In the General Fund, there were three line item budget overruns aggregating approxi-
mately $64,000.

In the Munford Cemetery Fund, total expenditures and transfers out exceeded the budgeted amount
by approximately $2,100.

In the Tipton County Museum Fund, total expenditures and transfers out exceeded the budgeted
amount by approximately $2,400.

In the Drug Fund, total expenditures and transfers out exceeded the budgeted amount by
approximately $59,000.
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CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT - CONTINUED

Compliance and Other Matters - Continued

Item No. 2018-008: Expenditures in Excess of Budget - Continued

Criteria: Expenditures should be kept within amounts appropriated in the budget ordinance and any
amendments thereto.

Cause: In the Drug Fund, the capital outlay expenditure in connection with a new capital lease had
not been recorded. In the other funds, expenditures were higher than expected due to year end closing
entries for accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Effect: Expenditures were in excess of approved amounts.
Recommendation: Expenditures should not be incurred in amounts that exceed the budget. Either the

expenditures should be delayed or the budget should be amended for such additional expenditures.
Budgets should be amended in amounts to cover actual expenditures for the year both in total and

in line item amounts.
Management response:. We concur with this finding.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM

Finding:
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Item No. 2018-009: Airport Improvement Program-CFDA No. 20.106; Grant No. AERO-16-
249-00-Year ended June 30, 2018 - Certified Payroll Listings

Condition: The payroll listings from one contractor for payroll periods in July 2017 and September
2017 were not certified until December 2018. Therefore, certified payroll listings from this contractor
were not obtained on a timely basis.

Criteria: OMB Compliance supplement, Special tests and Provisions, includes a requirement for the
contractor or subcontractor to submit to the non-Federal entity weekly, for each week in which the
contract work is performed, a copy of the payroll and a statement of compliance (certified payrolls)
in order to determine that wages were paid in amounts not less than those established for the locality
of the project (prevailing wage rates) by the Department of Labor.

140



141

CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM -

CONTINUED

Item No. 2018-009: Airport Improvement Program-CFDA No. 20.106; Grant No. AERO-16-
249-00-Year ended June 30, 2018 - Certified Payroll Listings - Continued

Cause: The City relied on the project engineer to obtain, review, and verify the required certified
payroll listings.

Effect: Wages may not have been paid at the required prevailing wage rate.

Recommendation: City personnel should monitor the project engineer’s activities to the extent
necessary to determine certified payrolls are being obtained, reviewed, and verified on a timely basis.

Management response: We concur with this finding.

Questioned Costs: None




CITY OF COVINGTON, TENNESSEE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Financial Statement Findings

Finding Number

2017-001

2017-002

2017-003

2017-004

2017-005

Finding Title Status
Preparation of Financial Statements Repeated
(Original finding #2007-001) (2018-001)
Material Audit Adjustments Repeated
(Original finding #2007-003) (2018-002)
Reconciliation and Adjustment of
Utility Accounts Receivable Balances Repeated
(Original Finding #2017-003) (2018-003)
Old Utility Customer Deposits Corrected
(Original finding #2015-003)
Expenditures in Excess of Budget Repeated
(Original finding #2013-002) (2018-007)
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TINA DUNN
Recorder-Treasurer

JUSTIN HANSON
Mayor

City of Covington

POST OFFICE BOX 768
200 West Washington Avenue, Covington, Tennessee 38019
Telephone (901) 476-9613 Fax (90" 176-6699

MANAGEMENT’S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Department of Transportation

City of Covington, Tennessee respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the
year ended June 30, 2018.

Name and address of independent accounting firm:
Whitehorn Tankersley & Davis, PLLC
110 East Pleasant Avenue
Covington, TN 38019
Audit period:
Year ended June 30, 2018

The findings from the June 30, 2018 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs are discussed
below. The findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

Material Weaknesses

Item 2018-001: Preparation of Financial Statements
Response and corrective action plan prepared by: Tina Dunn, Recorder-Treasurer
Person responsible for implementing corrective action plan: Same as above

Recommendation: Consideration should be given to retaining a qualified individual to assist in
the review of the draft of the annual audited financial statements.
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Anticipated completion date of correction action: N/A
Repeat finding: Yes
Reason why corrective action was not taken - prior year: We believe the cost to correct this
deficiency would exceed the benefits to be derived. As such, we will continue to rely on the
auditor to draft the annual audited financial statements. However, we believe our skill, knowledge,
and experience enables us to review the financial statements and understand them fully.
Planned corrective action: None. See above comment.
Item 2018-002: Material Audit Adjustments
Response and corrective action plan prepared by: Tina Dunn, Recorder-Treasurer

Person responsible for implementing corrective action plan: Same as above

Recommendation: Appropriate care should be taken to ensure that general ledger balances are
properly stated prior to commencement of the audit.

Anticipated completion date of correction action: June 30, 2019

Repeat finding: Yes

Reason why corrective action was not taken - prior year: Some of the audit adjustments were
necessary to correct recording errors. However, adjustments of pension related account balances
were a result of the delay in receiving the pension actuary report after year end closing.
Planned corrective action: We will take care to ensure all material transactions are recorded
properly in the general ledger accounts. However, audit adjustments of pension related accounts
may continue to be necessary due to late receipt of the pension actuary report.

Item 2018-003: Reconciliation and Adjustment of Utility Accounts Receivable Balances
Response and corrective action plan prepared by: Tina Dunn, Recorder-Treasurer

Person responsible for implementing corrective action plan: Same as above

Recommendation: As part of the normal monthly closing procedures, the Utility Fund’s general
ledger account balances should be reconciled to detail balances. Any significant differences noted
should be investigated and corrected.

Anticipated completion date of correction action: June 30, 2019

Repeat finding: Yes
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Reason why corrective action was not taken - prior year: We did compare the general ledger
account balances to the detail customer balances each month and were aware of the differences.
However, we continued to encounter difficulties in determining the causes for such differences.
Planned corrective action: We will reconcile the general ledger account receivable balances to
the detail customer balances monthly and investigate, and correct, significant differences. We

have requested assistance from our accounting software vendor in determining the causes for such
differences so that appropriate corrections can be made.

Significant Deficiencies

Item 2018-004: Lack of Purchase Approval in Minutes

Response and corrective action plan prepared by: Tina Dunn, Recorder-Treasurer
Person responsible for implementing corrective action plan: Same as above

Recommendation: All major capital asset purchases should be approved by the Board, or the
appropriate committee.

Anticipated completion date of correction action: June 30, 2019
Repeat finding: No

Planned corrective action: We will take care to ensure for all major capital asset purchases is
documented in the minutes of the Board, or the appropriate committee.

Item No. 2018-005: Allocation of Pension Contributions

Response and corrective action plan prepared by: Tina Dunn, Recorder-Treasurer

Person responsible for implementing corrective action plan: Same as above

Recommendation: The method of allocation of pension contributions to the various funds should
be reviewed and updated, if necessary. Normally, the pension contributions should be allocated
based on the ratio of salaries paid, or some other reasonable and verifiable basis.

Anticipated completion date of correction action: June 30, 2019

Repeat finding: No

Planned corrective action: We will update our allocation ratios based on current salary
expenditures.

Item No. 2018-006: Cash Shortage and Other Theft

Response and corrective action plan prepared by: Tina Dunn, Recorder-Treasurer
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Person responsible for implementing corrective action plan: Same as above
Recommendation: City-issued credit cards should be kept in the locked safe except when released
to the department head immediately prior to commencement of approved travel. The City-issued
credit card should be returned to the locked safe immediately upon the return of the department
head.
Anticipated completion date of correction action: June 30, 2019
Repeat finding: No
Planned corrective action: We have already implemented the recommendation.
Item No. 2018-007: Overstatement of Pension Compensation

Response and corrective action plan prepared by: Tina Dunn, Recorder-Treasurer

Person responsible for implementing corrective action plan: Tiny Rose, Director of Human
Resources

Recommendation: Internal controls should be implemented to ensure the correct amount of
pension compensation is reported to the actuary. After the pension compensation calculations are
performed, another employee should review and recheck the calculations before the information
is submitted to the actuary. The preparer and the reviewer should initial and date the payroll

register on which the manual calculations are performed to document the preparation and review
process.

Anticipated completion date of correction action: June 30, 2019
Repeat finding: No
Planned corrective action: We will implement the recommended procedures.

Compliance and Other Matters

Item No. 2018-008: Expenditures in Excess of Budget

Response and corrective action plan prepared by: Tina Dunn, Recorder-Treasurer

Person responsible for implementing corrective action plan: Same as above

Recommendation: Expenditures should not be incurred in amounts that exceed the budget. Either
the expenditures should be delayed or the budget should be amended for such additional
expenditures. Budgets should be amended in amounts to cover actual expenditures for the year
both in total and in line item amounts.

Anticipated completion date of correction action: June 30, 2019

Repeat finding: Yes



Reason why corrective action was not taken - prior year: In one fund, the capital outlay
expenditure in connection with a new capital lease had not been recorded. In the other funds,

expenditures were higher than expected due to year end closing entries for accounts payable and
accrued expenses.

Planned corrective action: We will take care to amend budgets in sufficient amounts to avoid
overruns.

FINDINGS - FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDITS

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Item No. 2018-009: Airport Improvement Program-CFDA No. 20.106: Grant No. AERO-16-
249-00 - Year ended June 30, 2018 - Certified Payroll Listings

Response and corrective action plan prepared by: Tina Dunn, Recorder-Treasurer
Person responsible for implementing corrective action plan: Same as above

Recommendation: City personnel should monitor the project engineer’s activities to the extent
necessary to determine certified payrolls are being obtained, reviewed, and verified on a timely

basis.

Anticipated completion date of correction action: June 30, 2019

Repeat finding: No

Planned corrective action: We have discussed this instance of noncompliance with the project
engineer. He has confirmed to us that they will ensure compliance with this requirement in the
future. In the future, we will coordinate monitoring efforts with the project engineer to ensure

compliance with this grant requirement.

If the Department of Transportation has questions regarding this plan, please call Tina Dunn,
Recorder - Treasurer, at (901) 476-9613.

Sincerely,

Ina Bs

Tina Dunn
Recorder - Treasurer
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